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CORPORATE INFORMATION (CONTINUED)
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CHANGE OF COMPANY NAME

The name of the Company has been changed from “Co-Prosperity Holdings
Limited” to “Asia Television Holdings Limited” with all registration completed
after the issuance date of the annual results announcement, the Company
was therefore using its former name “Co-Prosperity Holdings Limited” in the

annual report. For details, please refer to page 7 of this annual report.
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On behalf of the board of directors (the “Board” or the “Directors”) of Co-
Prosperity Holdings Limited (the “Company”), | am pleased to present the
annual results of the Company and its subsidiaries (together, the “Group”)
for the year ended 31 December 2017.

2017 Review - Further transformation of the Group’s
operations

In order to deal with the on-going challenges of the People’s Republic of
China (the “PRC") textile industry and pressures on margin and profitability,
we have decided to diversify from a pure textile company into a multi-
businesses enterprise after a careful review of our long-term business plans
and strategic direction. Less competitive textile operations of the Group
were streamlined and rationalised or even divested. We have also gradually
expanding into the robust financial service sector in Hong Kong. During 2015,
we have obtained a money lender licence and have also started to invest and
manage a portfolio of marketable securities listed in Hong Kong and overseas.
The acquisition of the 60% equity interests indirectly in Sincere Securities
Limited (“Sincere Securities”) was completed on 15 March 2017. The new
business is expected to deliver increasing earnings to the Group in coming
years.

The successful rescue and relaunch of the Former ATV
Since late 2015, we have got involved into the rescue of the financially
distressed Asia Television Limited (“the Former ATV"). Interested in the long-
term prospect of the digital media and entertainment business, we entered
into a sale and purchase agreement to acquire 52.42% equity interests of
the Former ATV in April 2016 and signed the debts transfer agreements
of the Former ATV with its controlling shareholder, and its affiliates and
ex-employees.

With our on-going efforts to rescue the Former ATV, the provisional
liquidators were discharged by the Court effective on 24 April 2017. Through
an indirectly wholly-owned subsidiary, Star Platinum Enterprises Limited (”Star
Platinum”), we proceeded with the application of the scheme of arrangement
to be proposed to the creditors of the Former ATV. We have also expanded
the management team and actively recruited talents to prepare for the
relaunch of the Hong Kong's first TV broadcaster. By 12 September 2017, the
scheme of arrangement was approved in the Former ATV's creditors meeting
and subsequently sanctioned by the Court on 12 December 2017. Our
mobile application was launched recently, which allows audiences to watch
its streaming contents on mobile phones and tablets. We have renovated
and revamped the existing facilities at Tai Po and have acquired new digital
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production and editing equipment, started to remaster and digitalise existing
programme library and archives, developed a digital broadcasting and
distribution platform, and invested in new content production as well as
licenced contents. Our OTT platform was also launched under a newly formed
“New ATV") on 29

January 2018 and home viewers could watch our contents on TV through OTT

company — Asia Television Digital Media Limited (the
set-top boxes.

Diversification into the Malaysia property and leisure
industry
On 9 May 2017, we also entered into a sale and purchase agreement to

acquire 24.56% ordinary shares of Yong Tai Berhad (“Yong Tai”) at the
consideration of Malaysian Ringgit (“RM") 117.7 million (equivalent to
RM1.10 per share). Yong Tai is a fast-growing developer listed on the Main
Market of the Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad, and its existing property
projects are strategically located within the heritage city centre of Melaka,
one of the fastest growing states in Malaysia. The existing property projects
are easily accessible as they are located on prime locations with proximity
to commercial districts, hotels, amenities and just 1.5 km away from the
historical and cultural heritage, the UNESCO, World Heritage site of Melaka.
Yong Tai's growth is also expected to be underpinned by its Impression
City Project, which will include the iconic performance theatre — Encore
Melaka, shopping malls, a culture village, resort and incomes from multi-year

residential development projects.

On 2 August 2017, the Group has entered into a subscription agreement
with Yong Tai to purchase a further 43 million newly issued Yong Tai
shares at the issued price of RM1.26 per share. Upon the completion on 29
December 2017, the Group has increased the shareholding of Yong Tai to
31.21%. On 9 January 2018, the Group has entered into another sales and
purchase agreement to acquire 60 million issued Irredeemable Convertible
Preference Shares of Yong Tai (“ICPS"”) at the consideration of RM66.0 million
(equivalent to RM1.10 per ICPS).

2017 was a key milestone for the transformation of the Group into a multiple
business conglomerate with operations in textiles, properties, securities
investment and brokerage services, money lending as well as media, cultural

and entertainment in Hong Kong, the PRC and Southeast Asia.

We will continue to enhance our corporate transparency and strengthen our
corporate governance and internal control. We will take every opportunity to
optimise our business to enrich the value of the shareholders of the Company
(the "Shareholders”). With the concerted efforts of the management and the
staff of the Group, we are fully confident and optimistic about the Group’s
future growth and outlook.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT (CONTINUED)
ERHE(R)

APPRECIATION

On behalf of the Group and the Board, | would like to express uttermost
gratitude to our employees for all your effort and contribution. | would also
like to thank our Shareholders, investors, business partners and customers
who have been offering great support and assistance to us. We are confident
about the future development prospects of the Group and will continue to
forge ahead with innovative development and generate ideal investment
returns for Shareholders.

Tang Hon Kwo
Chairman
Hong Kong, 27 March 2018
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Change of Company Name and Stock Short Name

On 14 February 2018, the Board announced the proposal for the change
of its registered English name from “Co-Prosperity Holdings Limited” to
“Asia Television Holdings Limited” and the adoption of the Chinese name
of "ZEMERIZERABMRAA]" as the dual foreign name in Chinese of the
Company in place of its existing Chinese name “H#pE 1t L4Ei AR QA"
which has been used for identification purposes only. On 16 March 2018,
the special resolution for change of the Company name was duly passed by
the Shareholders at the extraordinary general meeting. The Certificate of
Incorporation on Change of Name was issued by the Registrar of Companies
in the Cayman Islands on 16 March 2018, and the Certificate of Registration
of Alteration of Name of Registered Non-Hong Kong Company was issued by
the Registrar of Companies of Hong Kong on 11 April 2018.

The stock short name for trading the shares of the Company on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) has been changed
from “CO-PROSPERITY" to “ATV HOLDINGS" in English and from "1 2% 2 "
to “ZEMEAZIZEL” in Chinese with effect from 20 April 2018.

The Board considers that the change of Company name will better reflect
the future development strategies of the Group. The Board also believes that
the new Company name will create a more appropriate corporate image and
identity for the Group, which will benefit the Group's business development

and the interests of the Shareholders as a whole in the future.

Due to the above subsequent changes in Company’s name and the
short stock name of the Company being effective after its annual results
announcement on 27 March 2018 (the “2017 Results Announcement Date”),
as at the 2017 Results Announcement Date, the Company was therefore
being defined by using its former name i.e. “Co-Prosperity Holdings Limited”
in the sections of the Chairman’s Statement, the Independent Auditor’s
Report, the Consolidated Financial Statements, the Notes to the Consolidated
Financial Statements or elsewhere in this annual report.

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Group had engaged in four
business streams including (i) the processing, printing and sales of finished
fabrics and subcontracting services and the trading of fabric and clothing
business (the “Fabrics and Trading Business”); (ii) the money lending business;
(iii) securities investment and brokerage services business; and (iv) media,

cultural and entertainment business.
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Fabrics and Trading Business

The Group continued to engage in the Fabrics and Trading Business during
the financial year. The overall business environment remained tough in
2017. Demand from emerging markets remained weak and the substantial
increases in cotton prices and fuel costs continued to put pressure on gross
profit margin. Labour and other costs have been surging amid a backdrop of
material exchange rate fluctuations in recent quarters. The fierce competition
also made it difficult to pass on various cost increases to customers, along
with increasingly demanding environmental standard and requirements
applicable in the manufacturing processes. As a result, the Group has focused
to improve operating efficiency and cut costs last year. We also take other
appropriate strategic and operational measures to deal with operational
challenges.

For the year 2017, the turnover contributed by the Fabrics and Trading
Business was approximately Renminbi (“RMB”) 114.8 million (2016:
RMB172.2 million), representing a decrease of 33.3% from the previous
year. Gross profit from the operation has dropped from RMB8.5 million in
2016 to RMB4.2 million in current year, representing a 50.6% year-over-year
decline. The decrease in revenue and segment gross profit were primarily due
to the fact that (i) the Group was unable to pass on all the increased costs
(such as labour costs and stringent environmental protection requirements)
to customers owing to fierce competition and the average selling price
of the fabric reduced; (ii) most of the production cost of fabric increased
dramatically including the cotton price and yarn price showed an upward
trend during the year; (iii) the economy of the PRC remained challenging due
to the slowdown of economic growth in the PRC, driven by the structural
adjustment in the domestic economy and structural reform on the supply
side. Besides, operating environment was unfavourable owing to the volatile
global economy and weak demand from customers. We anticipate the fabric
manufacturing and trading industry will undergo a process of consolidation
and we will continue to adopt stringent cost control measures to counteract

the operational headwind.

Money Lending Business

The money lending business is conducted through Rende Finance Limited
(“"Rende”), a locally licenced money lender under the Money Lenders
Ordinance. As at 31 December 2017, the loan balances were approximately
RMB138.3 million (2016: RMB138.8 million) with terms of 3 months to 1
year at effective interest rates ranging from 10.0% to 24.0% (2016: 8.0% to
24.0%) per annum.

The money lending business has gradually grown at a stable pace into a
significant loan portfolio. All the borrowers have been carefully evaluated by
the Group on, among other things, their repayment capabilities, professional
background and financial status. For the year 2017, the interest income
contributed by the money lending business was approximately RMB14.7
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million (2016: RMB25.7 million) with a segment result of approximately
RMB14.6 million (2016: RMB4.0 million), the significant decrease in interest
income was due to a large portion of loan of approximately RMB261.1 million
was granted to Star Platinum as at 30 June 2016 and Star Platinum was still
an independent third party of the Group which contributed a large portion of
interest income to the Group in last year. On 29 July 2016, Rende exercised
its right over the share charge against 99% shareholding of Star Platinum. As
such, Star Platinum became a directly wholly-owned subsidiary of Rende as a
result of the default of interest payment by Star Platinum and its guarantor.

For details, please refer to the Company’s announcement dated 29 July 2016.

As a matter of risk management exercise, we will not further enlarge the
exposure of the money lending business. We will remain selective in our
credit approval process and exercise restraints in screening applications.

Securities Investment and Brokerage Services Business
During the year under review, the overall performance of the Group’s
securities investment business was less than satisfactory. Notwithstanding
the stock market rebounded drastically in late of 2017, the Group had
recorded an overall fair value loss of approximately RMB16.7 million from
the securities investment business (2016: fair value gain of RMB62.1 million).
The significant decrease in fair value change was due to a large portion of
unrealised fair value gain during 2016 was contributed an unlisted investment
fund, from Tiger Capital Fund SPC — Tiger Global SP (“Tiger Fund”), which
was weakened during the year.

As at 31 December 2017, the aggregate amount of the Group's financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss is approximately RMB52.4 million
(31 December 2016: RMB201.4 million). The Group managed a portfolio
of securities listed in Hong Kong and overseas. The huge decrease in the
securities investment portfolio was mainly due to the disposal of the entire
investment in Tiger Fund. The Group has invested approximately RMB86.6
million into Tiger Fund during 2016, and subsequently disposed the entire

investment in Tiger Fund during the year.

Finally, the revenue generated from the new securities brokerage services
business was approximately RMB20.7 million (2016: N/A) since the
completion of acquisition of Million Federal International Limited (“Million
Federal”) together with its subsidiary Sincere Securities in March 2017.
On the back of an improving Hong Kong and the PRC economy, stronger
corporate earnings momentum, as well as the influx of mainland liquidity
through the Stock Connect, the Hong Kong stock market has performed well
in 2017 and the market turnover has also recovered significantly compared
to a year ago. 2017 segment result from the division was RMB10.3 million
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(2016: N/A) and we continue to expect operational improvement from our
brokerage services as well as high level of market turnover. As a result, we
expect further revenue upsides from rising brokerage commission, increase in

revenue from corporate finance as well as margin financing business.

Media, Cultural and Entertainment Business

The Group has noticed the potential growth of media, cultural and
entertainment sector and has commenced to look into related development
opportunities. During the year, the turnover of the media, cultural and
entertainment business was approximately RMBO0.6 million (2016: 0.7 million).

In early 2016, the Group got involved in the rescue plan and, subsequently,
the acquisition of the Former ATV. On 24 April 2017, the provisional
liquidators of the Former ATV have been discharged by the Court. We
then proceeded with the application of the scheme of arrangement to be
proposed to the Former ATV’s creditors. By 12 September 2017, the scheme
of arrangement was approved in the Former ATV's creditors meeting and,
subsequently has also been sanctioned by the Court on 12 December 2017. As
a result, the Former ATV has become free from previous debts and given a fresh
start upon the completion of the scheme of arrangement of the Former ATV.

Over the past few months, we have expanded the management team,
and have actively recruited talents to prepare for the relaunch of the New
ATV. We have renovated and revamped the existing facilities at Tai Po and
have acquired new digital production and editing equipment, started to
remaster and digitalise existing programme library and archives, developed a
digital broadcasting and distribution platform, and invested in new content
production and licenced contents. Our mobile application was launched
recently, which allows audiences to watch its streaming contents on mobile
phones and tablets. An OTT platform was also launched on 29 January 2018
and home viewers can watch our contents on TV through OTT set-top boxes.
We have also planned to revive popular contents such as “Who want to be a
Millionaire?” and “Miss Asia Pageant”, along with our new programmes in
2018.

As at 31 December 2017, the Group had total assets of approximately
RMB1,693.1 million (2016: RMB1,199.4 million) which were financed by
current liabilities of approximately RMB392.9 million (2016: RMB481.5
million), non-current liabilities of approximately RMB1.4 million (2016: 28.2
million) and Shareholders’ equity of approximately RMB1,257.6 million (2016:
RMB689.7 million).
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As at 31 December 2017, the Group’s cash and bank balances were
approximately RMB229.9 million (2016: RMB27.8 million), while pledged
bank deposits amounted to RMB38.4 million (2016: RMB38.4 million).
As at 31 December 2017, the secured bonds were fixed-rate and were
denominated in Hong Kong dollars (“HK$"), the short-term bank loans were
fixed-rate loans and denominated in RMB whereas short-term loans from
other financial institution and other borrowing were fixed-rate loan and
denominated in HK$. The Group's borrowings were secured by land use
rights, certain property, plant and equipment and pledged bank deposits of
the Group.

The Group maintained a healthy liquidity position. The current ratio, being
a ratio of total current assets to total current liabilities, was approximately
2.2 (2016: 1.4). The gearing ratio, being a ratio of borrowings (comprising
obligation under finance leases, bond payables, short-term bank loans
(secured), short-term loans from other financial institution (secured) and other
borrowing (unsecured) as at 31 December 2017) to shareholders’ equity,
was 17.3% (2016: 34.6%). The Group continues to adopt a conservative

approach in its financial management.

As at 31 December 2017, the Company’s authorised share capital was
HK$2,000,000,000 divided into 20,000,000,000 shares of HK$0.1 each, of
which 7,055,668,000 ordinary shares were in issue and fully paid.

Issue of Shares under share option scheme
During the year ended 31 December 2017, no share options were issued,
lapsed and exercised.

Placing of Shares under general mandates

On 9 March 2017, the Company had issued and allotted 797,184,000
ordinary shares at the placing price of HK$0.20 each to not less than six
investors (the “First Share Placing”). The net proceeds of approximately
HK$155.22 million were received by the Company in which approximately
(i) HK$82 million was utilised for the acquisition of 60% of the total issued
(i) HK$65 million was utilised for the

development of OTT or apps platforms which involves infrastructure design

share capital of Million Federal;

and development, OTT solutions, technology support, software licensing,
cloud computing, content delivery network and set-top box production; and
(iii) HK$8.22 million was utilised for general working capital of the Group.
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On 24 July 2017, the Company allotted and issued 956,620,000 ordinary
shares at a price of HK$0.25 to not less than six investors (the “Second
Share Placing”). The net proceeds of approximately HK$232.95 million were
received by the Company in which approximately (i) HK$112.95 million was
utilised for the development of media and entertainment business; (ii) HK$40
million was utilised for the money lending and securities investment business;
and (iii) HK$80 million was utilised for the general working capital of the
Group.

On 19 December 2017, the Company allotted and issued 1,175,944,000
ordinary shares at a price of HK$0.4 to not less than six investors (the “Third
Share Placing”). The net proceeds of approximately HK$458.30 million
were received by the Company which is intended to have approximately (i)
HK$102.20 million utilised for the settlement of the consideration regarding
the subscription of 43 million new shares of Yong Tai; (ii) HK$100.00 million
utilised for development of media, cultural and entertainment business,
including but not limited to the infrastructure design and development of OTT
or Apps platforms, OTT solutions and technology support, software licensing,
cloud computing and content delivery network; (iii) HK$200.00 million
utilised for repayment of borrowings of the Group; and (iv) HK$56.10 million
utilised for the general working capital of the Group; or for financing any

investment opportunities as may be identified from time to time.

Conversion of convertible bonds

On 14 August 2017, the convertible bonds in the principal amount of
HK$30,800,000 has been converted, pursuant to which a total number of
140,000,000 new shares from conversion have been allotted and issued to
the convertible bonds holder.

As at 31 December 2017, the Group’s borrowings were secured by assets
with a total carrying value of approximately RMB161.2 million (2016:
RMB165.7 million).

Save for disclosed above, the Group does not have other charges on the
Group’s assets.

As at 31 December 2017, the Group has no capital commitments (2016: Nil)
in respect of purchases of property, plant and equipment.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND EXCHANGE RISK
EXPOSURE

As at 31 December 2017, the Group did not have any contingent liabilities.

Most of the Group's assets and liabilities are denominated in HK$ and RMB,
which are the functional currencies of the respective group companies.
The Group has not entered into any instruments on the foreign exchange
exposure. The Group will closely monitor exchange rate movement and will
take appropriate action to reduce the exchange risk.

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES
Please refer to notes 4, 5 and 6 to the consolidated financial statements and
the section “Contingent Liabilities and Exchange Risk Exposure” for further

discussion on other risks and uncertainties.

MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS OF THE GROUP

Acquisition of the Former ATV

As at the date of acquisition of Star Platinum during 2016, Star Platinum has
entered into a sale and purchase agreement with six independent vendors
on 30 April 2016 relating to the acquisition of approximately 52.42% of the
entire issued share capital of the Former ATV and all related debts provided
to the Former ATV by the vendors, at a total consideration of HK$500 million
(referred to the “Acquisition of the Former ATV"). Details are set out in note
12(a) to the consolidated financial statements.

The Board wish to inform the Shareholders and potential investors of the
Company that, the media, cultural and entertainment business of the Group
is currently mainly operating under a new wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company, Asia Television Digital Media Limited, instead of operating under
the Former ATV.
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Preparation of the supplemental circular for the
Acquisition of the Former ATV

For the preparation of the supplementary circular for the Acquisition of the
Former ATV. The management of the Group has started gaining limited
and incomplete access to the Former ATV’s books and records and facing
significant practicable difficulties with limited access due to its incomplete
books and records (e.g. incomplete filings with the books and records
inconsistent with relevant supporting documents; difficulty in ascertaining
the completeness of the books and records; absence of accounting staff
of the Former ATV who have sufficient and relevant knowledge to provide
assistance; and the suspended and obsolete accounting and operation system
of the Former ATV has problem to be reactivated). As a result, the Group has
limited and incomplete access to the Former ATV's books and records and the
information currently obtained is not ready or sufficient for the purpose of
preparing financial information of the Former ATV (collectively referred to as

the “Limitation to Access and Incomplete Records”).

In view of the situation mentioned above, the Group has appointed a
professional accounting firm to update the books and records of the Former
ATV and an audit firm to perform statutory audits of the Former ATV. The

preliminary plan of the supplementary circular is as follows.

1. Prepare updated books and records of the Former ATV (estimated to
be ready by end of May 2018)

2. Prepare outstanding audited reports of the Former ATV (estimated to
be ready by end of June 2018)

3. Prepare and submit supplemental circular (estimated to be ready by
end of July 2018)

Due to the Limitation to Access and Incomplete Records, the Company
has not yet in complete control of the Former ATV, and the Group has not
yet gain full and complete access to the books and records of the Former
ATV. Therefore, the Company has not yet required to be complied with the
requirement of Rule 14.67A(3) of the Listing Rules. The Company will as
soon as practicable issue the supplemental circular as required under Rule
14.67A(3) of the Listing Rules.
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Modification opinion arising from the acquisition of Star
Platinum and the Former ATV

From the independent auditor’'s report with modification opinion, the
auditor was unable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence to
satisfy themselves as (1) the recovery of the deposits for other investments
of HK$500,000,000; (2) the receivables due from the Former ATV of
approximately RMB90,006,000; and (3) the purchase price allocation on
acquisition of Star Platinum as at 31 December 2017, due to the books and
records of the Former ATV made available to the Group were considered as
incomplete for the Group to determinate the recoverability of the deposits
and receivables and the auditor was unable to determine whether any
adjustment to the assets and liabilities obtained from the acquisition of Star
Platinum was necessary.

It is considered that relevant deposits and receivables for the Acquisition
of the Former ATV are fairly stated in the 2017 financial statements. The
modification audit opinion is based on the fact of the Limitation to Access
and Incomplete Records as mentioned above. Therefore, the Board and the
audit committee of the Company (the “Audit Committee”) concur with the
view as stated in the modification opinion and consider that it will not have
material potential impact on the Group’s financial position.

The Group has the preliminary plan as mentioned above in preparation of the
financial information of the Former ATV and will closely monitor the progress
to promptly resolve the issues that gave rise to the modification opinion.

Acquisition of Million Federal

Co-Prosperity Investment (International) Limited (as purchaser), a wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into a sale and purchase
agreement dated 23 May 2016 with Sincere Finance Holding Limited (as
vendor) in relation to the acquisition of 60% of the total issued share capital
of Million Federal. The total consideration for the acquisition of Million
Federal was HK$90 million. On 15 March 2017, the Group completed the
acquisition of Million Federal and Million Federal becomes a subsidiary of the
Company.

Acquisition of Yong Tai

On 9 May 2017, Full Winning Developments Limited (“Full Winning”), a
direct wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into an agreement
with Impression Culture Asia Limited to acquire 24.56% ordinary shares
of Yong Tai, at the consideration of approximately RM117,700,000. The
acquisition was completed on 24 May 2017. On 2 August 2017, Full Winning
entered into a subscription agreement with Yong Tai to further subscribe
for 43 million new shares of Yong Tai at the issue price of RM1.26. On 29
December 2017, upon the completion of the subscription, the Group owned
approximately 31.21% ordinary shares of Yong Tai. On 9 January 2018, Full
Winning entered into an agreement with Jade Stones Group Limited (“Jade
Stones”) to acquire 60,000,000 ICPS of Yong Tai, representing approximately
27.77% of the entire issued ICPS of Yong Tai at the consideration of
RM66,000,000. The acquisition of ICPS was completed on 17 January 2018.
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Certain related party transactions as disclosed in note 39 to the consolidated
financial statements also constituted connected transaction within the
meaning of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock
Exchange (the “Listing Rules”). Details of such transactions have been
disclosed in compliance with the disclosure requirements in accordance with

Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules and summarised below:

Acquisition of ICPS of Yong Tai

On 9 January 2018, Full Winning entered into an agreement with Jade Stones
to acquire 60,000,000 ICPS of Yong Tai, representing approximately 27.77%
of the entire issued ICPS of Yong Tai at the consideration of RM66,000,000.

The sole director and the sole shareholder of the Jade Stones and its
associates, are also the directors and ultimate beneficial owners of a
substantial shareholder of Million Federal, holding approximately 36.88% of
the total issued share capital of Million Federal.
a connected subsidiary as defined under Rule 14A.16 of the Listing Rules.

Million Federal is also not

Accordingly, the Jade Stones and Full Winning are connected persons at
subsidiary level of the Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
Accordingly, the acquisition of ICPS of Yong Tai constitutes a partially
exempt connected transaction for the Company under the Listing Rules and
is exempted from shareholders’ approval requirement and only subject to the
reporting and announcement under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. The
acquisition was completed on 17 January 2018.

As at 31 December 2017, the Group had about 740 employees (2016: 750
employees) in Hong Kong and the PRC.

Remuneration packages for the employees were maintained at a competitive
level of the jurisdiction within which the employees were employed to attract,
retain and motivate the employees and were reviewed periodically.

In addition, during the year, the Group maintained a new share option
scheme (the “New Share Option Scheme”) for the purpose of providing
incentives and rewards to the eligible participants for their contributions to
the Group. The new share option scheme was adopted at the annual general

meeting of the Company on 15 June 2016 (the “2016 AGM").
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Mr. Tang Hon Kwo, aged 48, is currently the Chairman and an executive
Director of the Company. Mr. Tang joined the Group in October 2015. Mr.
Tang has approximately 21 years of experience in investment activities and
business management. Mr. Tang has served since 1998 as a director and deputy
general manager of a Hong Kong private company and overseen the operational
management and project investment activities. He was an executive director of
China Best Group Holding Limited (stock code: 370) for the period from October
2014 to June 2015.

Mr. Law Kin Fat, aged 50, is currently an executive Director of the
Company. He joined the Group on 29 June 2017. Mr. Law graduated from
The University of Hong Kong with a Bachelor Degree in Social Science
(Economics). He also obtained a Master degree in Finance and Investment
from the University of Exeter in the UK. Mr. Law had served as a senior
executive of Deutsche Bank Asia, Bank of America Merrill Lynch, ABN Amro
Group NV, BNP Paribas Asia, JP Morgan Chase Bank, N.A., mainly responsible
for equities sales and other related functions in Greater China region,
Australia, and New Zealand markets for over 17 years. He was an executive
director and the vice chairman of Leyou Technologies Holdings Limited (Stock
Code: 1089) between 28 July 2015 to 30 June 2017. He had been appointed
as a non-executive director of Yong Tai (Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad,
stock code: 7066) with effect from 24 August 2017 and was re-designated as
an executive director of Yong Tai on 18 January 2018.

Mr. Ma Zhi, aged 39, is currently an executive Director of the Company.
Mr. Ma joined the Group in February 2016. Mr. Ma received a Bachelor
of Arts degree in Radio and Television from the Communication University
of China in 2001 and a Master’s degree in Television Directing from the
Communication University of China in 2003. Mr. Ma has worked as a
reporter, producer and assistant director for China Education Television.
He has joined Great United Petroleum Holding Co., Ltd and served as vice
president and spokesman. Mr. Ma has 16 years of experience working in
media and public communication.

Mr. Sze Siu Bun, aged 50, is an executive Director of the Company. He has
about 22 years’ experience in printing and dyeing industry. He has joined the
Group since 2005. He is involved in the overall management of the Group
and is responsible for overseeing daily management of the Hong Kong office.

Mr. Li Wenfeng, aged 52, is currently the Deputy Chairman and a non-
executive Director of the Company. He holds a bachelor’s degree of science
in Electronic Engineering awarded by South China University of Technology in
1993. Mr. Li Wenfeng has around 20 years of experience in corporate finance
and asset management. Prior to joining our Company, Mr. Li Wenfeng held
the position of a director of Yue Xiu Securities Holdings Limited and Yue Xiu
Asset Management Limited.
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Ms. Han Xingxing aged 36, is currently an independent non-executive
Director of the Company, the chairman of the nomination committee
of the Company (the “Nomination Committee”) and a member of the
Audit Committee and the remuneration committee of the Company (the
“Remuneration Committee”). Ms. Han joined the Group in September 2015.
Ms. Han holds a bachelor degree of Information Warfare Technology from
Northwestern Polytechnical University. Ms. Han has over ten years senior
management experience in the field of information technology development
and investment. Ms. Han has been the general manager of Qianhai Honghu
Tairui Technology (Shenzhen) Company Limited (B1/8 545 % Ix Bl & (F
Y1) BBR 2 A]) since August 2014. She was the vice-president of Shenzhen
Bio Technology Trading Company Limited (RIITEXERIEZ SHERRQF)
between September 2012 and July 2014. She was the director of Guanghe
landscape Culture Communication Co., Ltd, ShanXi (178 LK X1k &%
B& 17 B IR 2 B])(SHA: 600234) between 16 November 2015 to 30 September
2016.

Mr. Cheung Ngai Lam, aged 49, is currently an independent non-executive
Director, the chairman of the Audit Committee and a member of the
Nomination Committee and Remuneration Committee. Mr. Cheung joined
the Group in January 2016. Mr. Cheung is a member of the American
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and is a Certified Practicing
Accountant of Australia. Mr. Cheung obtained a bachelor degree in
social sciences from The University of Hong Kong and a master of science
(investment management) degree in finance from The Hong Kong University
of Science and Technology. Mr. Cheung is currently the chief financial officer
of China Zenix Auto International Limited (NYSE: ZX) and an independent
non-executive director of Boyaa Interactive International Limited (Stock Code:
434) and he was an independent non-executive director of China Huishan
Dairy Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 6863) between 22 June 2017 to 15
December 2017.

Mr. Li Yu, aged 45, is currently an independent non-executive Director, the
chairman of the Remuneration Committee and a member of the Nomination
Committee and Audit Committee. Mr. Li joined the Group in February 2017.
Mr. Liobtained a Master in Business Administration from Asia Metropolitan
University. Mr. Li had been working as a journalist and editor in various multi-
media institutions and companies. From 2007 to 2012, Mr. Li served as the
deputy general manager in Guangzhou Jiadi Culture Communication Co., Ltd.
(BINET XL EE AR A F]). Subsequently, Mr. Li focused on participating
in social cultural development and investment management business. Mr. Li
has extensive experience in corporate culture development, brand promotion
as well as corporate sales and marketing management. Mr. Li was previously
the independent non-executive director of China Best Group Holding Limited
(stock code: 370) during the period from 26 June 2015 to 29 April 2016.
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The Directors are pleased to present their annual report and the audited
consolidated financial statements of the Company and the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2017.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND BUSINESS REVIEW
The Company acts as an investment holding company. The principal activities
of its subsidiaries are set out in note 43 to the consolidated financial
statements. Further discussion of these activities as required by Schedule 5 to
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, including a description of the principal
risks and uncertainties facing the Group and an indication of likely future
development in the Group’s business, can be found in the Management
Discussion and Analysis set out in pages 7 to 16 of this annual report. This
discussion forms part of this Report of the Directors.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year are set out in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income in pages 72 to 73
of this annual report.

No interim dividend was paid during the year (2016: Nil) and the Directors do
not recommend a payment of final dividend for the year (2016: Nil).

SHARE CAPITAL, SHARE OPTIONS AND
CONVERTIBLE BONDS

Details of movements in the Company’s convertible bonds, share capital
and share options and during the year are set out in notes 35, 36 and 37
respectively to the consolidated financial statements.

Details of other equity-linked agreements are included in the section “Share
Option Scheme” contained in this Report of the Directors.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2017, the Company’s reserve available for distribution
amounted to approximately RMB492,799,000. Under the Company Law of
the Cayman Islands, the Company may make distributions to its members out
of the share premium in certain circumstances subject to the provisions of the
articles of association of the Company (”Articles of Association”).

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movement in property, plant and equipment of the Group
during the year are set out in note 18 to the consolidated financial
statements.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

Aggregate sales attributable to the Group’s five largest customers were less
than 30% of the Group's total turnover.
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Aggregate purchases attributable to the Group’s five largest suppliers were
less than 30% of the Group's total purchases.

A summary of the results and the assets and liabilities of the Group for the

last five financial years is set out in page 216 of the annual report.

The directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of this
report were:

Executive Directors:
Mr. Tang Hon Kwo (Chairman)
Mr. Law Kin Fat

(appointed on 29 June 2017)
Mr. Ma Zhi
Mr. Sze Siu Bun
Mr. Lam Chi Keung

(resigned on 9 March 2017)
Mr. Ip Ka Po

(resigned on 7 February 2017)

Non-executive Director:
Mr. Li Wenfeng (Deputy Chairman)

Independent non-executive Directors:
Mr. Cheung Ngai Lam
Ms. Han Xingxing
Mr. Li Yu
(appointed on 14 February 2017)
Ms. Tao Feng
(resigned on 14 February 2017)

All Directors are subject to retirement by rotation in accordance with the
Articles of Association.

As at the date of this annual report, Mr. Law Kin Fat, who was appointed
as Director of the Company 29 June 2017, shall retire at the forthcoming
annual general meeting in accordance with Article 86(3) of the Articles
of Association, being eligible, will offer himself for re-election of the
forthcoming annual general meeting. In addition, in accordance with Article
87(1) and (2) of the Articles of Association, Mr. Ma Zhi, Ms. Han Xingxing
and Mr. Cheung Ngai Lam will also retire from the Board at the forthcoming
annual general meeting. All the aforesaid retiring Directors, being eligible,
will offer themselves for re-election at the forthcoming annual general

meeting.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

None of the Directors has entered or has proposed to enter into any
service contract with the Company or any of its subsidiaries which is not
determinable by the employing company within one year without payment of
compensation other than statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS’ BIOGRAPHIES
Biographical details of the Directors are set out on pages 17 to 18 of this
annual report.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S INTERESTS
As at 31 December 2017, none of the Directors or chief executives of the
Company or their associates had any interests and/or short positions in any
shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company and its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures
Ordinance, Cap. 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong (the “SFO")) as recorded in
the register maintained by the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO
or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to
the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the
“Model Code”) as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules.

DIRECTORS’ AND CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDER'S
INTEREST IN CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

No contract of significance, to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries
was a party and in which a director or a controlling shareholder of the
Company had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted as
at the end of the year.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY

The Company has taken out appropriate insurance coverage for the Directors
and officers for protection against potential legal actions. The Board shall
review the insurance policy every year.

DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN COMPETING BUSINESS

None of the directors have an interest in any business constituting a
competing business to the Group.

INDEPENDENCE OF INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

The Company has received from each of the current independent non-
executive Directors an annual confirmation in respect of his/her independence
during the year pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. All the current
independent non-executive Directors have confirmed that they have been and
are independent since their appointment and as of the date of this annual
report.

EFEHRE (W)

BEERCELRERNRALEEMMER AR
SAEMBRRARFZNEE OCEEBERIN) BT
AR —FARIEZRBEL

EEZEE
EH2EERERRAFREITEISHE -

EEREETHRAEZROER

RZB—tF+-_A=+—H RELAQFIKREE
EPIESNEEZ RE GO ([F5RME R
E32EREMFE 2 ELMAAREE  HRE LT
RAMS T Z LM BETAEZETESRS
MRS Al (MR A MAME AR B KRR
e BMERARRETREITRABRRSE
M EALTRADR REAER (REAFRHAE
GBI EXVED 2 B ) M ERA L - BEARD RER
BRBEEMEER AR

EERERBRRREAGH 2ER

ARAHEEMMBRARAMETIARAEEK
ERBEENEPERRAEEEEAERMNF
BEDARERZEREL -

BER 2 REMR
ARFE AEEREBA BRI ABRBEEE
EATHRGERE - EESESTRREMRE -

EERBEERER
EEEHMARAEEBREE 2 LD
B -

BIYFHTESZELMY

AAREEELEREBUIFATEERELTR
BIE3 3G RERE B S0 T8 2 FEER
E-rRRABUFNTERCERRNEERERE
ERERRAFHAYP-—ERLMBATZBEILA
+ o

Annual R‘;;poﬁr; 2 01 7 21



REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

EFEHRE(R)

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

As at 31 December 2017, to the best knowledge of the Company, the
following persons (other than Directors or chief executives of the Company)
had, or were deemed or taken to have interests and/or short positions in the

FERR

RoF—tF+-A=+—8 HAQAHH - K
TAL (RARFERBETHABRIN) RER
R ARAA S ABRIR 1 R B S RAR B S HE

shares or underlying shares of the Company, which would be required to be
disclosed to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the provisions
of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO or as recorded in the register
required to be kept by the Company under Section 336 of the SFO:

Rk KB TARE B F R E GO EXVE
BR3P EX AR AT RBE X RBHIEAR
AIRIEE R R EGOIFE3I6KETE 2B LML
& -

Approximate
percentage of
the issued share
capital of the
Company as at

31 December 2017

(%)
BARRE
Total R-B—t&
Interests held +=-A=+-H
Name of substantial Capacity in which the Interests (Note 1) ERTREZ
shareholder are held Nature of Interest iz EEs BABED L
TERRZ2ESE BREREZZHH EimME (Kist1) (%)
Deng Jun Jie Interest of Controlled Ordinary shares of 1,535,388,000 (L) 21.76
Corporation HK$0.10 each
HEA R EE R BREEC.108 T2 EilR
Honghu Capital (Note 2) Beneficial Owner Ordinary shares of 1,535,388,000 (L) 21.76
HK$0.10 each
BERER(Hr5t2) ExBAA FREECIOETZEBR
KKC Capital Limited (Note 3) Investment Manager Ordinary shares of 364,872,000 (L) 5.17
HK$0.10 each
KKC Capital Limited (477£3) BELIE BREE0I10B T LEK
Chiu Wai Lap (Note 3) Investment Manager Ordinary shares of 364,872,000 (L) 5.17
HK$0.10 each
BIESL (B1323) REKE BREE0.10B T2 E@R
Avia Asset Management Limited Investment Manager Ordinary shares of 364,872,000 (L) 5.17
(Note 3) HK$0.10 each
BLEAEERARAR REEE FREECIOETZEBR
(H1:£3)
KKC Capital SPC - KKC Capital Beneficial Owner Ordinary shares of 364,872,000 (L) 5.17

High Growth Fund Segregated HK$0.10 each
Portfolio
(“KKC Capital SPC")

KKC Capital SPC - KKC Capital
High Growth Fund Segregated
Portfolio

(TKKC Capital SPC1)

ERERA FREE10E T LBK
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

Notes:

1. The letters “L” and “S” denote long position and short position in the shares
of the Company respectively.

2. Honghu Capital is wholly-owned and beneficially owned by Mr. Deng Jun Jie.

3. KKC Capital Limited, Mr. Chiu Wai Lap and Avia Asset Management Limited are
the investment managers of KKC Capital SPC and were therefore deemed to
have an interest in the shares in which KKC Capital SPC was invested.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The New Share Option Scheme was adopted at the 2016 AGM. The New
Share Option Scheme became valid and effective for a period of 10 years
commencing from the date of the 2016 AGM. There was no change in any
terms of the New Share Option Scheme. No share options were granted,
cancelled or lapsed during the year, and no outstanding share options during
the year.

ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed in the section “Share Option Scheme”, at no time during
the year was the Company, its holding company or any of its subsidiaries
a party to any arrangement to enable the Directors or the chief executives
of the Company to acquire benefits by means of acquisition of shares in or
debentures of the Company or any other body corporate, and neither the
Directors nor the chief executives, nor any of their spouses or children under
the age of 18, had any rights to subscribe for the securities of the Company,
or any had exercised any such right.

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION
Details of Directors’ emoluments on a named basis are set out in note 14 to
the consolidated financial statements.

Remuneration for each of the Directors are determined based on, among
others, emoluments paid by comparable companies, his/her time of
commitment and responsibilities towards the Company and whether the
remuneration package is competitively attractive to retain him/her as director.

There were no compensation paid during the financial year or receivable by
Directors or past Directors for the loss of office as a director of any member
of the Group or of any other office in connection with the management of
the affairs of any member of the Group distinguishing between contractual
and other payments.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

EFEHRE (W)

RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEME

The Group's qualifying employees in Hong Kong participate in the Mandatory
Provident Fund (the “MPF") in Hong Kong.

The assets of the MPF are held separately from those of the Group in funds
under the control of trustee. The Group and each of the employees make
monthly mandatory contributions to the MPF schemes.

The employees of the PRC subsidiaries are members of the state-managed
retirement benefits scheme operated by the PRC government. The PRC
subsidiaries are required to contribute a certain percentage of their payroll
to the retirement benefits scheme to fund the benefits. The only obligation
of the Group with respect to the retirement benefits scheme is to make the
required contributions under the scheme.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

As at the date of this report, to the best knowledge of the Directors and
based on the information publicly available to the Company, there is a
sufficient public float as required by the Listing Rules.

PURCHASE, REDEMPTION OR SALE OF LISTED
SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

During the reporting period ended 31 December 2017, neither the Company
nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased, redeemed or sold any of the
Company’s listed securities.

UPDATE ON DIRECTORS’ INFORMATION

Pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules, the changes in information of
Directors are set out below:

1. Mr. Law Kin Fat had been appointed as a non-executive director
of Yong Tai Berhad (Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad, stock code:
7066) with effect from 24 August 2017 and was re-designated as an
executive director of Yong Tai on 18 January 2018.

2. Mr. Cheung Ngai Lam has been resigned as an independent non-
executive director of China Huishan Dairy Holdings Company Limited
(stock code: 6863) with effect from 15 December 2017.

Save for the above, there is no other change in information of the Directors
as at the date of this annual report.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Details of related party transactions are set out in note 39 to the consolidated
financial statements. Other than the Acquisition of ICPS of Yong Tai as
disclosed under “Connected Transactions” in the section “Management
Discussion and Analysis”, the Group did not have other transactions
constitutes connected or continuing connected transactions of the Company
which are not exempt from the reporting, announcement and independent
shareholders’ approval requirements under the Listing Rules.

DIVIDEND

The Board does not recommend a payment of final dividend for the year
(2016: Nil).

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The Register of Members will be closed from Tuesday, 29 May 2018 to
Friday, 1 June 2018 (both days inclusive), during which period no transfer
of shares can be registered. In order to qualify for attending and voting at
the forthcoming annual general meeting, all transfers accompanied by the
relevant share certificates must be lodged with the Company’s Registrar in
Hong Kong, Tricor Investor Services Limited, not later than 4:30 p.m. on
Monday, 28 May 2018. Tricor Investor Services Limited is located at Level 22,
Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Articles of
Association although there are no restrictions against such rights under
company laws in the Cayman Islands.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Details of Company’s corporate governance policies and practices are set
out in the section “Corporate Governance Report” on pages 27 to 38 of this
annual report.

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

Details of the Company’s environmental policy and performance are set out
in the section “Environmental, Social and Governance Report” on pages 39 to
60 of this annual report.

EVENT AFTER REPORTING PERIOD

Details of the Group’s events after the reporting period are set out in note
44 to the consolidated financial statements.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee was established by the Board with written terms of
reference which are consistent with the provisions set out in the relevant
section of the CG Code.
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During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Audit Committee held
two meetings to consider, among other things, the financial reporting
matters. The Audit Committee is principally responsible for reviewing the
Company’s accounting principles and practices, discussing audit findings, risk
management and internal controls, and financial reporting matters with the
management of the Company. As at the date of this annual report, the Audit
Committee comprises three independent non-executive Directors, namely, Mr.
Cheung Ngai Lam (as chairman), Ms. Han Xingxing and Mr. Li Yu.

The consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2017 have been reviewed by the Audit Committee. The Audit
Committee is of the opinion that the preparation of such results are in
compliance with the relevant accounting standards, rules and regulations and

that adequate disclosures have been made.

The terms of reference of the Audit Committee are in line with the Corporate
Governance Code as set out in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules (the “"CG
Code"”) and are posted on the websites of the Company and the Stock
Exchange. Under its amended terms of reference dated 31 December 2015,
the Audit Committee is required, amongst other things, (1) to oversee the
relationship with the external auditors, (2) to review the Group’s preliminary
results, interim results and annual financial statements, (3) to monitor the
integrity of the financial statements of the Group, (4) to review the scope,
extent and effectiveness of the Group’s internal control system, internal audit
and risk management matters, and (5) to review the Group’s financial and

accounting policies.

Reanda Lau & Au Yeung (HK) CPA Limited resigned as auditor of the
Company with effect from 18 December 2015. Moore Stephen CPA Limited
was appointed as the auditor of the Company with effect from 18 December
2015 to fill the vacancy following Reanda Lau & Au Yeung (HK) CPA Limited's
resignation. An nomination proposal will be submitted to the forthcoming
annual general meeting of the Company to re-appoint Moore Stephens CPA

Limited as auditor of the Company.

On behalf of the Board

Tang Hon Kwo
Chairman

Hong Kong, 27 March 2018
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The Board is pleased to present this Corporate Governance Report of the
Group for the year ended 31 December 2017.

The Company is committed to maintaining good corporate governance
standard and procedures to ensure the integrity, transparency and quality
of disclosure in the interest of its Shareholders. The corporate governance
principles of the Company emphasize a quality board, transparency and
accountability to all Shareholders.

The Directors are in the opinion that the Company has complied with
the applicable code provisions in the CG Code during the year ended 31

December 2017 except the following deviation.

In respect of code provisions E.1.2 and A.6.7 of the Corporate Governance
Code, Mr. Tang Hon Kwo, being an executive Director and Chairman of the
Company, was unable to attend the extra-ordinary general meeting held on
6 January 2017 (the “2017 1st EGM") due to other commitments. Mr. Li
Wenfeng, being a non-executive Director was unable to attend the 2017 1st
EGM and the annual general meeting held on 2 June 2017 (the “2017 AGM")
due to other commitments. Ms. Tao Feng, being independent non-executive
Directors at that time, was unable to attend the 2017 1st EGM. Ms. Han
Xingxing, being independent non-executive Director was unable to attend the
2017 1st EGM, the 2017 AGM and the extra-ordinary general meeting held
on 10 November 2017 (the “2017 2nd EGM") due to other commitments.
Mr. Li Yu, being independent non-executive Director was unable to attend
the 2017 AGM and the 2017 2nd EGM due to other commitments. The
Company shall continue to communicate with the Directors and make best
effort to ensure their availabilities to attend general meetings and avoid time
conflict.

The Board is responsible for the leadership and control of the Company
and oversees the Group’s businesses, strategic decisions and performance.
The management are delegated with the authority and responsibilities by
the Board for the day-to-day management and operations of the Group. In
addition, the Board has also delegated various responsibilities to the board

committees. Further details of these committees are set out in this report.

All directors have full and timely access to all relevant information in relation
to the Company as well as the advice and services of the company secretary
of the Company (the “Company Secretary”), if and when required, with
a view to ensure that the Board procedures and all applicable rules and
regulations are followed. There are established procedures for Directors to
seek independent professional advice for them to discharge their duties and

responsibilities at the Company’s expenses, where appropriate.
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The Board is also responsible for performing the corporate governance duties
set out in the Code which included developing and reviewing the Company’s
policies and practices on corporate governance, training and continuous
professional development of Directors, and reviewing the Company’s
compliance with respect of the code provision in the Code and disclosures in
this report.

Composition

The Board currently comprises four executive Directors, a non-executive
Director and three independent non-executive Directors from different
business and professional fields. The Directors, including independent non-
executive Directors, have brought a wide spectrum of valuable business and
professional expertise, experiences and independent judgement to the Board
for its efficient and effective delivery of the Board function.

The compositions of the Directors in office during the year and up to the
date of this annual report are set out in the “Report of the Directors” in this
annual report on page 20.

The Board is principally responsible for formulating business strategies and
monitoring the performance of the business of the Group. The Board decides
on corporate strategies, approves overall business plans, evaluates the
Group's financial performance and management and reviews the financial
and internal control system. Other than the daily operational decisions which
are delegated to the management of the Group, most of the decisions are
taken by the Board. Specific tasks that the Board delegates to the Group's
management include the implementation of strategies approved by the
Board, the monitoring of operating budgets, the implementation of internal
control procedures and the ensuring of compliance with relevant statutory
requirements and other rules and regulations.

Chairman, CEO and Directors

At the date of the report, Mr. Tang Hon Kwo is the Chairman of the
Company. During the year, Mr. Lam Chi Keung was the CEO of the Company
and subsequently resigned on 9 March 2017. The roles of the Chairman and
executive directors are served by different individuals to achieve a balance
of authority and power. The main responsibility of the Chairman is to lead
the Board and manage its work to ensure that it effectively operates and
fully discharges its responsibilities. Supported by the members of committees
of the Board, the executive directors are responsible for the day- to-day
management of the Group's business, recommending strategies to the Board,
and determining and implementing operational decisions.

Directors’ and Officer’s Insurance

The Company has purchased the directors’ and officers’ liability insurance for
the members of the Board for the year to provide protection against potential
claims arising from the lawful discharge of duties by the Directors.
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Non-Executive Directors

All the existing non-executive Director and independent non-executive
Directors were appointed for a specific term. Each of the non-executive
Director and independent non-executive Directors has entered into a letter
of appointment with the Company for a specific term, subject to renewal,
retirement by rotation and re-election at the general meetings of the
Company in accordance with the Articles of Association.

Confirmation of Independence

Throughout the period and up to the date of this report, the Company
has complied with the requirements under Rules 3.10 of the Listing Rules.
It requires that at least one of the independent non-executive Directors
must have appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or related
financial management expertise. The Company has received written annual
confirmation from each independent non-executive Director of their
independence pursuant to the requirements of rule 3.13 of the Listing
Rules. As such, all independent non-executive Directors are independent in

accordance with the independence guidelines set out in the Listing Rules.

Appointments, Re-election and Removal of Directors
Each of the executive Directors and independent non-executive Directors has

entered into a service contract or letter of appointment with the Company
for a specific term. Such term is subject to her, his re-appointment by the
Company at an annual general meeting upon such Director’s retirement by
rotation at least once every three years and offering herself,/himself for re-
election. Pursuant to the Articles of Association, any Director appointed by
the Board to fill a casual vacancy shall hold office until the following general
meeting of the Company and shall then be eligible for re-election and any
Director appointed by the Board as an addition to the existing Board shall
hold office only until the next annual general meeting of the Company
and shall then be eligible for re-election. Also, pursuant to the Articles
of Association, at each annual general meeting, at least one-third of the
Directors for the time being (or, if their number is not three or a multiple of
three, then the number nearest to but not less than one-third) shall retire
from office by rotation, provided that every Director shall be subject to
retirement by rotation at least once every three years.

Compliance with the Model Code for Directors’
Securities Transactions

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as
its model code for securities transactions by Directors. Having made specific
enquiries, all the Directors confirmed that they have complied with the Model
Code during the period ended 31 December 2017.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

tREIHSE (K)

Directors’ continuous training and development

The Directors are committed to comply with the CG Code A.6.5 concerning
continuous professional development and understand the importance to
constantly enhance and refresh their knowledge and skills. In this connection,
the Directors have attended formal training seminars and, or study related
materials relevant to directors’ duties and responsibilities during the year. All
Directors have confirmed that they have met the minimum requirements under
the CG Code A.6.5 for the year ended 31 December 2017 and provided such
training record to the Company.

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

Details of Directors’ and the CEQ’s remuneration are set out in note 14 to the
consolidated financial statements.

Accordingly to Code B.1.5 of the CG Code, the annual remuneration of other
members of senior management (other than directors) by band for the year
ended 31 December 2017 is set out below:

Remuneration bands

FHMER

EEvRESIIRER
EFUNETHAHURBEEEEROLEERTA
A.6.5{6 7 B B 7T RS 1 K B BT AR B B A0 R PR AR
NRAEE -t EECRFALFEBESR
BRETZERFIHTG R, KA ZHEBER -
PREEHORRAIAGFREEZE_T—+tF+ A
=+t HLEFEBEICEEARTRAGSKZ &
KRN E AR A REAREFILE -

EENREREEBZHM

EERTHRABHZTHFBEIRN RSB HREM
FE14

RECEE AT ZTRBASG BE_T—+
FHtoA=1T-HLFERAEEEEMKE (T
BREESR) ZHFHERMOT :

Number of persons

HK$nil to HK$1,000,000
HK$1,000,001 to HK$3,000,000

T % 70%1,000,000 7T
1,000,001 7T £3,000,0007% 7T

BOARD COMMITTEES
The Board has established the following Board committees to oversee the
particular aspects of the Group’s affairs.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Board has established an Audit Committee with written terms of
reference in compliance with, where applicable, the Code of the Listing Rules.
The Audit Committee currently comprises three independent non-executive
Directors and is chaired by Mr. Cheung Ngai Lam and with Ms. Han Xingxing
and Mr. Li Yu as members. The primary duties of the Audit Committee are,
among others, to review the financial reporting system, risk management and
internal control system of the Group, to make recommendations to the Board
on the appointment, reappointment and removal of the external auditors, to
approve the remuneration and terms of engagement of the external auditors,
to review and monitor the external auditors’ independence and objectivity
and the effectiveness of the audit process in accordance with applicable
standard, and to review the annual and interim financial statements and
accounting policies of the Group. The Audit Committee meets at least twice
a year to carry out the aforesaid primary duties. Minutes of the meetings
are kept by the Company Secretary at the principal place of business of the
Company in Hong Kong.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

The members of the Audit Committee during the year and their attendance
were as follows:

ERELIRSE (|)

NTREAZERZBEERBEREEZHFEE

Meting attended/
Eligible to attend

Independent Non-Executive directors BHEZERE/
BIYFHTES HEEREEZER
Ms. Han Xingxing BEENT 212
Mr. Cheung Ngai Lam RERMEE 212
Mr. Li Yu FEEE

(appointed on 14 February 2017) (RZZ—tF_RATHNHEZME) 2/2

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Board has established the Remuneration Committee with written terms
of reference in compliance with, where applicable, the Code of the Listing
Rules. The Remuneration Committee currently comprises three independent
non-executive Directors and is chaired by Mr. Li Yu and with Mr. Cheung
Ngai Lam and Ms. Han Xingxing as members. The primary duties of the
Remuneration Committee are, among others, to make recommendations to
the Board on the Company’s policy and structure for all Directors’ and senior
management remuneration and to determine with delegated responsibility
the remuneration packages of executive Directors and senior management.
In fulfilling the functions, the Remuneration Committee will take into
consideration factors such as salaries paid by comparable companies,
respective time commitment and responsibilities of the Directors and senior
management and whether the remuneration packages are competitively
attractive to retain the Directors and senior management. The Remuneration
Committee meets at any time when necessary and desirable to carry out the
aforesaid duties but in any event at least once a year. Minutes of the meeting
are kept by the Company Secretary at the Company’s principal place of
business in Hong Kong.

The members of the Remuneration Committee during the year and their
attendance were as follows:

FHWEES

EFSCRNERBERRE TR RAIATE 2 % R
UHMEEE  WAEEPABEERBEEE -
HWEEERBH=-RBIIFNTESER  FEE
EREFEMERMEERBEER LT R/KE  F
ZEENIBRER(EFRE)MARALZEE
ENERERARZHFMBRERRERERTSIRD
2R NREE(REFeEREDRTESK
BEEEABZFRGE FHEZBEREITRE
BEBALRARMNES EERSREEA
BENEzKRRERE  UARFZEAETART
NRARSIEZRSRERABREEAR - HH
ZEENEBERERAERNGRERNET LR
B EEROAESFELAR-REGH RFWE

EERLBFERARRERB I TR EHEME

Meeting attended/
Eligible to attend

Independent Non-Executive directors BHEZEE
BYFHTES HEEREEZER
Ms. Han Xingxing BEERTL 171
Mr. Cheung Ngai Lam REMEHE 171
Mr. Li Yu FTEEE

(appointed on 14 February 2017) (RZZE—tF_ATHAEZE) 171
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

ERELIRSE ()

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Board has established the Nomination Committee with written terms of
reference in compliance with, where applicable, the Code of the Listing Rules.
The Nomination Committee currently comprises three independent non-
executive Directors and is chaired by Ms. Han Xingxing and with Mr. Cheung
Ngai Lam and Mr. Li Yu as members. The primary duties of the Nomination
Committee are, among others, to review the composition of the Board
and make recommendations to the Board on the selection of individuals
nominated for directorship. With a view to achieving and maintaining a
sustainable and balanced development, the Company sees diversity at the
Board level as an essential element in supporting its strategic objectives and
its sustainable development. The Nomination Committee meets at any time
when necessary and desirable to carry out the aforesaid duties but in any
event at least once a year. Minutes of the meeting are kept by the Company
Secretary at the principal place of business in Hong Kong.

The members of the Nomination Committee during the year and their
attendance were as follows:

REZES
EECNERBRARE EmRRMAEZZTRIK
VRZAEZEE  WNEEMPAREEBERE - 32
FEEERRH=-RBIFNTESER  HER
TEREIFEMRBMEERFTERERKE - 125
ZEGZIBRER(Eb e nEFazE
RREERE2REFEE NEREFGRE
B REBRAFIRENHENER AR
BEFEXBEZTEAXFHEINRBERRE
RARKEERNBRIE REZBENEER
EERARGHENAET LARE - EERNAE
FELBH—REH - RANELSRLEFERN
ARREBEBZETEEEH -

UTFAFAZREERURARES 2 HES -

Meeting attended/
Eligible to attend

Independent Non-Executive directors BHEZER/
BYFHTES HEEREEZER
Ms. Han Xingxing HERELZT 7
Mr. Cheung Ngai Lam KRBT & 11
Mr. Li Yu FEELE

(appointed on 14 February 2017) (R=ZE—+tF-_A+MAEZT) 1”1
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)
ERELIRSE (B)

BOARD MEETINGS AND GENERAL MEETINGS EZEg3RRRAE

The Board holds at least four meetings in a financial year and meets at any ZEZEXNEBEMKFERIBTOREE TR
other times as and when required, among others, to review financial and HmERRITHEIINGE N (HFEE) BIALAEE
internal control, risk management, corporate governance, company strategy ~ Z ISR AEES - RBRER BEEE  ARK
and operating performance of the Group. Minutes of the Board meetings are ~ E§R&IBXRIE - EEC L HLHA A INMERT -
kept by the Company Secretary for record and are available for inspection by ~ Al EE R AR AIZEAMER -

the Directors and auditors of the Company.

The individual attendance record of each Director in office during the year REBZE-_Z—+F+_A=+—-—HIEFEEFEZ
ended 31 December 2017 at the Board meetings and general meetings is set HEEZREFESEBZLIRERG Z2HEBE LT
out below: U

BHEzEE/
HEERHEZESR
Meetings attended/
Eligible to attend
Exzges REXE
BEEMNE Board General

Name of Directors Meetings Meetings

Executive directors : HITES:
Mr. Tang Hon Kwo (Chairman) BEXEE(FE) 18/20 2/3
Mr. Law Kin Fat BEREE

(appointed on 29 June 2017) (RZE—+tFX AZ+NBEZT) 12/12 11
Mr. Ma Zhi BEEE 14/20 213
Mr. Sze Siu Bun Be 3 5 14/20 0/3
Mr. Ip Ka Po BRELE

(resigned on 7 February 2017) (RZZ—+F-RF+HEHT) 11 11
Mr. Lam Chi Keung (Chief Executive Officer) WEREE (TTHARH)

(resigned on 9 March 2017) (R=—Z—tF=ZBNBEIT) 8/8 171
Non-Executive director : FHITES
Mr. Li Wenfeng (Deputy Chairman) ENEEE(FIFE) 12/20 173
Independent Non-Executive Director: BYFHTES:
Mr. Cheung Ngai Lam REMELE 19/20 3/3
Ms. Han Xingxing BEERL 12/20 0/3
Ms. Tao Feng fi & 22 +

(resigned on 14 February 2017) (RZZ—tF A +MHEET) 01 on
Mr. Li Yu FEEE

(appointed on 14 February 2017) (RZZF—+tF-_A+HBAEZT) 18/19 0/2

All current Directors are subject to retirement by rotation in accordance with FIERAEEFHAEETHBMERMARHTREZ
the Articles of Association. HE e
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The Company has not set up a corporate governance committee. However,
the Board has adopted the written terms of reference on Corporate
Governance in compliance with the Code of the Listing Rules and the Board
is responsible for performing the corporate governance duties set out therein.
The Board has reviewed the Company’s corporate governance policies and
practices, the training and continuous professional development of Directors
and senior management, the Company’s policies and practices on compliance
with legal and regulatory requirements, the Company’s code of conduct and
the Company’s compliance with the Code and the disclosure in this Corporate
Governance Report.

Ms. Wong Sze Wing (“Ms. Wong"”) is the Company Secretary of the Company
and a full time employee of the Group. During the year ended 31 December
2017, Ms. Wong has duly complied with the relevant professional training
requirements under Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules.

Directors’ Responsibilities for the Financial Statements
The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the financial
statements of the Group and have adopted the accounting principles
generally accepted in Hong Kong and complied with the requirements of
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards which also include Hong Kong
Accounting Standards and Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants and the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance. As at 31 December 2017, Directors are not
aware of any material uncertainties relating to events or conditions which
may cast significant doubt upon the Company’s ability to continue as a going
concern. Accordingly, the Directors have prepared the financial statements of
the Company on a going concern basis. The accounting systems and internal
control of the Company are designed to prevent any misappropriation of the
Company’s assets, any unauthorised transactions as well as to ensure the
accuracy of the accounting records and the true and fairness of the financial
statements.

The Board also acknowledges its responsibility to present a balanced, clear
and understandable financial report with sufficient disclosures as required
under the Listing Rules, and to report to the regulators as to information
required to be disclosed pursuant to the statutory requirements. The
reporting responsibilities of the Company’s independent auditor are set out in
the Independent Auditor’s Report on pages 61 to 71.
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Risk management and internal control

The Board recognises it has overall responsibility of the Group’s risk
management and internal control systems and reviews their effectiveness
on an ongoing basis. The board oversees the management in the design,
implementation and monitoring of the risk management internal control

systems.

Risk assessment and internal control

In assisting the Board for evaluating and determining the risks it is willing
to take in achieving its strategic objective, the board has engaged an
independent advisory firm to conduct a risk assessment. The assessment
adopted a risk model, a framework for helping the board to identify,
evaluate and prioritise the nature and extend of the business risks including
strategic risks, operation risks, financial risks as well as information risks. The
assessment includes interviewing the directors and senior management along
with qualitative and quantitative analysis to evaluate the significance/impact

and likelihood in occurrence of the risks.

The management has reviewed the results of the risk assessment and has
provided a confirmation to the Board that the Group has effective risk
management and internal control systems to provide reasonable, though not
absolute, assurance for mitigating the risks that may deter the Group from
achieving its business objectives in any material aspects. The management
reviews and evaluates the design of internal controls in place and monitors
their effectiveness on a regular basis, and reports to the Audit Committee on
any significantly issues. The Group has established a defined management
structure with clear lines of reporting, limits of authority, operational policies
and procedures to ensure reliability of operational efficiency and safety,

financial reporting and compliance with applicable laws and regulations.

Inside information

The Company recognises the significance of consistent practices of fair
disclosure with the aim of disclosing inside information in a timely and
accurate manner. The Company has a policy with regard to the principles
and procedures for handling and disseminating its inside information in
compliance with the requirement under Part XIVA of the Securities and
Futures Ordinance (Cap 571 of the laws of Hong Kong) and the Listing Rules.
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The handling and dissemination of inside information of the Company is
strictly controlled and remains confidential including but not limited by the
following ways:

3 Restrict access to inside information, if practicable, to the highest
level of management/or to a limited number of employees on a need-
to-know basis;

. Reminder to employees who are in possession of inside information

are fully conversant with their obligations to preserve confidentiality;

. Ensure appropriate confidentiality agreements are in place when the
Company enters into significant negotiations or dealings with third
party; and

. Inside information is handled and communicated by designated

persons to outside third party. The Board and the senior management
review the safety measures regularly to ensure inside information is

properly handled and disseminated.

Internal audit function

The Audit Committee has outsourced the internal audit function to an
independent advisory firm, Moore Stephens Advisory Services Limited that
has conducted the risk assessment. Based on the risk assessment results,
the Audit Committee has worked with the internal auditors to develop
the Group's three years internal audit plan. The plan is a rolling plan; it
will be updated at least once a year according to the changing business
environment and risk exposure. This year, the internal auditors conducted
internal audit in certain areas of the money lending business and securities
investment and brokerage services business. The internal auditors did not
identify any significant internal control weaknesses; they reported the
findings and recommendations for improvements to the Audit Committee.
The Board adopted the results of the internal audit report and ensured that
the management has implemented the recommendations for improvement
stipulated by the internal audits.

Based on the risk assessment, the risk management and internal control
systems that management has put in place, and the results of the internal
audits; the Board concluded that the Group has effective risk management
and internal control systems covering all material aspects including financial,

operational and compliance controls.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

As at 31 December 2017, the fees paid and payable to the Group’s auditor in
respect of their statutory audit and other audit services provided to the Group
were as follows:

BREES
EEEZRE
IEETE BIZIR

Type of services
Statutory audit services
Non-statutory audit services

ERELIRSE (|)

BET N &
BE-T—+5+-A=+—0  HARERUE
AARBRHZ AEERRECERRBHDN
BEMTFHEZEAOT :

Amount

=8

(HK$'000)
(FET)

1,819
294

2,113

INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Board recognises the importance of good communication with the
Shareholders and is committed to providing clear and full performance
information of the Group to the Shareholders. Information in relation to the
Group is disseminated to Shareholders in a timely manner through a number
of formal channels, which include interim and annual reports, announcements
and circulars. Additional information of the Group is also available to the
Shareholders on the Group’s website. The Group values feedback from the
Shareholders to foster investor relationships.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Pursuant to article 58 of the Articles, any one or more shareholders holding
at the date of deposit of the requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid
up capital of the Company carrying the right of voting at general meetings
of the Company shall at all times have the right, by written requisition
to the Board or the Company Secretary of the Company, to require an
extraordinary general meeting to be called by the Board for the transaction
of any business specified in such requisition; and such meeting shall be held
within two months after the deposit of such requisition. If within twenty-one
days of such deposit the Board fails to proceed to convene such meeting, the
requisitionist(s) himself (themselves) may do so in the same manner, and all
reasonable expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure
of the Board shall be reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the Company. The
aforesaid written requisition must state the objects of the meeting and must
be signed by the relevant shareholder(s) and deposited at the Company’s
head office in Hong Kong at Rooms 2501-14, 25th Floor, Sun Hung Kai
Centre, 30 Harbour Road, Wan Chai, Hong Kong.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

tREIHSE (K)

The procedures for Shareholders to propose a person for election as a
director of the Company are available on the Group’s designated website for
corporate communications (www.atvgroup.com.hk).

Enquiries raised by any Shareholder can be forwarded to the Board at the
Company’s head office in Hong Kong at Rooms 2501-14, 25th Floor, Sun
Hung Kai Centre, 30 Harbour Road, Wan Chai, Hong Kong.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

There is no change in the Company’s constitutional documents during the
year.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

INTRODUCTION

This year, we continue to present our report in accordance with the Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited ESG Reporting Guide (“ESG Guide"”), under
Appendix 27 of the Listing Rules.

For the year ended 31 December 2017 (the “Period”), the Group primarily
engaged in four major business streams including (i) Fabrics and Trading
Business; (ii) money lending business; (iii) securities investment and brokerage

services business; and (iv) media, cultural and entertainment business.

The report content is focused mainly on the production factories and offices
of printing and dyeing business in Fujian, and the Group’s Hong Kong
headquarters office, which are the areas that represent the majority of the
Group's social, environmental and economic impacts.

MATERIALITY ASSESSMENT

Following the discussion with our senior management and operational staff,
we have identified the ESG issues relevant to the Group, the identified ESG
issues have been assessed by considering their materiality and importance to
our principle of activities, stakeholders as well as the Group. The ESG issues
considered to be material are listed below:
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)
BRE WERELHEE (R

ESG aspects as set forth in the ESG Reporting Guide Material ESG issues

(RE HERELAHSEDTRNBRE - HERERER EZHERE - HERERSE

A. Environmental
R

A1l Emissions

e

A2 Use of resources

BREA

A3 The environment and natural resources
RERRAER

B. Social
re
B1 Employment
ER

B2 Health and safety
REEZ S

B3 Development and training

R RE
B4 Labour standards

HBTER
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Emission from vehicle usage

B A AR

Sewage discharge

VRS 7 137

Waste gas emission

BE SR

Greenhouse gas emissions

B =R AR

Hazardous waste gas emission

BEBERIEN

Hazardous solid waste emission

BEEEEDHER

Non-hazardous solid waste emission

FREZEREEMEK

Electricity

=
Water

K

Steam gas

ER

Packaging materials for finished goods

R M2 BEMH

Measures in reducing environmental impact
REHREZZENER

Labour practices

BTER

Workplace health and safety
TIESfERER S

Staff development and training
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Anti-child and forced labour
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)
BRE WERELEE(R)

Material ESG issues

EEWERE - HERERSE

ESG aspects as set forth in the ESG Reporting Guide

(BE - -HEREAREEDAANRSE HERERER

B5  Supply chain management . Supplier management
HEEER HrEmeEn
B6  Product responsibility . Product and service responsibility, quality assurance,
EmEE customer service, safeguarding customer assets
EmMBRBEE EERE TPRE REZFPEE
B7  Anti-corruption . Anti-corruption policy
k&5 REFBE
B8  Community investment . Community involvement
HERE tEmeE
Environmental A. RE

The Group’s Fabrics and Trading Business is closely related to
environmental protection and the usage of natural resources. The
Fabrics and Trading Business is operated in PRC with production
factories located at Fujian Province. It represents the majority of the
environmental issues of the Group. The Fabric and Trading Business
subsidiaries of the Group strictly comply with the laws and regulations
in the PRC, including but not limited to the “Law of the People’s
Republic of China on the Prevention and Control of Atmospheric
Pollution”, the “Law of the People’s Republic of China on the
Prevention and Control of Water Pollution”, the “Environmental
Protection Law of the People’s Republic of China” and the “Law

AEENHHRESEBRRERENS
RERNERE B - REERPEL
BOREESER REETRUNEE
B AREKRBOBEERRNERARE
HET - AEEMHRE ZEBHE A
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RAMBIAOTRPRE) - (PEARKM
BURBREE) ~ (hEE AR M E 58 R
MERREVDAE)ARETHEBRNEES
FBR  REFRPAHEMMLIT R

of the People’s Republic of China on Prevention and Control of MIFAE - 22 R5 RYITEMER S BE KR
Environmental Pollution by Solid Waste”, as well as the local rules TZAE o

and standards in the PRC in respect of prevention and control of
environmental pollution of discarded dangerous chemicals, standard
of air pollutants and integrated wastewater discharge standard.

The Group’s Hong Kong headquarters office only has indirect carbon
emissions from electricity due to the business nature of the office.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)
BRE WERELHEE (R

42

Emissions from vehicle usage

Nitrogen oxides (NOx) and particulate matters (PM)
emissions

During our operation, the usage of private cars and light good
vehicles generate the emission of nitrogen oxides and particulate
matters. The approximate amount of nitrogen oxides (NOx) and
particulate matters produced from our operation in China regions are
shown in the table below:

Number of
private cars

Region

China [ 2

(Note: only business in China region has private cars and light good vehicles)

In respect of reducing the nitrogen oxides and particulate matters
emissions, the Group is committed to reduce and ensure the
efficient usage of private cars and light good vehicles. The Group
has implemented the following measures so as to achieve the
environmental friendly approach:

. Avoid peak hour traffic

3 Encourage the use of public transport

3 Encourage the use of bicycle

. Utilise the vehicle usage by car pooling with different staff
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Number of
light good Total NOx Total PM

vehicles emissions (g) emissions (g)
BREH NOXxHE X PMEE
HE Bne (%) wnae (=)

5 132,438.71 9,637.29
(3 EPEMEEBEREARERELEE)
RIS REY LB TR F IR AEE
BB R RERE R ERLR
EREAEE  RRERBERFFTH K
SEEEHIATER
. AR ER R
. HEERARRE
. SEERATE

. FEBETHE  HEEREMA IR



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

BRE HERELIHRSE ()

Sewage discharge
Stable water supply is crucial to the Group’s dyeing operation in

Fujian’s factory where the Group currently sources water from the
local government. The Group’s requires the input of water resources
in several production processes and the processing of finished goods
such as sourcing, bleaching, dyeing, mercerising and shrinking. The
amount of sewage discharge produced from our factory is shown in
the table below.

China ==l

The Group is aware of the potential environmental impact of the
sewage generated by the Group’s sourcing, bleaching, dyeing,
mercerising and shrinking processes. The use of sodium hydroxide
within the mercerising process, generate waste water containing
diluted sodium hydroxide which is toxic and harmful. The waste
water generated from the manufacturing process contains high value
of Chemical Oxygen Demand (“COD"). COD is the total amount of
oxygen required to chemically oxidise the biodegradable and non-
biodegradable organic. Higher COD levels mean a greater amount of
oxidisable organic material in the sewage discharge, which will reduce
dissolved oxygen (DO) levels. A reduction in DO can lead to anaerobic
conditions, which is deleterious to higher aquatic life forms. Waste
water currently discharged by the Group is processed by a third-party
contractor. Waste water treatment service is charged in a monthly
basis according to emission volume respectively.

In terms of waste water recycling, the Group is continuously looking
possible way to enhance recycling of waste water. The cooling
water involved in singeing, shrinking, drying and the waste water
produced from dehydration are all collected and reused for bleaching
and dyeing process. The Group also intends to construct its own
waste water treatment plan, recycle sodium hydroxide and reuse the
waste water from mercerising machines into scouring and bleaching
machines for desizing fabrics, reducing waste water discharge
and concentration of dilute sodium hydroxide in the waste water
produced. Besides, the Group also installed automatic facilities for
mercerising machine, to enhance efficient use of alkali and reduce

waste water emission.
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Sewage discharge

(tonnes)

75 K BEBR ()

373,953
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)
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44

Waste gas emissions

Waste gas emission is minor for the Group’s fabric manufacturing
business. Singeing, sueding and setting are the major processes in
fabric processing and printing business to remove impurities in raw
fabrics. Within the running process of singeing, sueding and setting
machines, unintentional air pollutants like particulate matters and
fumes are generated.

A licensed third party was outsourced by the Group to carry out an
inspection assessment in 2017 regarding to the concentration level
of waste gas emissions from the singeing and setting machines. The
concentration levels are shown in the following table:

HE 25 55 5l

Machine type

Setting machines T B 1
Singeing machines e

According to the inspection results from the licensed third party,
the Group has complied with“Law of the People’s Republic of China
on the Prevention and Control of Atmospheric Pollution” and the
“Environmental Protection Law of the People’s Republic of China”.

With respect to the reduction of waste gas emissions from our
production machines, the Group is currently engaging a third
engineering company to apply purification system into our setting
machines. Such purification system is expected to reduce the waste
gas emission from the setting process.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)
BRE WERELEE(R)

Greenhouse gas emissions
Apart from the direct emission of particulate matters and fumes,

we have indirect greenhouse gases emissions (Scope 2), principally
resulting from electricity consumed at the factories in Fujian and
office in Hong Kong. In respect to the approximate indirect amount of
carbon dioxide ("CO,") generated from our electrical usage in Hong
Kong's office and China’s factory, the figures are shown in the table
below:

Region

Hong Kong B
China =8
Total A&t

In terms of reducing the carbon footprint, The Group has
implemented guidelines and policies for energy saving management
which include in-house rules and regulations for both office and
factory employees to follow. Please refer to “Resources consumption
— electricity saving measures”.

Hazardous waste gas emission

The Group is aware of the potential environmental impact of the
hazardous waste gas generated by the Group’s setting processes.
Singeing and setting machines are used for printing fabrics and there
is hazardous waste emission during the production process. A licensed
third party was outsourced by the Group to carry out an inspection
assessment in 2017 regarding to the concentration level of hazardous
waste gas emissions from the singeing and setting machines. The
concentration levels are shown in the following table:

Machine type 28 Rl

Setting machines TE AU M

BERBHBR
WEEPRETR T RERS RN
BUHRERME (E2) TERNERT
BREEMBEEEES - BREENSE
BEFETHERAENMMEELN —A
et (=8 BOE - AMBEDT
KA

Total CO, generated

equivalent (tonnes)
—EEmESE
BEE (M)

12.8
7,033.9
7,046.7
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Average concentration level (mg/m?3)
THRE(BERBIY LK)
Volatile Organic
Compounds Formaldehyde
(“voc”) (“HCHO")
ERaaK
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30.29 1.23
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According to the inspection results from the licensed third party,
the Group has complied with Emission Standard of Pollutants
for Synthetic Leather and Artificial Leather Industry (GB21902-
2008) and passed National Standard of Air quality-Determination
of Formaldehyde-Acetylacetone Spectrophotometric Method (GB/T
15516-1995).

As mentioned above, the Group is currently engaging a third
engineering company to apply purification system into our setting
machines. Such purification system is expected to reduce the
hazardous waste gas emission from the setting process.

Hazardous solid waste emission

For the process of printing fabrics, minimal type of hazardous solid
waste is generated during the production process of printing fabrics.
The Group’s production process involved the following hazardous
solid waste emissions figures:

B 38 51

Waste type

Oil polluted fabrics and waste oil SRS A0 R K B e

The Group is dedicated to proper management of the hazardous
solid waste. Specific area is assigned for the temporary storage of
hazardous waste for safety purpose. Licensed third party is engaged

for the collection of the waste for recycle and reuse purpose.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)
BRE WERELEE(R)

Non-hazardous solid waste emission
Besides hazardous solid waste, numerous types of non-hazardous

solid waste are generated during the production process of printing
fabrics. The Group is dedicated to managing waste in a responsible
way and strives to optimise the use of resources.. The Group recorded
the following non-hazardous waste emissions figures:

Waste Collected by external
RIIMBEEREMKES
BERBRANED

qualified units for recycle

and reuse purpose

FEEEREMHER
BEZEEBEDI BRI IFBES
EXZEFEZTEREY ASEHIRE
BEAEENARNEREYL IRELER
B ARERSUTIHBSEDTRE
% -

Amount (kg) Amount (pieces)

Wasted fabrics EE AR

Suede dust, hatha dust EEE - fERER
Plastic container and iron drum BRARRERE
Total waste recycled B EY B E

Waste Collected by the Sanitation

EE(Tx) BE (#)
268,440 N/A TiE A
12,800 N/A R iE A

N/A i A 24,118
281,240 24,118

Amount (kg)

Department for disposal

Sludge e
Non-recyclable domestic and
industrial waste

RIEBEWEE

Total waste disposed

As a corporate citizen to enhance the optimise recycling and reusing
of our waste, the Group’s non-hazardous wastes like wasted
fabrics, suede dust, hatha dust, plastic container and scrap iron are
collected by external qualified units for recycle and reuse purposes.
General garbage which is non-recyclable is cleaned by the sanitation
department regularly.

RELBPKREFERELOEY

EE(Tx)

2,082,170

B [ M B A 5 7 9 % T R W

41,040
2,123,210
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Use of Resources
The Group adheres to the concept of energy conservation and

emission reduction for green production. The major resources used
by the Group are principally attributed to electricity in Fujian's factory
and Hong Kong's headquarter; water and steam gas consumed
at the factory in Fujian, while the water charges of Hong Kong's
headquarter is included in the management service fee. We aim
to improve our energy utilisation efficiency to achieve low-carbon
practices and emission reduction throughout our production and
operation, and strive to save the resources. The Group’s electricity,
water, steam are shown in the following tables:

Electricity consumption

Hong Kong BE
China Fh
Total &%

Water consumption

BEREH

REBEBFHERSNES  BRKEE
E-AKEEANTIZERIERRET
BREBEBNED  BWETEOEREAK
R MBEBEANFKERSAEEE
W BAFIE B IERIER BIAIREEIRE B
FoERMANEEMKEFERERTF
M BHHEER - AEENES -
KREABEWTRAT

R
il
b

Electricity consumption

(Kwh)
REE (TRE)

16,160
8,867,794
8,883,954

K E

Water consumption

(Cubic meters)

Rk & (Z75K)

China =8

Steam consumption

China B
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291,245

Low pressure Medium pressure

steam consumption steam consumption

(tonnes)

mEZSAE (§)

(tonnes)

BRSNS AE (W)

139,881 32,591
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Intensity of resources consumption
As the Group is having its major resources consumption in Fujian’s

factory in China region for production, the intensity is based on
the total fabric production (meters) comparing to different kinds of
resources consumption from Fujian’s factory. In the review period, we
have the following intensity figures:

Type of resources

consumption BIREFEER
Electricity %

Water K

Low pressure steam KEZA
Medium pressure steam PR A

The Group is dedicated to maintain consumption saving management
for electricity, water and steam by applying in-house rules and
regulations for both office and factory employees to follow. Saving
measures include:

Electricity saving measures
3 Applied variable frequency air compressor to reduce electricity

consumption.

3 Applied energy saving initiatives including maximising the use
of natural light and energy-saving lighting systems, applying
optimal temperature setting of air-conditioning; switching off
air-conditioning systems and lighting in vacant working areas
after operation hours; turning off office equipment when not
in use.

EREREE (K)

BRI & E
HRAEENETZEREERAR T RBR
BEREIBNAE SCERARENENER
IRAEEMBHEE CK) Y FTERT R E
HMERNE - RE BB BMSEEUT
BEHT

Consumption Intensity per metre
figures of fabric production

EEERH A

5 7 BB S FE 3R
8,867,794 (Kwh) 4.531185 (Kwh)
(FRE) (FFEF)
291,245 137.965

(Cubic meters) (Cubic meters)
(SLFHXK) (3275 K)
139,881 (tonnes) 287.2557 (tonnes)
(188) (1g)

32,591 (tonnes) 1232.905 (tonnes)
(188) (1g)
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Water saving measures

Reused water produced from singeing machines and pre-
shrinking machines for production process.

Modified water tanks of scouring and bleaching machines,
mercerising machine and dyeing machines to reduce
storage water surface areas, thus reduce water and steam
consumption.

Modified scouring and bleaching machines to shorten the
production process and reduce electricity, water and steam
consumption.

Steam saving measures

Replaced heating facilities in scouring and bleaching machines
to enhance the effectiveness.

Applied high-capacity roller into dryer machines, reducing
30% of water retained in fabrics, thus saving steam
consumption.

Installed humidity meter and set humidity standard to control
the process of drying and avoid overheating, thus reducing

steam consumption.

Optimised draining valve of dryer machines to reduce outflow

of steam gas.

Recycled steam from heat-setting stenter and various
machines.
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Packaging materials
The packaging materials used by the Group are mainly from raw

fabrics packaging bags, cartons, paper tubes, auxiliaries bags and
other sundry packaging materials. The Group recorded the following
packaging materials usage:

Packaging materials BEME

BRH
AEBEERANQENHEERRA Q%
KA BT DERRAGLERER
MR AREHEOENHAEMT

Amount (Kg)
AR (T%)

Raw fabrics packaging bags, cartons, MmEER - HHE -4
paper tubes and other sundry items EEmE
Auxiliaries bags Bh A £%

BEMHAH

Total packaging materials

The Group is dedicated to consume the least packaging materials as
possible. It is the Group’s practice to implement production planning
in a timely basis so as to assess the approximate amount of packaging
materials needed for the period. The Group is also committed to
source recyclable packaging materials from suppliers with eco-friendly
practice and engagement.

Environment and natural resources

In terms of minimising the environmental impact, the Group has put
its initiative in reducing the emission of sewage discharge, waste gas,
hazardous waste gas as well as the electricity and water consumption

as above mentioned.

With respect to raw materials usage, raw fabrics are the main raw
materials which include unfinished pure cotton, polyester cotton,
synthetic fibre, combined fabrics and nylon cotton. Since these are
processed materials from cotton which can be widely obtained, thus
the impact to the natural resources is not significant. The Group will
closely monitor the progress of the application of the purification
system of our setting machines so reduction of the hazardous waste
gas emission could be put into practice in the closest future.

To develop a green approach at the factory and offices, we have
developed the following measures for our daily operation at the end
of 2017 so as to minimise the impact brought to the environmental
and natural resources consumption.

K E At

127,735
17,730
145,465
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Factory machine and office equipment
3 Switch off computers, printers, machines and other electronic
devices after office hours or when leaving the workplace to

reduce power consumption.

3 Affix save energy posters near the main switches in order to
remind our employees of energy saving.

3 The last-man-out is dedicated to check and turn off all
machines and equipments.

Lighting
3 Switch off non-essential lighting if there are only few people
working in the office or factory.

. After office hours or during lunch time of business days, only
turning on light for areas essential for safety and security
purpose.

. The last-man-out is dedicated to check and turn off all
lighting of the factory and offices.

Water

3 Conduct daily checking and maintenance of water supply
facilities. Employee should report to the management office
when water supply facilities are out of work or damaged.

Other practice

3 Encourage duplex printing, reuse of single-side used paper.

3 Refill instead of new pen when used up.

3 Reduce paper printing by conducting e-filing.

. Encourage employees to adjust the margins and font size of

documents so as to optimise the use of paper.

As a socially responsible enterprise, protecting nature and the
environment has become our inescapable social responsibility, the
Group constantly looks for ways to maximise benefits with minimal
resource consumption and environmental impact, and continue to
strive for sustainable development.
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Social Commitment

Employment and Labour Practices

The Group reckons that employees are the most valuable assets
of an enterprise and also the cornerstone for sustaining corporate
development. It is always the Group’s initiative to provide a fair
and competitive compensation package to attract and retain quality
talents, in the form of a basic salary, incentives bonus, mandatory
provident fund, and other fringe benefits. Remuneration packages
are reviewed periodically. The Group also has a set of comprehensive
human resources management policy to support human resources
function. The policies include compensation and dismissal,
recruitment and promotion, working hours, appraisal, training and
benefits.

The Group has always strictly observed the relevant legislations in the
PRC and Hong Kong regarding the equal employment opportunities,
child labour and forced labour. The Group abides by the employment
regulations, relevant policies and guidance of the relevant jurisdictions
where it operates, including the “Employment Ordinance”,
the”Employees’ Compensation Ordinance” and the “Occupational
Safety and Health Ordinance”, etc. in Hong Kong; and the”Labour
Law of the People’s Republic of China” and the “Labour Contract Law
of the People’s Republic of China” in the PRC.

The Group has its internal procedure to report employees’ information
regularly in order to review employment practices so as to avoid
any non-compliance. Furthermore, the Group strictly complies with
the internal recruitment process during recruitment to ensure no
employment of child labour and forced labour in any form. The Group
also strives to establish harmonious labour relationships. We protect
the rights of staff in terms of providing rest and leave days according
to relevant government laws and regulations. During the year, the
Group was not aware of any material non-compliance with relevant
standards, rules and regulations regarding operations and activities,
labour practices.

Health and Safety

The Group is an investment holding company located in Hong Kong
and the nature of the daily operation is mainly office-based where it
is relatively low safety risk profile. The Group has equipped its office
with suitable fire-fighting facilities like fire extinguishers. Designated
staff would conduct inspection from time to time so as to ensure the
exit passageway clear and unblocked. In addition, the management
office of our headquarter office organises fire drills from time to time.
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The Group’s subsidiary in Fujian engages in processing, printing and
sales of finished fabrics. The Group strongly believes that ensuring
stable and safety production is the most important social responsibility
to its shareholders, employees and the community where it situates.
Therefore, the Group has always regarded ensuring safety and stable
production as one of the priorities in corporate management. Sound
management systems have been established in occupational health
and safety in strict compliance with the regulations on occupational
health and safety the PRC.

As above mentioned, the factories of the Group have engaged third
licensed party to periodically review the waste gas concentration level
of machinery and equipment. At the same time, we continuously
reduce workload intensity for frontline staff and improve the working
environment.

The Fujian factory of the Group had obtained Quality Management
System Certification (ISO9001) and Environmental Management
System Certification (ISO14001) formulated by the International
Organisation for Standardisation (“ISO"”) and they were certified,
thus effectively guaranteeing the establishment of a healthy, safe
and stable working environment. Daily operations are inspected
by relevant department assigned by the Group, according to the
occupational health and safety requirements of the respective
company. Any non-compliance will also be identified and rectified on
a timely basis.

Development and Training

We believe that cultivation and retention of talents is the core of
the Group’s development and is essential in strengthening the
competitiveness of the Group. We always consider our staff as our
strategic partners and provide various in-housing training courses to
enhance their job-related skills. During the year, we formulate quality
management and environment management training programs to
update our staff with the most updated standard of 1SO9001 and
ISO14001. These two programs include quality assurance training in
production process, inspection assurance of materials received from
supplier, health and safety precautions in using production equipment
and machinery as well as customer relationship management.

In daily operation, the Group provides induction training for new
employees and experienced employees act as mentors to guide new
comers. We believe such arrangement can be the best practice to
facilitate communication and team spirit, also improve technical skills
and managerial capability and encourage the learning and further
development of employees at all levels.
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The Group will continue to intensify its efforts to promote staff
training programs which we believe that by means of offering
comprehensive training opportunities, it could help providing the

necessary protection for talent reserves for corporate development.

Labour Standards

The Group strictly complies with the labour legislations and the
relevant guidelines in China and Hong Kong. In Fujian factory, we
have set up policy to ensure our business complied with the “Labor
Law of the People’s Republic of China”, the “Labor Contract Law of
the People’s Republic of China” and “Law of the People’s Republic
of China on the Protection of Disabled Persons”, etc. In Hong
Kong, we have human resources policy to ensure the compliance
with all applicable rules and regulations such as the “Minimum
Wage Ordinance”, the “Sex Discrimination Ordinance”, the “Race
Discrimination Ordinance” and the “Disability Discrimination
Ordinance” etc. It is also the Group policy in both China and
Hong Kong region that no child and forced labor is permitted for
employment. During the year, the Group does not aware of any non-
compliance with relevant standards, rules and regulations.

Supply Chain Management
Raw fabrics, dyeing chemicals and fabrics processing chemicals are
the major materials used by the Group’s Fujian factory in its fabrics

processing where they are all procured in the PRC.

The Group implements supplier management in accordance with
internal guidance which governs the engagement of suppliers.
Suppliers are chosen subjecting to screening and evaluation
procedures among the suppliers, based on the quality and price.
Also, to ensure supplier capability in quality assurance, safety and
environmental responsibility, field visit and investigation is conducted.
The investigation reviews the production capacity, technology level,
quality assurance capabilities, supply capacity, safety and environment
management qualifications if needed. Only the highly qualified
suppliers complied with regulatory requirements are eligible for the
supplier selection by the Group. The Group also carry out regular
assessment on suppliers’ overall capabilities, assets position, nature
of business, reputation in the industry, quality of products, goods
delivery and compliance with law and regulations.
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As customers are becoming more concerned about environmental
issues, and stress the importance of using environmentally friendly
materials. The Group will continue to act as a corporate citizen in
communicating and stressing those environmental issues to our
suppliers. We aim at strengthening the cooperation with suppliers,
coordinating with them in product trials, and work with them to
produce socially responsible products.

Product and Service Responsibility
Customer service

The Group’s in-house research and development team has been
devoting to new products development to suit the changing market
demand as well as the improvement of the Group’s existing products
and production processes. The Group has established long-term
relationships with our customers comprising apparel retailers, garment
manufacturers and fabrics suppliers.

We also believe that customer satisfaction is always the foundation
of an enterprise’s survival. The Group is always trying to improve
its service quality and responding immediately to customers’ needs
in terms of delivery lead time, quality and price. The Group has
established a compliant and handling policy as well as customer
communication where questionnaire is sent to customer, we
believe customer’s feedback is always material for an enterprise’s
development. We are always trying to improve and address
complaints or feedback quickly to resolve any issues.

Product quality and safety management

The Group is committed to achieve high product and service quality
by implementing stringent and comprehensive quality control
procedures. We have implemented quality control manual throughout
the production process form purchase of raw fabrics and dyeing
chemicals to product packaging for employee to follow. Raw fabrics
are inspected to ensure uniformity in density, thickness and texture
before putting into production so as to minimise possible disruptions
during the operation. During the year, the amount of defective
products produced by the Group was minimal and complaints by
customers in respect of defective products were insignificant.

Intellectual property right protection

The Group markets its products under its own trademarks. The
trademarks “5%&" and “ == " "were issued by the Trademark Office of
the State Administration for Industry and Commerce of the PRC and
the Trade Marks Registry of the Intellectual Property Department in
Hong Kong respectively. During the year, no claim has been made in
relation to infringement of intellectual property rights.
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Money lending operation

The Group’s money lending business is conducted by Rende. Rende
is a licensed money lender in Hong Kong under the Money Lenders
Ordinance. The Group has established standard operation procedures
to evaluate the trustworthiness, creditability, usage of funds of
potentials borrowers. During the year, the Group has strictly adhered
to relevant rules and regulations including the “Money Lenders
Ordinance”.

Securities investment and brokerage services business

The Group has a set of principles guiding our investment decisions.
We assess companies and are concerned with their transparency
and accountability, corporate governance and how they behave with
respect to environmental, social and workers’ rights. It is the Group
intention to invest in companies with good practices in dealing with

environmental, social and governance issues.

The Group’s brokerage services business is conducted by Sincere
Securities. The Group has established standard operation manual in
assessing customer’s creditability, capability and source of funds. The
Group has also established policy to ensure our brokerage services
business is in compliance with “Code of Conduct for Persons Licensed
by or Registered with the Securities and Futures Commission”,
“Guideline on Anti- Money Laundering and Counter-Terrorist
Financing”, “Prevention of Money Laundering and Terrorist Financing
Guideline Associated Entities”.

Privacy and information security

The Group believes that the privacy and security of stakeholders’
information is crucial in order to gain trust from them. The Group
adopts appropriate security measures in safeguarding sensitive
information and data, including, but not limited to, trade secrets,
know how, client information, supplier information and other
proprietary information.

Anti-Corruption and Anti-Money Laundering

The Group believes that a system with good moral integrity and anti-
corruption mechanism is the cornerstone for the sustainable and
healthy development of the Group. The Group is strictly opposed
to any form of bribery, extortion, fraud, money laundering and
other acts such as the provision of illegal political contributions,
inappropriate charitable donation or sponsorship, provision or
acceptance of unreasonable gifts, entertainments or other improper
benefits, infringement of trade secrets, trademarks, patents,
copyrights and other intellectual property rights, and engagement in
acts of unfair competition, etc. In order to ensure that our employees
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could really be honest and law-abiding, the Group maintains a
“Staff Handbook"”, which states the code of conduct and requires
the employees, during the course of business engagement, not to
(whether directly or indirectly) provide, undertake, request or receive
any improper benefits, or take any other actions which are in violation
of integrity, illegal or dishonest behaviors which are in breach of
fiduciary duties.

Regarding to our money lending business, the Group has policy set
forth procedures for performing customer due diligence process,
identifying customer involvement in money laundering activities,
detecting and monitoring suspicious transactions, and reporting
of suspicious transactions according to the guidelines from the
Anti-Money Laundering and Counter-Terrorist Financing (Financial
Institutions) Ordinance, Cap 615 (the AMLO).

The Group has also established a whistle-blowing policy for reporting
suspected irregularities, fraud and corruption, a compliant mailbox is
set up to provide channels for reporting corruption and bribery. We
also continue to improve our internal control and monitoring system.
We strike to take immediate actions when problems are reported
and identified. We have a zero tolerance approach to any kind of

corruption and irregularities.

Community Investment

The Group is committed to creating sustainable prosperity that
brings long-term social and economic benefits for all stakeholders,
particularly to maintain the relationship with interest groups which
are relevant to business operation. Same as last year, the Group
continues to make donations and organise fund raising events to
provide subsidy of employees who suffered from cancer, serious
disease and severe work injury.

The Group’s ESG policy encourages and supports employees to
volunteer their time to help those who are less fortunate and
advantaged in the community. As a responsible corporate citizen, the
Group will look for worthy charities or humanitarian causes to support
through direct monetary donations or other events to contribute to
the society.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)
BRE WERELEE(R)

Environmental performance indicators REBEVRER

Aspect A1: Emissions

BEA: B0
HKEx ESG Reporting
Guide KPI
BRARE
Performance indicator 2017 Data HERERES
BRER “E-tEHE EolBRENER
Emission Total nitrogen oxides (NOx) emission (g) 132,438.71 KPI A1.1
B RENHNOXNHHHAE (%) BB B IRAL
Total particulate matters (PM) emission (g) 9,637.29 KPI A1.1
BFRFPMBE R E () B S E RUIETRAL
Total sewage discharge (ton) 373,953 KPI A1.1
EK BB AR 2 (1) BB A IR RAL
Average concentration level of particulate matters 6.03 KPI'A1.1
from setting machines (mg/m?) BIREBUEEALI
FREFRBIRFTORE (ZRELHK)
Average concentration level of particulate matters 22.5 KPIAT.1
from singeing machines (mg/m?) BREBIEIZA
GERFERBIN T TRE (ZRELHK)
Average concentration level of fumes from setting 8.22 KPIAT.1
machines (mg/m?) BREBIBIZAT
FHRENERTHRE (ZEREULFK)
Total CO, generated equivalent emission (ton) 7,046.7 KPI A1.2
—alREERES HREBIEIFAL2
Hazardous waste gas Average concentration level of Volatile Organic Compounds (“VOC") 30.29 KPI'A1.3
BEER from setting machines (mg/m?) BRERIEZEA3
FEREHRER AR AW (TvoC)) FIRE
(ERBIHK)
Average concentration level of Formaldehyde (“HCHO") 1.23 KPI A1.3
from setting machines (mg/m3) MR ERIEIEA3
TR (HCHO D) FHRE (ZRBY A K)
Hazardous solid waste Total hazardous waste (oil polluted fabrics and 263 KPI' A1.3
BEEEED waste oil) (kg) BREBIEEA13
BEREYCh MM RER) B8 (TR)
Non-hazardous waste Total recycled non-hazardous waste (waste fabrics, 281,240 KPI A1.4
FEZEY suede dust, hatha dust) (kg) BREBERALL
EIURIEBEEY (BEHE  EEE EXRR)LEE(TR)
Total recycled non-hazardous waste (Plastic container, 24,118 KPI A1.4
iron drum) (piece) BRENIEIZA14
B EREY (EBRE  #R) A2 ()
Total disposed non-hazardous waste (sludge, 2,123,210 KPI A1.4
non-recyclable domestic and industrial waste) RIS ERUEEAL4

REFEFZENDONE  TARKNERSRRTEED) #E
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)
BRE WERELHEE (R

Aspect A2: Use of resources

EHA2 : ERER

HKEx ESG Reporting

Guide KPI

BRABE -

Performance indicator 2017 Data HERERERS

BERER “E-tEHE ESRRERER

Electricity Total Electricity consumption (Kwh) 8,883,954 KPI A2.1

g BRAEE(TRE) F S B MR IRA2.

Water Total Water consumption (cubic meter) 291,245 KPI'A2.2

K BRAKE (LK) FREMIEIRA2.2

Steam Total low pressure steam consumption (ton) 139,881 KPI'A2.2

A @I TAE () R ERIERA2.2

Total medium pressure steam consumption (ton) 32,591 KPI'A2.2

BhEX A (H) R ERIERA2.2

Packaging material Total packaging materials (kg) 145,465 KPI A2.5

BEMR HREMHEE (FR) S EMIERA25
60 ASIA TELEVISION HOLDINGS LIMITED

THEREZERARXA



Independent Auditor’s Report to the Members of
Co-Prosperity Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

Qualified Opinion Arising from Limitation of Scope

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Co-Prosperity
Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to
as the “Group”) (the “Consolidated Financial Statements”) set out on pages
72 to 215, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position
as at 31 December 2017, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in
equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended,
and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies.

In our opinion, except for the possible effects of the matters described in the
Basis for Qualified Opinion section of our report, the Consolidated Financial
Statements give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Group
as at 31 December 2017, and of its financial performance and its cash flows
for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“"HKICPA") and have been properly prepared in compliance with
the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

MOORE STEPHENS

Moore Stephens CPA Limited
801-806 Silvercord, Tower 1,
30 Canton Road, Tsimshatsui,
Kowloon, Hong Kong

T +852 2375 3180
F +852 2375 3828
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www.moorestephens.com.hk
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Basis for Qualified Opinion

As at 31 December 2017, the Group has (1) deposits for other investments
of HK$500,000,000 (equivalent to approximately RMB416,250,000) for
an investment in Asia Television Limited (“ATV"), as detailed in note 21(i)
to the Consolidated Financial Statements and (2) receivables due from
ATV of approximately RMB90,006,000, as detailed in note 26(d)(iii) to the
Consolidated Financial Statements. We were unable to obtain sufficient
appropriate audit evidence to satisfy ourselves as to the recoverability of these
deposits and receivables as at 31 December 2017 because the management
of the Group was unable to access certain financial information or other
information in relation to the assets and liabilities of ATV.

ATV was undergoing provision liquidation proceedings, as detailed in notes
12(a) and 21(i) to the Consolidated Financial Statements, and the provisional
liquidator was discharged by the court on 24 April 2017. Although the
Group has accessed to certain financial information or other information in
relation to the assets and liabilities of ATV since then, the records of ATV
made available to the Group were considered as incomplete for the Group to
determine the recoverability of the deposits and receivables. Consequently,
we were unable to determine whether any adjustments or impairment to

these amounts were necessary.

In addition, we were unable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence
to satisfy ourselves as to the purchase price allocation on acquisition of Star
Platinum Enterprises Limited (“Star Platinum”) as detailed in note 12(a) to
the Consolidated Financial Statements, which was incomplete as at the end
of twelve months after the date of acquisition due to the reason as stated
above. Consequently, we were unable to determine whether any adjustments
to the assets and liabilities obtained from the acquisition of Star Platinum
were necessary.

62 ASIA TELEVISION HOLDINGS LIMITED
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REERNEE
RZE—tF+=ZA=+—H  EBEEHNHK
BREMNERERAR ([ER]) HHARE 2%
£500,000,000/%8 7T (FEE R # AR #416,250,000
TL) B ERRE M IRERM EE213) - RQ)E
TRBE A AR K90,006,0007T © HEHNGE T
B EMFE26(d)i) - B EEBENEEEEL
EHETHAEDREAEABRANMISE RS EM
B WBRMYRERE RS MEENETERE
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Basis for Qualified Opinion - continued

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit
of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics
for Professional Accountants (“the Code”), and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for

our qualified opinion.

Other Information in the Annual Report

The directors of the Company (the “Directors”) are responsible for the
other information. The other information comprises all the information in
the Company’s 2017 annual report other than the Consolidated Financial

Statements and our auditor’s report thereon (the “Other Information”).

Our opinion on the Consolidated Financial Statements does not cover the
Other Information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion

thereon.

In connection with our audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements,
our responsibility is to read the Other Information and, in doing so,
consider whether the Other Information is materially inconsistent with the
Consolidated Financial Statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or

otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a
material misstatement of the Other Information, we are required to report
that fact. As described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion section above, we
were unable to obtain sufficient appropriate evidence about the nature and
recoverable amount of the deposits paid for an investment and receivables
due from ATV as at 31 December 2017. Accordingly, we are unable to
conclude whether or not the other information is materially misstated with

respect to these matters.
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Key Audit Matters BRETEE

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were B EA FHELRBERMANZEHNYE > REUE—
of most significance in our audit of the Consolidated Financial Statementsas ZT—+t®+ A=+ —AKBEZALFEZLH
at and for the year ended 31 December 2017. These matters were addressed &M BERENBAZRAETEMNEE - FLEBEE
in the context of our audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements as a KRB I BEBGRAVHEREAKRHAEARETE
whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate 2K - R TS HEL BT BHREEBENER -
opinion on these matters.

In addition to the matters described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion section, PFR[RBERMEE | —FHAAHEIEI K2
we have determined the matters described below to be the key audit matters ~ #R Nl BB ARRARES B BNERETSEE -
to be communicated in our report.

Key audit matter How our audit addressed the key audit matter
BRI EHE BMNEF N ATHERETFERETER

Purchase price allocation (“PPA”) of investment in an associate — Yong Tai Berhad (“Yong Tai”) (please refer to note 24 to the
Consolidated Financial Statements)

RERBERNFAZEEBLI ([BEESE)) - XEE ([KX]) (BLEGEEHBEHEEXNT24)

The Group acquired 107 million ordinary shares of Yong Tai, a  Our key procedures to address the matter included:
company listed on the Main Market of Bursa Malaysia Securities HfIRESHEEEZFEZREFBE
Berhad, at the consideration of Malaysian Ringgit (“RM")

117,700,000 (equivalent to approximately RMB189,016,000) on  — Assessing the completeness of identifiable assets and
24 May 2017. liabilities of Yong Tai at acquisition date;
EEER-_Z—+FRA-THBAKE KR (—BRERAERE K ARRIKERBZ A BRIEERBE 2 TEMY
ERGERETZAF) 2107,000,0000% L@ - Fhibd k2
REHAERATRSE ([E%1)117,700,000T (HERHARE - Assessing the reasonableness of valuation
189,016,0007T) © methodologies and the corresponding key inputs and
assumptions on determination of the provisional fair
The Group subscribed for a further 43,000,000 new shares value of the identifiable assets acquired and liabilities
of Yong Tai, which represented approximately 6.17% equity assumed;
interest in Yong Tai, at the issue price of RM1.26 (equivalent AN EECKRBAIBAIEERFAEARZHBRA
to approximately HK$2.29) per share and completed on 29 T EBIZR TR 2B 7% KRR B 8 8 A 80K
December 2017. MBEzEEE

EEEREITESREE 1260 (FHERL2298 ) E— P RBE
43,000,000Hxﬂ<j(2*ﬁﬂx171 CHBAER KR ZRELN617% B
BRECHN-_ZE—+tF+-_A=-+NLB=EK-
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Key Audit Matters - continued
FAREFSTEE-&

Key audit matter
HREITER

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

BEMNEANAHAEETBRETRE

PPA of investment in an associate — Yong Tai (please refer to note 24 to the Consolidated Financial Statements)

BRERBE N A ZBEE D — KX (FLEGE I BEHREN724)
Following this subscription, the Group owns 21.53% equity
interest in Yong Tai.

REETH R © EREEAKAREZ21.53% °

As at 31 December 2017, the carrying amount of the Group's interest
in Yong Tai was amounted to approximately RMB279,700,000.
RZT—+F+-A=+—H  EEERXKAMEEERZ
E{EX 7 AR®279,700,0007T °

As part of the provisional PPA performed by the management, the
consideration for the above acquisition and subscription has been
allocated to the Group's share of the fair value of the identifiable
assets and liabilities of the associate, resulting in the recognition
of goodwill of approximately RMB107,058,000 included in the
carrying amount of the investment in Yong Tai as disclosed in
note 24 to the consolidated financial statements.
REEBEMET HRNBEESEK  LRKBERBFHELR
BESERE BEEESNEMERARZARIEERBEZATE
UL R ELHARE107,058,0007T © HANARA B B 3= I 724
FieE - BRSE AREN KR ZREE -

The estimation of the fair value of the identifiable assets and
liabilities of Yong Tai, including the intangible assets identified for
this acquisition, required significant management’s judgements.
ERERELERAE - FAIBEKRZABRAINEERBE (B
RURBP BN ZBIVEE) 2Bt AF(E -

Challenging the management of the Company
and/or the valuer about the appropriateness and
reasonableness of the management’s bases of
estimating the provisional fair value;
B BARERER SNEEMEMEEEE GRS
KRAFEMAEEZHEEHEREENE

Assessing the competency and experience of the
valuer;

RRENENEETPA- e S

Assessing the appropriateness of percentage interest
in Yong Tai determined by the management of the
Group as a result of the dilution effect of preference
shares; and

i EEEERERELIRZEBEYEETMIEL
KAERADLLZHEEN &

Reviewed the relevant sale and purchase agreement
to understand the key terms and conditions as part
of the process to identify the assets and liabilities of
Yong Tai.

EHHEACEEREATREFR 2 T ERRRES
ERBRIKREERBEBRBIEZ —%H -
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Key Audit Matters - continued
HRESAER-&

Key audit matter

HEEEHR

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

HANEANAHEREETSRETRE

PPA on acquisition of subsidiaries — Million Federal International Limited and its subsidiaries (“Million Federal Group”) (please refer to

note 12(b) to the Consolidated Financial Statements)

WENEL T ZEREEBSE BT ERERAFREMNELF (B EE]) (FLEEEHBEHRENE12(0)

At the date of acquisition of Million Federal Group, the Group
had allocated the consideration transferred into the fair value
of identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed, with the
excess separately recognised as goodwill.

REFRBEWHEES - BESREFEAPTKE R EAE E KPR
BB RATEZREBELSE  HHABERNRRAHE -

Significant estimations and judgements are required by
the management in the PPA, particularly in relation to the
identification and valuation of intangible assets and assignment
of their useful lives. The intangible assets and goodwill
recognised on the date of acquisition amounted to approximately
RMB9,580,000 (note 23) and approximately RMB20,274,000
(note 20) respectively.

MRBEESEGIET  BRERELEANMG AL  CHEIH
HEWVEE B RMEEAREAIERFHN 28 - RUE RS
ERzEBVEENRBED KR AR9,580,0007T (FFFE23) A
R #20,274,0007¢ (Fiz£20) -

Management has engaged an independent professional valuer
whose work has been relied on in the PPA of the acquisition of
Million Federal Group.

ERECZBRBYEEGERN  WEREBAETEXNRETERKE
EFEBECZEBEEOR -
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Our key procedures to address the matter included:

BPEEEHERCIERFEE:

Assessing the completeness of identifiable assets
acquired and liabilities assumed at acquisition date;
RIS B BFTKB R BRI EER I AERE L T

B

Assessing the reasonableness of valuation
methodologies and the corresponding key inputs and
assumptions on determination of the fair value of the
identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed;
SHEEEEMEEN BN EE M ARRGEZ A TE
A2 PP ER A 2 (5 (B 77 7K AR FE RO BE B2 8 A U 2 1R
B2 EBME

Challenging the management of the Company
and/or the valuer about the appropriateness and
reasonableness of the management’s bases of
estimating the fair value; and

BH ELRRERER/SHAEMEBEREMTA
FEMAREEZEEMEREGEGE R

Assessing the competency and experience of the

valuer.

A ER 2 BE D KRR -



Key Audit Matters - continued
FAREFTEE-&

Key audit matter

HEEEHE

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

HMNEANAHARETSRETRE

Impairment of goodwill and intangible assets (please refer to notes 20 and 23 to the Consolidated Financial Statements)

BERELEERE (FL2EFEH BRI E20823)

As at 31 December 2017, the carrying amounts of goodwill and
intangible assets amounted to approximately RMB20,274,000 and
RMB35,731,000 respectively.

RZZE—+F+-A=+—H BEBEREFVEAEZREHES L
R/ARY20,274,0007T & A R #35,731,0007T °

Management’s impairment review process is based on value-
in-use calculations using cash flow projections. Significant
estimations and judgements are required by the management
to determine the underlying key assumptions, including future
revenue growth rate, discount rate and terminal growth rate, in
the value-in-use calculations.
EREZREEMBERNEARSRAANFEZERBERK
B-EREEETAEEREEMAZAMARRKRRKR (BERKK
REBRE  BREPOKABRE) KRFEDERGH LA -

Our key procedures to address the matter included:

BHMREEHER 2 IERFRE

Assessing and challenging the management on the
reasonableness of cash flow projections by comparison
with recent performance and market expectations;
FRLEAPRA LTSRS AELERAEREESR
AR RERA AR

Assessing the relevance and reasonableness of the key
inputs and assumptions used; and

FHEPTRAZ BRBARERBRR 2 AEEREEN
K

Comparing the recoverable amount determined by the
management with the carrying amounts of goodwill
and intangible assets.
HEREMET A REHENERBLEE R
EEFELE -
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Key Audit Matters - continued
HRESAER-&

Key audit matter

BEETER

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

EMNEANAHAESETBRETRE

Credit risk assessment on loan receivables (please refer to note 27 to the Consolidated Financial Statements)

JEREF 2 E BB G (F2M5E BRI 227)

As at 31 December 2017, the net carrying amount of loan
receivables amounted to approximately RMB138,349,000. The
Group had recognised impairment loss on loan receivables of
approximately RMB9,781,000 during the year.
RZZ—tF+A=+—0 BEREFRZE@MFELNRARE
138,349,000t © EBEHEERFANERABKEFREBEHARE
9,781,0007T °

Significant subjective judgements are required and high level of
uncertainty is involved in the underlying credit risk assessment of
the borrowers. The credit risk assessment procedures take into
account the value of the asset proof provided by the borrowers,
historical repayment records, current creditworthiness and other
information available for those borrowers in delinquency or
default in repayment.

FAEERAZHEBEERRM S AL TBEOERAE - B
BREETEEE EERBRIEEFEEZERNRAERER
ZERAMRHRZEEZREE BEERTH  BREELA
BRZHMER
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Our key procedures to address the matter included:

BMEREEAHMER 2 ETERFEE

Obtaining the list of the loan receivables as at 31
December 2017 and discussing with the management
of the Group about their evaluation of the
background and financial capability of the borrowers
and their credit assessment that each of the amount
was recoverable;
BER-_E—tF+-_A=+—BZRKERIE "
Wi BEXEERENHEBARMEBRAZERR
MR N2 BARBEMRSEAREEE 2 FET
f

Understanding and evaluating the internal control
procedures of credit approvals, credit reviews
and impairment assessment performed by the
management of the Group;

THEFTE BELEEEEERGEEHR FEEER
BAEFHEFT AT 2 BB EIR P

Challenging the management’s assessment of
the recoverability of the loan receivables and
corroborating their assessments by obtaining and
reviewing credit related information of the borrowers
provided by the management of the Group; and
BREREEHEKERATKE N 2T LFEBIRG
kEN ESEEBREMRUIZIERAZEERRE
BimEl B AR - &

Checking subsequent settlement of the individual loan
receivables, if any.
REEREKERE B EHZ(NE) -



Responsibilities of the Directors for the Consolidated
Financial Statements

The Directors are responsible for the preparation of the Consolidated
Financial Statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with the
HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the Directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of the Consolidated
Financial Statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due

to fraud or error.

In preparing the Consolidated Financial Statements, the Directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern,
disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless the Directors either intend to
liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but
to do so.

The audit committee of the Company (the “Audit Committee”) assists the
Directors in discharging their responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s

financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
Consolidated Financial Statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes our opinion. We report our opinion solely to you, as a body,
and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept

liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error
and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on

the basis of these Consolidated Financial Statements.
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements - continued

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We

also:

- Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
Consolidated Financial Statements, whether due to fraud or error;
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks;
and, obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

- Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the Group's internal control.

- Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made
by the Directors.

- Conclude on the appropriateness of the Directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the Consolidated Financial
Statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going
concern.

- Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
Consolidated Financial Statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the Consolidated Financial Statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair

presentation.
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated

Financial Statements - continued

- Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the Consolidated Financial Statements. We
are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the
group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other matters,
the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings,
including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify
during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and
to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,
related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we determine
those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit
matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’'s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely
rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated
in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Moore Stephens CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Hung, Wan Fong Joanne
Practising Certificate Number: P05419

Hong Kong, 27 March 2018
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

GERaREMZENER

For the year ended 31 December 2017 HZ=—F—+F+=-A=+—HILFE

2017 2016
—T—+F =T NF
RMB’'000 RMB’000
ARKEFT AREFT
(restated)
€=
Turnover EEHE 7 150,748 198,621
Cost of sales SHE A (110,476) (163,658)
Gross profit EN 40,272 34,963
Other income HA 2,119 4,024
Other expenses, gains and losses HtRx s kEBE 8 1,375 (33,153)
Gain on disposals of subsidiaries HE B R 2 13 - 19,940
Impairment loss on loan receivable EWE R 2 HEEE (9,781) =
Impairment losses recognised in respect of M BEREZEZ
property, plant and equipment BRI EEE 9 - (3,776)
Reversal of impairment losses in respect of BEYE  BERERE
property, plant and equipment BREEE 9 - 7,547
Fair value (loss)/gain on financial BRAFEFABREEZ
assets at fair value through profit or loss MBEEZATFE(BB) kS (16,697) 62,116
Distribution and selling expenses DEREERX (2,914) (3,530)
Administrative and operating expenses THREERY (103,123) (41,879)
Finance costs BE KA 10 (34,171) (15,166)
Share of profit of an associate okl AN b | 24 4,009 =
(Loss)/profit before taxation R Al (B518) % 11 (118,911) 31,086
Taxation T8 16 (4,082) (1,889)
(Loss)/profit for the year AEE (BB)aF (122,993) 29,197
Other comprehensive income Hih2miiz=
Items that will be reclassified subsequently to R EAEE B HIEE
profit or loss: BmHA -
- exchange differences arising on translation ~— —HEEAZEN =5 (61,830) 44,911
— share of other comprehensive income — D {hEE QT EA
of an associate 2mEa=E (394) =
— release of translation reserve upon — HE M B R AR R
disposals of subsidiaries & 5 13 - (1,401)
Total comprehensive (expense)/income rEER2E R/
for the year, net of income tax W48 %8 (MBRFTISHL) (185,217) 72,707
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (CONTINUED)

GEeRaRAEMfZEKR K (F)

For the year ended 31 December 2017 BE=ZZT—+F+_A=+—HILFE

2017 2016
—E—tF —E-REF
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
Ht 3 ARB T AR%Fr
(restated)
(&%)
(Loss)/profit for the year IATREAEE (BER),H5F
attributable to:
Owners of the Company RREEB A (126,747) 29,197
Non-controlling interests FEIE AR M 25 3,754 =
(122,993) 29,197
Total comprehensive (expense)/income for the A TREEAEZ2ME (FX),/
year attributable to: W4 EE -
Owners of the Company RAREEB A (186,638) 72,707
Non-controlling interests FEIE AR M 2 1,421 =
(185,217) 72,707
2017 2016
—ET—+F —E—RF
RMB cents RMB cents
ARES ARKS
(Loss)/earnings per share Tk (EE) /BF
— Basic and diluted —EARREE 17 (2.46) 0.95
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
ReMBRKLR

At 31 December 2017 RZZE—+F+=-HA=+—H

2017 2016
—E—+F —E-RF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥Fr ARETFT
Non-current assets IRBEE
Property, plant and equipment W BE REE 18 49,419 49,699
Prepaid lease payments TET & A 19 398 412
Intangible assets EEE 23 35,731 =
Goodwill EES 20 20,274 -
Deposits for other investments HEMiRE 2 iRe 21 416,250 456,567
Deposit for investments in subsidiaries BERMBRAR RS 12(b) - 7,162
Other deposits Hihize 22 9,269 -
Interest in an associate N RNl o 24 279,700 -
811,041 513,840
Current assets REBEE
Inventories & 25 109,455 106,724
Trade and other receivables, deposits and B 5 & E M EUER R
prepayments Be RIERFKIE 26 313,474 172,326
Loan receivables & WL E R 27 138,349 138,817
Prepaid lease payments TER & HIE 19 14 14
Financial assets at fair value BAFEGFABREZ
through profit or loss MigEE 28 52,413 201,422
Pledged bank deposits B RITF R 29 38,420 38,420
Bank balances and cash RITHEHBRE S 29 229,914 27,820
882,039 685,543
Current liabilities REBAE
Trade and other payables B 5 R EAD R ERR 31 170,525 266,843
Bond payables B EH 32 63,908 63,710
Taxation payables FE R 1E 4,764 4,277
Government grant T 76 B) 24 =
Obligation under finance leases A B AR IE 33 188 658
Short-term bank loans, secured RERITER(FER) 34 113,550 119,340
Short-term loans from other REE S RHEE 2
financial institution, secured HEER(FER) 34 8,340 26,647
Other borrowing, unsecured HMEE (EEHR) 34 31,635 -
392,934 481,475
Net current assets REBEEFE 489,105 204,068
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION (CONTINUED)
HEEMBRAE(R)

At 31 December 2017 R=ZE—+E+=-H=+—H

2017 2016

T+ e NS

Note RMB’'000 RMB’000

Bt 5 AR Fr AR For

Total assets less current liabilities REERRBES 1,300,146 717,908
Non-current liabilities kREBEE

Obligation under finance leases BhE SR 33 389 1,623

Convertible bonds AR E 35 - 26,589

Government grant BT B 200 =

Deferred tax liabilities EEFIEBE 30 855 =

1,444 28,212

Net assets EERE 1,298,702 689,696
Capital and reserves BERK#E

Share capital A& A 36 616,617 351,608

Reserves i 640,990 338,088

Equity attributable to owners ARREEAEGLES

of the Company 1,257,607 689,696

Non-controlling interests FEFE R 2 41,095 -

Total equity MR 1,298,702 689,696

The consolidated financial statements on pages 72 to 215 were approved
and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 27 March 2018 and are
signed on its behalf by:

Tang Hon Kwo
BHEX
Chairman

E

ENE2I5B AN BBRRERZE-—N\F=A
“HHHAEESEERABBIAUTALTRRE
=2

Law Kin Fat
EER
Executive Director

HITEF
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
ReEER=

For the year ended 31 December 2017 BE =T —+tF+ A =+—HItFE

Convertible Statutory
Share Special ~ bondequity  Translation surplus— Accumulated
premium Tesenve reserve resene  reserve fund losses
ey

RHRR ELRE itk

RMB’OOb RMB0O0  RMB0OO  RMB00  RMB00  RMB'000

RMB000

Non-
controlling
interests

RMB000

Total
equity

RIB:000

At 1 January 2016 WZE-7E-A-H 186,229 442929 98,731 - 10416 29,843 (498,168) 269,980 - 269,980
Profit for the year KRR - - S - - - 29197 29197 - 29197
Other comprehensiveincome for the year ~~ AEFZEb2ENE
- Exchange differences arsing on tranglation ~ ~REZEEREE = = = = 49N - = 9N = 4911
- Relase of tranlaton reserve upon -LENBARRER
dlisposals of subsidaries EXGE 13) - - - - (1.401) = = (1401) s (1401)
Total comprehensive income for the year A F 2 2ENEEE = = = = 53510 = 29,197 nn - i
Transfers &g = = = = = I (241) = = =
Iste of converthle bonds BITARES % - - - 4578 - - - 4578 - 4578
Issue of shares under share placing BERDEERTRA WG&M) 105880 17040 - - - - - M - M
Transaction costs atrbutable o isse IRERR XA
of placing shares - (3,069) - - - - - (3,069) = (3,069)
Isue of shares under share subscripton RERN2EEORG 36(i) 25038 25038 = = = - - 50,076 - 50,076
Isue of shares upon conversion of REATARES
convertible bonds gk 36(iv) 34,461 41,450 - (3.407) - - - 72,504 - 72,504
Transactions with owners BREALRS 165379 180459 = 147 = = - HT009 - HUT009
At 31 December 2016 WoE-RETZAZ1-A 351,608 623,388 98,731 1m 53,926 30,084 (469,212) 689,69 - 689,696
(LossYprofit fo the year rER (BE) /&l - = - - - - (s (1674 37 (1299)
Other comprehensive expense for teyear ~ AFEZEH2ERR
- Exchange differences arising on tranglation ~ ~REEEEREE = = = = (59497) = - (59.497) 2333 (6180
- Share of reserve of an associate -AEBELTRE - s - - (334) - s 394) - (394)
Total comprehensive (expense)income KERZ2E(RR)/
for the year st d - = = = (59,891) - (126,747) (186,639) 141 (185,217)
Transfers S = - - - s 476 (476) - s =
lste of shares under sare placing BERDEERARG 360, i)
8 I - - - - R -
Transaction costs atrbutable o isse BIRERDZRARE
of placing shares - (17.20) - - - - - (17,270 - (17270
st of shares upon conversion of RERTARES
convertible bonds G 361vii) 11935 1479 - (117 - - - 25558 - 25558
Transactions with owners L IVAY] 265009 490711 - {1 - - - TS5 - TS5
Acquisiton of subsiiares KENBLE 120) - - - - - - - - 39674 39674
31 December 2017 HoB-LFtoAzt-8 G650 7 S B%) U0 G ST Mms 198
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY (CONTINUED)

Notes:

GeHRERXR(E)

For the year ended 31 December 2017 2= —+tF+-A=+—HIEFE

The special reserve represents the differences between the nominal amount of
the shares issued by the Company and the Group’s former holding company
and the aggregate amount of paid-up capital of the subsidiaries acquired
pursuant to the group reorganisation in 2005 in preparation for the listing of
the Company’ s shares, net of subsequent distribution to shareholders.

As stipulated by the relevant laws and regulations for foreign investment
enterprises in People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”), the Company’'s PRC
subsidiaries are required to maintain a statutory surplus reserve fund which is
non-distributable. Appropriation to such reserve is made out of net profit after
taxation of the statutory financial statements of the PRC subsidiaries while the
amounts and allocation basis are decided by their board of directors annually.
The statutory surplus reserve fund can be used to make up prior year losses, if
any, and can be applied in conversion into capital by means of capitalisation

issue.

FRlEEREARR RAREAERARD ETR
HEE BRER_ZZTRAFAEEARARN
EHZERSAMBEZHBRARNZHAAERE
B2 AR ERARREH 2D IRZ HAERE -

REBTEARANB ([HE])INE % 2B
EGIROER  ARB 2B ERRAFE A
DR EERGHES - BRAREBEZBFRIIRA
RPN B R RDEEM B MAR Z BRI RAR - MR
BEOREETDMBAARZCESTERFRE °
EERBREBEUARNBHEBEFEZBE (M
B)RAMNERCBETZAAER/ER -
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
Rl RER

For the year ended 31 December 2017 HEZ=F—+F+-A=1+—HIEFE

2017 2016
—2—tF —ERF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT AREFT
Operating activities R R
(Loss)/profit before taxation BRELAT (B18) R F (118,911) 31,086

Adjustments for: HTHEBELRE:

Interest income FEWA (648) (2,361)
Interest expenses FEFAE 10 34,171 15,166
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment mE - BERRBZNE 18 8,660 9,576
Amortisation of prepaid lease payments BNEERE & 19 14 14
Amortisation of government grant BT 5 B 2 85 (16) =
Write-down of inventories 7 &R 25 28,845 18,018
Reversal of write-down of inventories Bl 77 &R 25 (18,140) (16,406)
Written-off of interest receivables FEMFI S 2 #isH - 5014
Allowances for bad and doubtful debts RERERE 26(b) 173 -
Loss on acquisition of a subsidiary WEHE AR EE - 14,048
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HE B AR 2 s - (19,940)
Fair value loss/(gain) on financial assets at fair BATEFABREZHBEE

value through profit or loss ZATFEER/ (KE) 16,697 (57,406)
Income from amortisation of financial MBRRENZ

guarantees contract BB - (8,349)
Loss on disposal of property, plant HENE BEX

and equipment REZER 287 1,320

Impairment losses in respect of property, plant EENE BEK

and equipment BEZRERE - 3,776
Reversal of impairment losses in respect of BOEBME BEK

property, plant and equipment FEREER - (7,547)
Share of profit of an associate kNG bl 24 (4,009) =
Impairment loss on loan receivables ERERZREEE 9,781 =

ENHERREZRERR

Impairment loss in respect of deposits

paid for suppliers 26(c) 2,018 10,941
Reversal of impairment loss in respect of BEEMEERRS ZREBE
deposits paid for supplier 26(c) (1,832) (450)
Impairment loss on deposit for other investment HiiRE 2 ke 2 RERER 8,671 =
Operating cash flows before movements HEBESEYR LS
in working capital Reng (34,239) (3,500)
Increase in inventories FEEM (13,436) (22,809)
Decrease/(increase) in financial assets at fair value A FEFFABREZ
through profit or loss B EERD>,/ (3BM) 131,224 (119,030)
Increase in trade and other receivables B 5 RE b MR ER ZIL A0 (103,029) (52,999)
Increase in loan receivables FEU B2 m (9,703) (231,815)
Increase in bank balances and cash - segregated RITHEBRREEM-BLKRP
accounts (108,227) -
Decrease in trade and other payables B 5 REMERNETORSD 2,001 10,373
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (CONTINUED)
FEeHReEREXR(E)

For the year ended 31 December 2017 BE =T —+tF+-A=1+—HItFE

2017 2016
—T—tF ZT-RE
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT AREFT
Cash used in operations LEmERZRS (135,409) (419,780)
Taxation paid BRHIE (1,699) (1,902)
Net cash used in operating activities LEEBHERAZREFE (137,108) (421,682)
Investing activities REXEE
Interest received BIAE 648 2,361
Purchase of property, plant and equipment BENE  BEREE (10,141) (2,305)
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and HEME  BERRZEMEHE
equipment 140 527
Proceeds from disposals of subsidiaries & I B A R TS KB 13 - 27,015
Refundable deposits paid for acquisitions RUBEEEE N2 TRERS 26(d)(i) - (3,581)
Deposits paid for other investments ENEMBEZES 21(ii) - (8,952)
Deposit for investments in subsidiaries RERMBLARIZES 12(b) - (7,162)
Prepayment for acquisition of financial assets at fair WA TEFABRECHBEE
value through profit or loss pACINE 26(d)(ii) - (40,688)
Withdrawal of pledged bank deposits RO EARFITEK - 2,000
Net cash inflow from acquisition of a subsidiary WEHBARZEERAFE 12(b) 37,229 =
Other deposits paid B EMbizS (8,612) =
Payment on acquisition of an associate g3 NI AN (276,085) =
Purchase of intangible assets BERVAE (27,847 =
Received from government grant B WU T #5 B) 240 =
Net cash used in investing activities REXBHFERAZREFHE (284,428) (30,785)
Annual I;z:p;rﬁt 2 01 7 79



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (CONTINUED)
FEHReaREXR(E)

For the year ended 31 December 2017 HEZ=F—+F+-A=1+—HIEFE

2017 2016
S 3 AN
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETFT AREFT
Financing activities BMEEE
Interest paid BRFE (29,137) (6,834)
Net proceeds from issuance of shares under share BER RN REETRG
subscription P3RBT - 50,076
Proceeds from placement of new shares BE R D ATEHE 746,261 222,920
Share issuing expenses RiDBEITRE (17,270) (3,069)
Proceeds from bank loans, loans from other RERITER A e pgE
financial institution and other borrowing ERREMEE ZFMEHRE 344,814 119,840
Issue of convertible bonds BITAIARES - 100,611
Repayment of bank loans, loans from other BEBRTER  Htho i s
financial institution and other borrowing ERREMEE (334,777) (125,800)
Repayment of finance leases BERENE (374) (553)
Repayment of amount due to a related company BEENBEQRIZE (53,760) -
Repayment to a shareholder BERRFE (104,052) =
Net cash generated from financing activities BREEBMELCAESFE 551,705 357,191
Net increase/(decrease) in cash BeRkBeZEEN
and cash equivalents #m/ (L) FE 130,169 (95,276)
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January R—R—RAZBReRBEEEY 27,820 76,196
Effect on change of functional currency EapNGIIEA LS %
of the Company 1 - 47,562
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes HEEEREE T HE (36,302) (662)
Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December RT-ZA=+—HZHERBREEED 121,687 27,820
Analysis of the balances of cash ReRkReFBM2EHIN
and cash equivalents
Bank balances and cash — general accounts and cash  SRIT&EH LIRS ——RIEF KRS 121,687 27,820
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 HEZ=T—+F+-A=+—HIEFE

Co-Prosperity Holdings Limited, which in the progress to change its
name to Asia Television Holdings Limited as detailed in note 44(b)
(the “Company”), was incorporated and registered as an exempted
company with limited liability under the Companies Law of the
Cayman lIslands and acts as an investment holding company. The
principal activities of its principal subsidiaries are set out in note
43. The Company's shares are listed on the Main Board of The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). The
addresses of the registered office and principal place of business of
the Company are disclosed in the “Corporate Information” of this
annual report.

The consolidated financial statements have been presented in
Renminbi (“RMB”) and all values are rounded to the nearest thousand
except when otherwise indicated.

Comparative figures of the consolidated profit or loss in respect of
revenue and fair value gain on financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss in the profit or loss were reclassified to conform with
current year’s presentation (see note 7).

Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
("HKFRSs"), which collective term includes all applicable Hong Kong
Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and Interpretations issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA"). In
addition, the consolidated financial statements include applicable
disclosures required by The Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”) and by the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the
historical cost basis, except for financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss, which are measured at fair value as explained in the
accounting policies set out below.

BERBEERARAR (REAFEREEH
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TUWFMAERECEREERR - NAF
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RGMBRAB (MR ERLER - &
NAZEEM MR T BB A
BRARFRIATER | —H -

BEVBBRRIAARBE(TARKED 2
- BRBEHAEN  AEEBEONEE
RIBA TR -

FHBEERAzZ RS RIEATE; ABE
ZHBEE EGAHEacHBEFET
EFOE URHEAFE 22575 (R
iE7) °

mBLERE
REBHRERDBETEGHMAE (&
Bating ) Rz BB BREE
A ([ZBMBHREEL] - WRBERIEMA
BRz2BEEEN(FEEAERN]D R
REB)RE - WIN HREVBBRREBHR
sz EmRAI (T EmRRD REEAR
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 HZ=F—+F+-A=+—HIEFE

82

a)

Adoption of new and revised HKFRSs -
effective 1 January 2017

In the current year, the Group has applied, for the first time,

the following new and revised standards issued by the HKICPA

which are effective for the Group’s consolidated financial

statements for the annual period beginning on 1 January

2017.

(i)

(i)

Amendments to HKAS 7 Disclosure
Initiative

The amendments to HKAS 7 require an entity
to make disclosure that aim to enable users of
financial statements to evaluate changes in liabilities
arising from financing activities. Reconciliations of
various types to the Group's financing liabilities are
disclosed in note 42 to the consolidated financial
statements. Consistent with the transition provisions
of the amendments, the Group has not disclosed
comparative information for the year. Other than
such additional disclosures, the application of the
amendments has not had any material effect on the
consolidated financial statements.

Amendments to HKAS 12 Recognition of
Deferred Tax Assets for Unrealised Losses
The amendments to HKAS 12 clarity when unrealised
losses on a debt instrument measured at fair value
would give rise to a deductible temporary difference
and how to evaluate whether sufficient future taxable
profits are available to utilise a deductible temporary
difference. The application of the amendments has
not had any material effect on the consolidated
financial statements.
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a)

b)

For the year ended 31 December 2017 & —

Adoption of new and revised HKFRSs -
effective 1 January 2017 - continued

(iii)

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2014-
2016 Cycle Amendments to a number of
HKFRSs

Annual improvements to HKFRSs (2014-2016 cycle)
include an amendment to HKFRS 12 that clarifies
that, when an entity’s interest in a subsidiary, a joint
venture or an associate (or a portion of its interest in a
joint venture or an associate) is classified (or included
in a disposal group that is classified) as held for sale
in accordance with HKFRS 5 Non-current Assets
Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations, it is not
required to disclose summarised financial information
for that subsidiary, joint venture or associate, as
required by HKFRS 12 Disclosure of Interests in Other
Entities. The application of the amendments has not
had any material effect on the consolidated financial
statements.

Early adoption of HKFRS 15 Revenue from
Contracts with Customers
HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers as issued

by the HKICPA is effective for the financial year beginning on

or after 1 January 2018. The Group has elected to early adopt
HKFRS 15, with a date of initial application of 1 January 2017.
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 HZ=F—+F+-A=+—HIEFE

b) Early adoption of HKFRS 15 Revenue from b) RARKNBEBHBREER
Contracts with Customers - continued FISR-BEFENRE &
The core principle of HKFRS 15 is that an entity should BB BHRELERE 155 2 %0 R
recognise revenue to depict the transfer of promised goods Ale: ERERABSUABERE
or services to customers in an amount that reflects the PEBAREMIRE  FTIRER
consideration to which the entity expects to be entitled CHERVLERBHEIHBZER
in exchange for those goods or services. Specifically, the mk R EREES ZRE - BB
standard introduces a 5-step approach to revenue recognition: = RIS A —HERKEZ A

TR E
. Step 1: Identify the contract(s) with a customer . F—%: BAERPE
NZER
. Step 2: Identify the performance obligations in the . F-4: FBAEHH 2
contract BHEE
. Step 3:  Determine the transaction price o F=F: BETERHE
. Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to the . EWL: BRHEHER
performance obligations in the contract EENRZE
HEME
. Step 5: Recognise revenue when (or as) the entity . FRA: R(EKEE)E
satisfies a performance obligation BTRKEBEAE
E R R I
Under HKFRS 15, an entity recognises revenue when (or as) REFETHREERNFI155H - B
a performance obligation is satisfied, i.e. when “control” of ERTHEANEE XERANE
the goods or services underlying the particular performance AT 2HEBRE RSR[5 ]
obligation is transferred to the customer. BB TEPREERNE -
84 ASIA TELEVISION HOLDINGS LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

GaMBERME (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2017 2= —+tF+-A=+—HIEFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
— CONTINUED

b)

Early adoption of HKFRS 15 Revenue from
Contracts with Customers — continued
Revenues are recognised when or as the control of the asset

is transferred to the customer. Depending on the terms of the
contract and the laws that apply to the contract, control of
the asset may be transferred over time or at a point in time.
Control of the asset is transferred over time if the Group's

performance:

- provides all the benefits received and consumed
simultaneously by the customer;

- creates and enhances an asset that the customer
controls as the Group performs; or

- does not create an asset with an alternative use to
the Group and the Group has an enforceable right to
payment for performance completed to date.

If control of the asset transfers over time, revenue is
recognised over the period of the contract by reference to
progress towards complete satisfaction of that performance
obligation. Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time
when the customer obtains control of the asset.
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86

b)

Early adoption of HKFRS 15 Revenue from
Contracts with Customers - continued
The progress towards complete satisfaction of the

performance obligation is measured based on one of the
following methods that best depict the Group’s performance
in satisfying the performance obligation:

- direct measurements of the value transferred by the
Group to the customer; or

- the Group's efforts or inputs to the satisfaction of the
performance obligation.

The Group has applied HKFRS 15 in accordance with the fully
retrospective transitional approach without using the practical
expedients for completed contracts in HKFRS 15.C5(a), and
(b), or for modified contracts in HKFRS 15.C5(c) but using the
expedient in HKFRS 15.C5(d) allowing both non-disclosure of
the amount of the transaction price allocated to the remaining
performance obligations, and an explanation of when it
expects to recognise that amount as revenue for all reporting
periods presented before the date of initial application, i.e. 1
January 2017.

The Group’s accounting policies for its revenue streams are
disclosed in detail in note 3 below. Apart from providing more
extensive disclosures on the Group’s revenue transactions,
the application of HKFRS 15 has not had a significant impact
on the financial position and/or financial performance of
the Group. No adjustment has been made following the
application of HKFRS 15 for the current and prior years.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
REMEBHBRME(R)

For the year ended 31 December 2017 2= —+tF+-A=+—HIEFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

— CONTINUED

Q) New and revised HKFRSs that have been
issued but are not yet effective
Except for the early adoption of HKFRS 15, the Group has not
early adopted any of the following new and revised HKFRSs,
that have been issued but are not yet effective, in these
consolidated financial statements:

HKFRS 9

HKFRS 16

HKFRS 17

Amendments to HKFRS 2

Amendments to HKFRS 4

Amendments to HKFRS 9

Amendments to HKFRS 10
and HKAS 28

Amendments to HKAS 40
Amendments to HKFRSs

Amendments to HKFRSs

HK(IFRIC) Interpretation 22

HK(IFRIC) Interpretation 23

Financial Instruments'

Leases?

Insurance Contracts®

(lassification and Measurement of Share-based
Payment Transactions'

Applying HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments with
HKFRS 4 Insurance Contracts'

Prepayment Features with Negative
Compensation?

Sale or Contribution of Assets between an
Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture?

Transfers of Investment Property’
Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2014 - 2016
Cycle*

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2015 - 2017
Cycle®

Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance
Consideration’
Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments?

i Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019
8 Effective date not yet determined
& For those amendments that will become effective for annual

periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018

5 For those amendments that will become effective for annual
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019

g Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2021

Further information about these HKFRSs that are expected to
be applicable to the Group is as follows:
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)

New and revised HKFRSs that have been
issued but are not yet effective - continued

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments

HKFRS 9 has introduced new requirements for (a) classification
and measurement of financial assets, (b) impairment of
financial assets and (c) general hedge accounting.

Specifically, with regard to the classification and measurement
of financial assets, HKFRS 9 requires all recognised
financial assets that are within the scope of HKFRS 9 to
be subsequently measured at amortised cost or fair value.
Debt investments that are held within a business model
whose objective is to collect the contractual cash flows, and
that have contractual cash flows that are solely payments
of principal and interest on the principal outstanding are
generally measured at amortised cost at the end of each of
the subsequent accounting periods. Debt investments that
are held within a business model whose objective is achieved
both by collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial
assets, and that have contractual terms that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal amount
outstanding, are generally measured at fair value through
other comprehensive income. All other debt investments
and equity investments are measured at their fair value at
the end of subsequent accounting periods. Further, under
HKFRS 9, entities may make an irrevocable election to present
subsequent changes in the fair value of an equity investment
(that is not held for trading nor contingent consideration
recognised by an acquirer in a business combination to which
HKFRS 3 applies) in other comprehensive income, with only
dividend income generally recognised in profit or loss and that
cumulative fair value changes will not be reclassified to profit
or loss upon derecognition of the investment.
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 BE =T —+tF+ZA=+—HLFE

New and revised HKFRSs that have been
issued but are not yet effective - continued

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments - continued

With regard to the measurement of financial liabilities
designated as at fair value through profit or loss, HKFRS 9
requires that the amount of change in the fair value of a
financial liability that is attributable to changes in the credit
risk of that liability is recognised in other comprehensive
income, unless the recognition of such changes in other
comprehensive income would create or enlarge an accounting
mismatch in profit or loss. Changes in fair value attributable
to a financial liability’s credit risk are not subsequently
reclassified to profit or loss. Under HKAS 39, the entire
amount of the change in the fair value of the financial liability
designated as at fair value through profit or loss is recognised

in profit or loss.

With regard to impairment of financial assets, HKFRS 9
has adopted an expected credit loss model, as opposed to
an incurred credit loss model required under HKAS 39. In
general, the expected credit loss model requires an entity to
assess the change in credit risk of the financial asset since
initial recognition at each reporting date and to recognise the
expected credit loss depending on the degree of the change
in credit risk.
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New and revised HKFRSs that have been
issued but are not yet effective - continued

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments - continued

With regard to the general hedge accounting requirements,
HKFRS 9 retains the three types of hedge accounting
mechanisms currently available in HKAS 39. Under HKFRS
9, greater flexibility has been introduced to the types of
transactions eligible for hedge accounting, specifically
broadening the types of instruments that qualify for hedging
instruments and the types of risk components of non-financial
items that are eligible for hedge accounting. In addition, the
effectiveness test has been overhauled and replaced with
the principle of an ‘economic relationship’. Retrospective
assessment of hedge effectiveness is also no longer required.
Enhanced disclosure requirements about an entity’s risk

management activities have also been introduced.

In the opinion of the Directors, based on the historical
experience of the Group, the Group experienced bad debts
on outstanding balances with customers and other debtors.
Hence, the Directors anticipate that application of the
new impairment requirements under HKFRS 9 may result
in impairment on the Group’s financial assets recognised
in earlier accounting periods due to the expected loss
impairment model. The Group will perform a more detailed
analysis upon the application of HKFRS 9.
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New and revised HKFRSs that have been
issued but are not yet effective — continued

HKFRS 16 Leases

HKFRS 16 will supersede the current lease guidance including
HKAS 17 Leases and the related interpretations when it
becomes effective.

With regard to lessee accounting, the distinction of operating
leases and finance leases, as required by HKAS 17, has been
replaced by a model which requires a right-of-use asset and
a corresponding liability to be recognised for all leases by
lessees except for short-term leases and leases of low value
assets. Specifically, the right-of-use asset is initially measured
at cost and subsequently measured at cost (subject to certain
exceptions) less accumulated depreciation and impairment
losses, adjusted for any re-measurement of the lease
liability. The lease liability is initially measured at the present
value of the lease payments that are not paid at that date.
Subsequently, the lease liability is adjusted for interest and
lease payments. Furthermore, the classification of cash flows
will also be affected as operating lease payments under HKAS
17 are presented as operating cash flows; whereas, under
the HKFRS 16 model, the lease payments will be split into a
principal and an interest portion which will be presented as
financing and operating cash flows respectively.

With regard to lessor accounting, HKFRS 16 substantially
carries forward the lessor accounting requirements in HKAS
17, and continues to require a lessor to classify a lease either
as an operating lease or a finance lease.

Furthermore, HKFRS 16 requires extensive disclosures in the
financial statements.

The operating lease commitments of the Group in respect of
leased premises as at 31 December 2016 and 2017 are set out
in note 38. The Group expects that the adoption of HKFRS
16 is unlikely to result in significant impact on the Group's
results but it is expected that certain portion of these lease
commitments will require to be recognised in the consolidated
statement of financial position as right-of-use assets and lease
liabilities.
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New and revised HKFRSs that have been
issued but are not yet effective - continued

Amendments to HKFRS 2 Classification

and Measurement of Share-based Payment
Transactions

The amendments clarify the followings:

- In estimating the fair value of a cash-settled share-
based payment, the accounting for the effects of
vesting and non-vesting conditions should follow
the same approach as for equity-settled share-based

payments.

- Where tax law of regulation requires an entity to
withhold a specified number of equity instruments
equal to the monetary value of the employee’s tax
obligation to meet the employee’s tax liability which is
then remitted to the tax authority, i.e. the share-based
payment arrangement has a ‘net settlement feature’,
such an arrangement should be classified as equity-
settled in its entirety, provided that the share-based
payment would have been classified as equity-settled
had it not included the net settlement feature.

- A modification of a share-based payment that changes
the transaction from cash-settled to equity-settled
should be accounted for as follows: (i) the original
liability is derecognised; (ii) the equity-settled share-
based payment is recognised at the modification date
fair value of the equity instrument granted to the
extent that services have been rendered up to the
modification date; and (iii) any difference between
the carrying amount of the liability at the modification
date and the amount recognised in equity should by

recognised in profit or loss immediately.
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New and revised HKFRSs that have been
issued but are not yet effective — continued

Amendments to HKFRS 2 Classification

and Measurement of Share-based Payment
Transactions - continued

The Group does not have any cash-settled share-based
payment arrangements or any withholding tax arrangements
with tax authorities in relation to share-based payments and
hence the Directors do not anticipate that the application of
the amendments in the future will have a significant impact
on the Group’s consolidated financial statements.

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28
Sale or Contribution of Assets between an
Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture

The amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 deal with
situations where there is a sale or contribution of assets
between an investor and its associate or joint venture.
Specifically, the amendments state that gains or losses
resulting from the loss of control of a subsidiary that does
not contain a business in a transaction with an associate or a
joint venture that is accounted for using the equity method,
are recognised in the parent’s profit or loss only to the
extent of the unrelated investors’ interests in that associate
or joint venture. Similarly, gains and losses resulting from
the re-measurement of investments retained in any former
subsidiary (that has become an associate or a joint venture
that is accounted for using the equity method) to fair value
are recognised in the former parent’s profit or loss only to
the extent of the unrelated investors' interests in the new

associate or joint venture.

The Group did enter into these transactions in the current
year. The Directors anticipate that the application of these
amendments may have an impact on the Group’s consolidated
financial statements in future periods should such transactions

arise.
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The principal accounting policies are set out below:

Basis of consolidation
The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial

statements of the Company and its subsidiaries (the “Group”).

When the Company has, directly or indirectly, less than a majority
of the voting or similar rights of an investee, the Group considers all
relevant facts and circumstances in assessing whether it has power

over an investee, including:

- the contractual arrangement with the other vote holders of
the investee;

- rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and

- the Group's voting rights and potential voting rights.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts
and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or more of
the three elements of control listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains control
over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group losses control of the
subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses of a subsidiary acquired
or disposed of during the year are included in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income from the
date the Group gains control until the date when the Group ceases to
control the subsidiary.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements of
subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies in line with the Group’s
accounting policies.

All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and
cash flows relating to transactions between members of the Group
are eliminated in full on consolidation.

When the Group losses control of a subsidiary, it (i) derecognises the
assets and liabilities of the subsidiary at their carrying amounts at the
date when control is lost, and (ii) recognises the aggregate of the
fair value of the consideration received, with any resulting difference
being recognised as a gain or loss in profit or loss attributable to the
Group.
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Business combination and goodwill

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition
method. The consideration transferred in a business combination
is measured at fair value, which is calculated as the sum of the
acquisition-date fair values of the assets transferred by the Group,
liabilities assumed by the Group to the former owners of the acquiree
and the equity interests issued by the Group in exchange for control
of the acquiree. For each business combination, the Group elects
whether to measure non-controlling interests that are present
ownership interests and entitle their holders to a proportionate share
of the entity’s net assets in the event of liquidation at fair value or at
the non-controlling interests’ proportionate share of the acquiree’s
identifiable net assets. Acquisition-related costs are expensed as

incurred.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the financial assets
and liabilities assumed for appropriate classification and designation
in accordance with the contractual terms, economic circumstances
and pertinent conditions as at the acquisition date. This includes the
separation of embedded derivatives in host contracts of the acquiree.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the previously held
equity interest is remeasured at its acquisition date fair value and any
resulting gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss.

When a business combination is achieved in stages, the Group’s
previously held equity interest in the acquiree is remeasured to fair
value at the acquisition date (i.e. the date when the Group obtains
control), and the resulting gain or loss, if any, is recognised in the
consolidated income statement.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the acquirer
is recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. Contingent
consideration classified as an asset or a liability that is a financial
instrument and within the scope of HKAS 39 is measured at fair
value with changes in fair value either recognised in profit or loss
or as a change to other comprehensive income. If the contingent
consideration is not within the scope of HKAS 39, it is measured in
accordance with the appropriate HKFRS. Contingent consideration
that is classified as equity is not remeasured and subsequent
settlement is accounted for within equity.

e+ A=+ —AIEER

EBEashEE
EBAHDABRBEAR - R EHER
ZREZAVEFE  HAESTAREE
BEEEE L BEARATE AXREEE
BREBETNEEAZEY URBAXSE
B 2 ) AR BRAR R B 07 i I 2 dE AR Z%@
M- HREREHAH AKEMEEL
Tﬁ@?@&ﬂz#% P 1 2 17 1 W B 05 ]
BAOEEFECHYGEBREMZESR
EREERBTEREARBERRLLD
EHRBERFEE ZIFERER - WHHEMK
PRATREE AR ST 8H ©

BEAKBUE -BEBE  SREANK
B RUREE BB 2 BRI ROARR R
AR AEZHBEERAR  KIELE
E2oBERETR  EheEommskiEs
TRHPZBMAANTETR -

HEBEHIRERET  UERBZRA
g WERBZ ATEENGE £
17.1]*%552”5( E‘ZESTEF\*E EPE@WUO

2 A 6f 0 B BUSTEK - AN 5 B SR B A 4
WETRA 2R AREEHNFTEZWEA
HENAEEESEHEER) 2QFE
MAEEZ RERERE (WE) R s K aE
REER

EEHﬁlﬁ%ﬁﬂ%?’i%ZEﬁﬁ%ﬁ%Hﬁ%
W HE R BIE A FERER - Eﬁ?)ﬁ\ﬁfﬁ?ﬁ%‘
BA—BEELAR MEBEBEEA
EIREBEAZH B LA ﬁ?ﬁﬂﬂ?TE:Jr
2 mEA ifﬁ FE RN BRSEAEMS
AREBEHER - MAARARETBRES
auﬂ"‘i@']%%fﬁﬁ TEEE - AlRRBREE
ZEAMBHRELERGTE - MAARES
HhER ROAENe AAKLEHE
RIS ER o

Annual Report 2 01 7 95



For the year ended 31 December 2017 HZ=F—+F+-A=+—HIEFE

96

Business combination and goodwill - continued
Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of the sum
of the consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling
interests in the acquiree, and the fair value of the acquirer’s previously
held equity interest in the acquiree (if any) over the net of the
acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable assets acquired and the
liabilities assumed. If, after assessment, the net of the acquisition-date
amounts of the identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed
exceeds the sum of the consideration transferred, the amount of any
non-controlling interests in the acquiree and the fair value of the
acquirer’s previously held interest in the acquiree (if any), the excess
is recognised immediately in income statement as a bargain purchase
gain.

If the initial accounting for a business combination is incomplete by
the end of the reporting period in which the combination occurs,
the Group reports provisional amounts for the items for which the
accounting is incomplete. Those provisional amounts are adjusted
during the measurement period, or additional assets or liabilities
are recognised, to reflect new information obtained about facts and
circumstances that existed as of the acquisition date that, if known,
would have affected the amounts recognised as of that date.

After initial recognition, goodwill is carried at cost less accumulated
impairment losses, if any, and is presented separately in the
consolidated statement of financial position.
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Business combination and goodwill - continued
Goodwill is tested for impairment annually or more frequently if
events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount
may be impaired. The Group performs its annual impairment test of
goodwill as at 31 December. For the purposes of impairment testing,
goodwill is allocated to each of the Group’s cash-generating units
("CGU") (or groups of CGU) that is expected to benefit from the
synergies of the combination, irrespective of whether other assets
or liabilities of the Group are assigned to those CGU or groups of
CGU. Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable amount
of the CGU (or group of CGU) to which the goodwill relates. If the
recoverable amount of the CGU (or group of CGU) is less than its
carrying amount, the impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the
carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the CGU (or group
of CGU) and then to the other assets of the CGU on a pro-rata
basis based on the carrying amount of each asset in the CGU. Any
impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed in subsequent
periods.

Where goodwill has been allocated to a CGU (or group of CGU) and
part of the operation within that CGU is disposed of, the goodwill
associated with the operation disposed of is included in the carrying
amount of the operation when determining the gain or loss on the
disposal. Goodwill disposed of in these circumstances is measured
based on the relative value of the operation disposed of and the
portion of the CGU retained.

Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured entity), directly or
indirectly, controlled by the Company. Control is achieved when
the Group is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee and has the ability to affect those
returns through its power over the investee (i.e. existing rights that
give the Group the current ability to direct the relevant activities of
the investee).

In the Company’s statement of financial position, interests in
subsidiaries are stated at cost less impairment loss, if any. The results
of subsidiaries are accounted for by the Company on the basis of
dividend received and receivable.
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Associate

An associate is an entity in which the Group has significant influence,
which is the power to participate in the financial and operating policy
decision of the investee, but is not control or joint control over those
policies.

An interest in an associate is accounted for in the consolidated
financial statements under the equity method, less any impairment
losses, unless it is classified as held for sale. Adjustments are made
to bring into line any dissimilar accounting policies that may exist.
Under the equity method, the investment is initially recorded at cost,
adjusted for any excess of the Group’s share of the acquisition-date
fair value of the investee’s identifiable net assets over the cost of
the investment (if any). Thereafter, the investment is adjusted for
the post-acquisition change in the Group’s share of the investee's
net assets and any impairment loss relating to the investment. Any
acquisition-date excess over cost, the Group’s share of the post-
acquisition, post-tax results of the investees and any impairment
losses for the year are recognised in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss, whereas the Group’s share of the post-acquisition post-
tax items of the investees’ other comprehensive income is recognised
in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

When the Group’s share of losses exceeds its investment in the
associate, the Group's interest is reduced to zero and recognition of
further losses is discontinued except to the extent that the Group has
incurred legal or constructive obligations or made payments on behalf
of the investee. For this purpose, the Group's interest is the carrying
amount of the investment under the equity method together with
the Group’s long-term interests that in substance form part of the
Group's net investment in the associate.

Unrealised profits and losses resulting from transactions between the
Group and its associate are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s
interest in the investee, except where unrealised losses provide
evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred, in which case they
are recognised immediately in the profit or loss. Goodwill arising from
the acquisition of associate is included as part of the Group's interest
in an associate.
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Property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment including leasehold land and buildings

(classified as finance lease) held for use in the production or supply
of goods or services, or for administrative purposes (other than
construction in progress) are stated in the consolidated statement of
financial position at cost less subsequent accumulated depreciation

and subsequent accumulated impairment losses.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of items
of property, plant and equipment other than properties under
construction less their residual values over their estimated useful lives,

using straight-line method, as follows:

Leasehold land and buildings Over the estimated useful lives of
30 years
Leasehold improvements Over the remaining life of the lease
but not exceeding 3 years
Furniture, fixtures 10% - 33'/,%

and equipments

Production equipment 20%
Motor vehicles 20%
Plant and machinery 10%

The estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation method
are reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with the effect of
any changes in estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected to arise
from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on
disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant and equipment
is determined as the difference between the sale proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in profit or loss.

Properties in the course of construction for production, supply
or administrative purposes are carried at cost less any recognised
impairment loss. Such properties are classified to the appropriate
categories of property, plant and equipment when completed and
ready for intended use. Depreciation of these assets, on the same
basis as other property assets, commences when the assets are ready

for their intended use.

ME BELRIKESRSANEELHE
EmERH RABTHRE N (ERETREKE
SR HEL M RETF (DEERE
HE) » DIERAREEZ RFHTERER
ZRIBREBERGEEEBRRNRIE -

ME BELERERE (FTEEEEDE)
HBENBEERRABERERE MG AL
REMNERTEAMBEELRA LT E
L

HELHRETF REFATRAES0E

MEKRR RESHEEH (TR
B3F)

B RERRE 10%Z£33",%

EERE 20%

AE 20%

TR/ Rt 28 10%

HEAAERFY  MBREERFTELER
EWREHMARSRN  HHEPHZTE
BRIBHEENER -

ME BERRKERENLERIBERE
B REER T E 4R R 21 B R
HEER AN EXWMEYE  BERRE
BEEAZEAEERER  KRZBEEE
ZHEMSRBEARAEL N EZHEE

ERRAEE  HEHITRE /Y 82
BZMERRAEREMC R ERE
SRR - EERETRTEREARAERTER
B BEMERBAYE  BERRB
ZHEENE ERFEEARAERER
A FREHRITE  REEEE MY X
BEEMR -

Annual l;ep%rit 2 01 7 99



For the year ended 31 December 2017 HZ=F—+F+-A=+—HIEFE

100

Intangible assets

Film rights and licence fees

Film rights and licence fees are carried at costs less accumulated
amortisation and accumulated impairment losses, if any. Costs
incurred to produce or acquire programme rights for the Group to
broadcast related programmes on the Group’s Over-The-Top (“OTT")
platform, are capitalised as “Intangible assets”. Film rights and
licence fees are amortised based on estimated viewing patterns. The
amortisation is on an accelerated basis as the Group typically expects
more upfront viewings at the initial periods after commencement of
viewing. Other payments made in advance or in arrears of film right
and licence fees recognised are stated in the consolidated statement
of financial position as “Trade and other receivables, deposits and

prepayments” or “Trade and other payables”.

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset
are measured at the difference between the net disposal proceeds
and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognised in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss when the asset is

derecognised.

Other intangible assets
Other intangible assets acquired in a business combination are

recognised separately from goodwill and are initially recognised at
their fair value at the acquisition date (which is regarded as their
cost).

Subsequent to initial recognition, other intangible assets with finite
useful lives are carried at cost less accumulated amortisation and any
accumulated impairment losses. Amortisation for other intangible
asset with finite useful life is provided on a straight-line basis over its
estimated useful life.
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Intangible assets — continued

Other intangible assets — continued

Other intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are not amortised.
The useful life of an intangible asset with an indefinite life is reviewed
annually to determine whether indefinite life assessment continues to
be supportable. If not, the change in the useful life assessment from
being indefinite to finite is accounted for on a prospective basis.

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases when the terms of the lease
transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to the
lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

The Group as lessee
Assets held under finance leases are initially recognised as assets

at their fair value or, if lower, the present value of the minimum
lease payments. The corresponding lease commitment is shown as a
liability. Lease payments are analysed between capital and interest.
The interest element is charged to profit or loss over the period of the
lease and is calculated so that it represents a constant proportion of
the lease liability. The capital element reduces the balance owed to

the lessor.

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a straight-
line basis over the lease term, except where another systematic basis
is more representative of the time pattern in which economic benefits
from the leased asset are consumed.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
HREMEBRRME(R)

For the year ended 31 December 2017 HZ=F—+F+-A=+—HIEFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. XEETBEX-&
— CONTINUED
Inventories "7E
Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. FENEGKAEEIEFERE CRIEKE
Cost is calculated using the first-in, first-out method. Net realisable FIEBR o R ANE R A H AT E - A &R
value represents the estimated selling price for inventories less all FEETFEZHAEBRETTIAERN
estimated costs of completion and costs necessary to make the sale. HEMBZFTBRKA °
When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of those inventories is FEEHE ZSEFEEHEERZAE
recognised as an expense in the period in which the related revenue s AR AR - £/ B HMET
is recognised. The amount of any write down of inventories to net EENERFEMELAZCEIRERFRE
realisable value and all losses of inventories are recognised as an BRELBHREBEEMBMSIBL 2 BARER A
expense in the period the write down or loss occurs. The amount X - EREEAMRTEREEZ
of any reversal of any write down of inventories is recognised as a SR AT ESTEER - R LR
reduction in the amount of inventories recognised as an expense in B HEERAEAY -

the period in which the reversal occurs.
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 HEZ=T—+F+-A=+—HIEFE

Financial instruments

(a)

Financial assets

The Group classifies its financial assets at initial recognition,
depending on the purpose for which the asset was acquired.
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL")
are initially measured at fair value and all other financial
assets are initially measured at fair value plus transaction costs
that are directly attributable to the acquisition to the financial

assets.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at FVTPL include financial assets held for
trading and those designated as at FVTPL upon initial
recognition.

Financial assets are classified as held for trading if they are
acquired for the purpose of sale in the near term. Derivatives,
including separated embedded derivatives, are also classified
as held for trading unless they are designated as effective
hedging instruments or financial guarantee contracts.

Financial assets designated upon initial recognition as at FVTPL
are designated at the date of initial recognition and only if
the criteria in HKAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement are satisfied.

Subsequently to initial recognition, financial assets at FVTPL
are measured at fair value, with changes in fair value
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they arise.
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Financial instruments — continued

(a)

Financial assets — continued

Loans and receivables
Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with

fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an
active market. They arise principally through the provision
of goods and services to customers (trade receivables), and
also incorporate other types of contractual monetary assets.
Subsequent to initial recognition, loans and receivables
(including trade and other receivables, loan receivables, other
assets, pledged bank deposits and bank balances and cash)
are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
method, less any identified impairment losses (see accounting
policy on impairment of loans and receivables below).

Impairment of loans and receivables

The Group assesses, at the end of each reporting period,
whether there is any objective evidence that a financial asset
or a group of financial assets is impaired. An impairment
exists if one or more events that occurred after the initial
recognition of the asset have an impact on the estimated
future cash flows of the financial asset or a group of financial
assets that can be reliably estimated. Evidence of impairment
may include:

- significant financial difficulty of the debtor;

- a breach of contract, such as a default or delinquency
in interest or principal payments;

- granting concession to a debtor because of debtor’s
financial difficulty; and

- it becoming probable that the debtor will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation.
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Financial instruments — continued

(a)

Financial assets — continued

Impairment of loans and receivables — continued
For certain categories of loans and receivables, such as trade
receivables, assets that are assessed not to be impaired
individually are, in addition, assessed for impairment on
a collective basis. Objective evidence of impairment for
a portfolio of receivables could include the Group’s past
experience of collecting payments, an increase in the number
of delayed payments in the portfolio past the average credit
period, observable changes in national or local economic
conditions that correlate with default on receivables.

The amount of the impairment loss recognised is the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
present value of the estimated future cash flows discounted at
the original effective interest rate.

The carrying amount is reduced by the impairment loss
directly for all loans and receivables with the exception of
trade and other receivables, where the carrying amount
is reduced through the use of an allowance account.
Changes in the carrying amount of the allowance account
are recognised in profit or loss. When a trade and other
receivable is considered uncollectible, it is written off against
the allowance account. Subsequent recoveries of amounts
previously written off are credited to profit or loss.
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Financial instruments — continued

(b)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group entity
are classified as either financial liabilities or as equity
in accordance with the substance of the contractual
arrangements entered into and the definitions of a financial
liability and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all of its
liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Company are
recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Convertible bonds

The component parts of compound instruments (convertible
bonds) issued by the Company are classified separately
as financial liabilities and equity in accordance with the
substance of the contractual arrangements and the definitions
of a financial liability and an equity instrument. Conversion
option that will be settled by the exchange of a fixed amount
of cash or another financial asset for a fixed number of the

Company’s own equity instruments is an equity instrument.

At the date of issue, the fair value of the liability component
is estimated using the prevailing market interest rate for
similar non-convertible instruments. This amount is recorded
as a liability on an amortised cost basis using the effective
interest method until extinguished upon conversion or at the
instrument’s maturity date.
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Financial instruments — continued

(b)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

— continued

Convertible bonds — continued

The conversion option classified as equity is determined by
deducting the amount of the liability component from the
fair value of the compound instrument as a whole. This
is recognised and included in equity, net of income tax
effects, and is not subsequently remeasured. In addition, the
conversion option classified as equity will remain in equity
until the conversion option is exercised, in which case, the
balance recognised in equity will be transferred to share
premium. When the conversion option remains unexercised
at the maturity date of the convertible bonds, the balance
recognised in equity will be transferred to retained profits.
No gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss upon conversion

expiration of the conversion option.

Transaction costs that relate to the issue of the convertible
bonds are allocated to the liability and equity components
in proportion to the allocation of the gross proceeds.
Transaction costs relating to the equity component are
recognised directly in equity. Transaction costs relating to the
liability component are included in the carrying amount of the
liability component and are amortised over the lives of the
convertible bonds using the effective interest method.

Financial liabilities

The Group’s financial liabilities include trade and other
payables, bond payables, short-term bank loans, short-term
loans from other financial institution and other borrowing are
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective
interest method.
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Financial instruments — continued

(c)

(d)

(e)

Derecognition
The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire.

On derecognition of a financial asset, the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of the consideration
received and receivable and the cumulative gain or loss that
had been recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in equity is recognised in profit or loss.

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only
when, the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or
expire. The difference between the carrying amount of the
financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid and
payable is recognised in profit or loss.

Offsetting financial instruments
Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount

reported in the statement of financial position when there is
a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts
and there is an intention to settle on a net basis or realise
the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. The legally
enforceable right must not be contingent on future events
and must be enforceable in the normal course of business and
in the event of default, insolvency or bankruptcy of the Group
or the counterparty.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a debt instrument and of allocating interest
income over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts
(including all fees and points paid or received that form an
integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs
and other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of
the debt instrument, or, where appropriate, a shorter period,
to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest basis for
debt instruments.

ASIA TELEVISION HOLDINGS LIMITED
THNERERERLF

T—+F+-A=1+—HILFE

Mﬁlﬂ—ﬁ

(c)

(d)

(e)

m _Lt%’ﬁ/b\
AEEEROEERBRERZA
DN RS LR EE

RIFERVBEER  EEREAE
HEREERREUERTES
(BEREMEERSEERIL N ERS R
1) BB =5 - NIESIRIER -

AEBREEEEERK  BUBHK
BIER > TR FERMBERE -
BRIHRAZUBEE RAESR
ENEENRERNEZERENER

i HE T A
BAEAEARGHNITROEEC
ReW THEBERFAELELEE
FAFEREEMEEARE - 8
BEEREEN G WEH
BN RS HFER o SR TE Al 38
TN DA SKBEARKE T
E - MAEIER S5 8 E A K A
SERHT-BHBRRY  BENE
BERWER - EHMAF TREIH
fre

B FIEOA
KBS AR —BARBAMAA

‘\Ef”g{fﬁ%l,iz&&fﬁﬁ?$u&“
FEF B AZTTE ° &2 —
&1 ﬁi‘%lﬂﬂﬁﬁﬁﬂ%@ﬁiiﬁz(ﬁm@
B)BRHMAERBIRGRKR
SWAR (BEMBEBKERA X
BRIAMERH N RKEWE
B RXZEREEMEERTE)
2R BYRERE ZREFE
ZREK -

EBTAZFEHLRERA =L
R -



For the year ended 31 December 2017 HEZ=T—+F+-A=+—HIEFE

Share-based payment transactions

Share options granted to directors and employees

The fair value of services received determined by reference to the fair
value of share options granted at the grant date is recognised as an
expense in full at the grant date when the share options granted vest
immediately, with a corresponding increase in equity (share option

reserve).

When the share options are exercised, the amount previously
recognised in share option reserve will be transferred to share
premium. When the share options are forfeited after the vesting date
or are still not exercised at the expiry date, the amount previously
recognised in share option reserve will be transferred to retained
profits.

Impairment of non-financial assets

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the carrying
amounts of its non-financial assets to determine whether there is
any indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss.
If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset
is estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment
loss. When it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of
an individual asset, the Group estimates the recoverable amount
of the CGU to which the asset belongs. Where a reasonable and
consistent basis of allocation can be identified, corporate assets are
also allocated to individual CGU, or otherwise they are allocated to
the smallest group of CGU for which a reasonable and consistent
allocation basis can be identified.
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Impairment of non-financial assets - continued
Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of disposal
and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash
flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount
rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the asset for which the estimates of
future cash flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a CGU) is estimated to be
less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset (or
a CGU) is reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset (or a CGU) is increased to the revised estimate
of its recoverable amount, to the extent that the increased carrying
amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determined had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset (or
a CGU) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised

as income immediately.

Revenue recognition

The Group recognises revenue when it transfers control of a product
or service to a customer. Revenue excludes amounts collected on
behalf of third parties.
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Revenue recognition - continued
The Group recognises revenue from the following major sources:

- Sales of goods from processing of fabrics and trading of
fabrics and garment products;

- Services income from subcontracting services on fabrics

processing;
- Income from entertainment and media services;
- Interest income from loan to customers;

- Commission and service income from underwriting, placing

and brokerage and related services; and

- Interest income from margin financing.

Sales of goods

The Group sells finished fabrics to customers. Revenue is recognised
when control of the goods is transferred to the customers being
when the goods are shipped to the customer’s specific location
(delivery). Following delivery, the customer has full discretion over
the manner of distribution and price to sell the goods, has the
primary responsibility when onselling the goods and bears the risks
of obsolescence and loss in relation to the goods. A receivable
is recognised by the Group when the goods are delivered to the
customer as this represents the point in time at which the right to
consideration becomes unconditional, as only the passage of time is
required before payment is due.

Subcontracting fee

The Group carries out processing, printing and subcontracting services
to fabrics provided by customers. Such services are recognised as a
performance obligation satisfied over time. Revenue is recognised for
these services based on the stage of completion of the contract.
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Revenue recognition — continued

Loan interest income

Loan interest income is recognised on an accrual basis using the
effective interest method by applying the rate that discounts the
estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the
financial instrument to the net carrying amount of the financial asset.
When a loan has been written down as a result of an impairment
loss, interest income is recognised using the rate of interest used to
discount the future cash receipts for the purpose of measuring the

impairment loss.

Interest income

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when it is
probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Group and
the amount of income can be measured reliably. Interest income is
accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and
at the effective interest rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly
discounts the estimated future cash receipts through the expected
life of the financial asset to that asset’s net carrying amount on initial
recognition.

Income from sale of securities
Income from sale of equity and debt securities is recognised on a

trade date basis.

Commission income for security brokerage

Commission and brokerage income are recognised at the rate agreed
in the contract with the customers at the point when the transaction
of securities trading is completed.

Commission income for underwriting and placing

The Group provides placing or public offer underwriting services to
customers under which the Group agrees to subscribe or procure
subscribers to subscribe for (i) agreed number of shares pursuant to
a placing or (ii) shares which are not taken up under public offer.
Commission income is recognised at a point in time upon the placing
shares and public offer shares have been successfully subscribed by
sufficient number of investors. Commission income will be received
immediately based on the rate agreed in underwriting agreement with
the issuers upon the placing and offering shares subscribed.
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Revenue recognition — continued

Income for securities related handling service

The Group provides securities related handling services on collection
of dividends or dividends in kind and physical stock handling for
customers’ securities under their custody. Handling services income
are recognised at the point of time when services provided and fee
received based on the listed price of relevant services notified to the
customers.

Short term employee benefits

Short term employee benefits are employee benefits (other than
termination benefits) that are expected to be settled wholly before
twelve months after the end of the annual reporting period in which
the employees render the related service. Short term employee
benefits are recognised in the year when the employees render the
related service.

Retirement benefit costs

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries in the PRC are members
of a state-managed retirement benefit plan operated by the
municipal government of the PRC where a group entity operates.
The subsidiaries are required to contribute a specified percentage of
payroll costs to the retirement benefits scheme to fund the benefits.
The only obligation of the Group with respect to the retirement
benefit plan is to make the specified contributions.

The Group also operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the
“MPF scheme”) under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund
Schemes Ordinance for employees employed under the jurisdiction
of the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance. The MPF scheme is a
defined contribution retirement plan administered by independent
trustees. Under the MPF scheme, the employer and its employees
are each required to make contributions to the plan at 5% of the
employees’ monthly relevant income, subject to a cap of HK$30,000.
Contributions to the plan vest immediately.
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Government grants

Government grants are not recognised until there is reasonable
assurance that the Group will comply with the conditions attaching to
them and that the grants will be received.

Government grants are recognised in profit or loss on a systematic
basis over the periods in which the Group recognises as expenses the
related costs for which the grants are intended to compensate.

Specifically, government grants whose primary condition is that
the Group should purchase, construct or otherwise acquire non-
current assets are recognised as deferred income in the consolidated
statement of financial position presented as government grant and
transferred to profit or loss on a systematic and rational basis over the
useful lives of the related assets.

Government grants that are receivables as compensation for expenses
or losses already incurred or for the purpose of giving immediate
financial support to the Group with no future related costs are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they become
receivable.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction
or production of qualifying assets, which are assets that necessarily
take a substantial period of time to get ready for the intended use
or sale, are added to the cost of those assets until such time as the
assets are substantially ready for their intended use or sale.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period
in which they are incurred.

Taxation
Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable
and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year.
Taxable profit differs from ‘profit/(loss) before taxation’ as reported in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income because it excludes items of income or expense that are
taxable or deductible in other years and it further excludes items that
are never taxable or deductible. The Group’s liability for current tax
is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period.
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Taxation - continued

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated financial
statements and the corresponding tax base used in the computation
of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for
all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are generally
recognised for all deductible temporary difference to the extent that
it is probable that taxable profits will be available against which
those deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such assets
and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference arises
from goodwill or from the initial recognition (other than in a business
combination) of other assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects
neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, except where
the Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary difference
and it is probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in
the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets arising from deductible
temporary differences associated with such investments are only
recognised to the extent that it is probable that there will be sufficient
taxable profits against which to utilise the benefits of the temporary
differences and they are expected to reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of
the reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or
part of the asset to be recovered.

— 4+ AS+—HILFE

BiE - &

EEBIEDR GV BRRAZEERA
18 2 P T B 22 &t 5 B AR A s N s P 2 PR 2
HEREZERZRMAER - IERRK
ERNEZHE - REREEHEAR - BER
HEE—REAABLEBRERRTE M N E
HAMBREEZRRAAA AT NG R E
HRER -NENZERAREHRA AR
TERBENT I EEFEN 2R 5P
MRER (EBaHBRIIN 2BEERAEM
£ AIZEEERABENTHR -

ERBIEABNRERMBRAR 2REM
BHZERBESZEMMBER  EEL%
Eﬂ@ﬁ%ﬁ%ﬁZ%@'uﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁ
ERAI R SRR BRI - RE
&éﬁﬁZTﬂm REZERELE ZRIER
HEEETEAPEKREEHERTIE M A
BREREREZSHEALRBRERA RS
REBEEIF T T LARER -

RIETRIRE E 2 REEN R & BE & RE
EiTiR > LARETBAIER T HER
Bt M A U 2 AR B BEZRE

Annual Report 201 7 1 1 5



For the year ended 31 December 2017 HZ=F—+F+-A=+—HIEFE

116

Taxation - continued

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that
are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is settled or
the asset is realised, based on tax rate (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax
consequences that would follow from the manner in which the Group
expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover or settle the
carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

Current and deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss, except when
they relate to items that are recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, in which case, the current and deferred
tax are also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly
in equity respectively. Where current tax or deferred tax arises from
the initial accounting for a business combination, the tax effect is
included in the accounting for business combination.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group entity,
transactions in currencies other than the functional currency of that
entity (foreign currencies) are recorded in the respective functional
currency (i.e. the currency of the primary economic environment in
which the entity operates) at the rates of exchanges prevailing on
the dates of the transactions. At the end of the reporting period,
monetary items denominated in foreign currencies are re-translated
at the rates prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items that are
measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not
re-translated.
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Foreign currencies — continued

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items,
and on the translation of monetary items, are recognised in profit or
loss in the period in which they arise.

For the purpose of presenting consolidated financial statements, the
assets and liabilities of the Group’s foreign operations are translated
into the presentation currency of the Group (i.e. RMB) using exchange
rates prevailing at the end of the reporting period. Income and
expense items are translated at the average exchange rates for the
year, unless exchange rates fluctuated significantly during the year,
in which case the exchange rates at the dates of the transactions are
used. Exchange differences arising, if any, are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity under the heading
of translation reserve. Such translation differences are reclassified to
profit or loss from equity in the period in which the foreign operation
is disposed of.

On the disposal of a foreign operation (i.e. a disposal of the Group's
entire interest in a foreign operation, or a disposal involving loss of
control over a subsidiary that includes a foreign operation, a disposal
involving loss of joint control over a jointly controlled entity that
includes a foreign operation, or a disposal involving loss of significant
influence over an associate that includes a foreign operation), all of
the exchange differences accumulated in equity in respect of that
operation attributable to the owners of the Company are reclassified
to profit or loss.
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Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand
deposits, and short-term highly liquid investments which are
readily convertible into known amounts of cash, are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value, and have a short maturity of
generally within three months when acquired.

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation
(legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, and it is probable
that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the
obligation and a reliable estimate of the amount of the obligation can
be made. Where the time value of money is material, provisions are
stated at the present value of the expenditure expected to settle the

obligation.

All provisions are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted to
reflect the current best estimate.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be
required, or the amount cannot be estimated reliably, the obligation
is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow
of economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations, whose existence
will only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one
or more future uncertain events not wholly within the control of the
Group are also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the probability

of outflow of economic benefits is remote.
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Related parties
(a) A person, or a close member of that person’s family, is related
to the Company if that person:

BHEEAL

(a)

i FEfR] A £/ A AT &4 -
HRFREARRRHRE -

— 4+ AS+—HILFE

A4

(i)

(i)

(iii)

has control or joint control over the Company;

has significant influence over the Company; or

is @ member of key management personnel of the
Company or the Company’s parent.

(b) An entity is related to the Company if any of the following

conditions applies:

(iii)

(iv)

(viii)

The entity and the Company are members of the same
group;

One entity is an associate or joint venture of the other
entity (or an associate or joint venture of the other
entity of which the other entity is a member);

The entity and the Company are joint ventures of the
same third party;

One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the
other entity is an associate of the third entity;

The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the
benefit of employees of either the Company or an
entity related to the Company;

The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a);

A person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence
over the entity or is a member of the key management
personnel of the entity (or of a parent of the entity);
and

The entity, or any member of a group of which it is
a part, provides key management personnel services
to the reporting entity or to the parent of the report
entity.

Close member of the family of a person are those family members

who may be expected to influence, or be influenced by, that person in

their dealings with the entity.
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In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which are
described in note 3, the directors of the Company are required to
make judgments, estimates and assumptions about the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from
other sources. The estimates and associated assumptions are based
on historical experience and other factors that are considered to be
relevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an on-
going basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the
period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only
that period, or in the period of the revision and future periods if the
revision affects both current and future periods.

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future and
other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the
reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the

next financial year.

Estimated impairment of property, plant and
equipment and prepaid lease payments

When there is an indication that property, plant and equipment,
prepaid lease payments or a CGU may be impaired, the Group
estimates the recoverable amount of the relevant asset or the
relevant CGU in which the relevant property, plant and equipment
and prepaid lease payments are belonged to. The amount of the
impairment loss is measured as the difference between the carrying
amount of the relevant asset or the CGU and the recoverable amount.
The recoverable amount is higher of value in use and fair value less
costs of disposal. Value in use is the estimated future cash flows
discounted to their present value using an appropriate discount
rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the relevant asset or the CGU. Where
the actual future cash flows or fair value less costs of disposal are
less or more than expected, or changes in facts and circumstances
which result in revisions of the estimated future cash flows for the
purpose of determining the value in use, further impairment loss
or reversal of impairment loss may arise. As at 31 December 2017,
the carrying amounts of property, plant and equipment and prepaid
lease payments are approximately RMB49,419,000 and RMB412,000
respectively (2016: RMB49,699,000 and RMB426,000 respectively).
Details of impairment losses provided and reversed during the year are
set out in note 9.
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Estimated impairment of other non-financial assets
Determining whether other non-financial assets are impaired requires
an estimation of the recoverable amount of the CGUs to which
non-financial assets have been allocated. The recoverable amount
calculation requires the Group to estimate the future cash flows
expected to arise from the CGUs and a suitable discount rate in
order to calculate the present value. Where the actual future cash
flows are less than expected, a material impairment loss may arise.
The carrying amounts of the Group's deposits for other investments
and investments in subsidiaries are disclosed in notes 21 and 12(b)
respectively.

Impairment of inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
Net realisable value is the estimated selling price for inventories, less
all the estimated costs of completion and costs necessary to make
the sales. The management reviews the inventory ageing listing on
a periodic basis for those aged inventories. This involves comparison
of carrying value of the aged inventory items with the respective net
realisable value. The purpose is to ascertain whether allowance is
required to be made in the consolidated financial statements for any
obsolete and slow moving items. Although the Group carried periodic
review on the net realisable value of inventory, the actual realisable
value of inventory is not known until the sale was concluded. At 31
December 2017, the carrying amount of inventories is approximately
RMB109,455,000 (2016: RMB106,724,000).

Provision for impairment of loans and receivables
The policy for the provision for impairment of loans and receivables
of the Group is based on the evaluation of collectability and ageing
analysis of accounts and on management’s judgement. A considerable
amount of judgement is required in assessing the ultimate realisation
of these loans and receivables, including the current creditworthiness
and the past collection history of each customer or counterparty. If
the financial conditions of customers or counterparties of the Group
were to deteriorate, resulting in an impairment of their ability to
make payments, additional provision for impairment may be required.
The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade and other receivables
and deposits and loan receivables are disclosed in notes 26 and 27
respectively.
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CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the Group
will be able to continue as a going concern while maximising the
return to shareholders through the optimisation of the debt and
equity balance. The Group’s overall strategy remains unchanged from
prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of liability component
of obligation under finance leases, bond payables, short-term bank
loans, short-term loans from other financial institution and other
borrowing, net of cash and cash equivalents and equity attributable
to owners of the Company, comprising issued share capital, reserves
and accumulated deficit as disclosed in the consolidated financial
statements.

The directors of the Company review the capital structure on a regular
basis. As part of this review, the directors of the Company consider
the cost of capital and the risks associated with the capital. Based on
recommendations of the directors of the Company, the Group will
balance its overall capital structure through various means, including
but not limited to the new share issues, raising of bank or other loans
or the redemption of existing debt.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

a.

GeEMBERRME(E)

For the year ended 31 December 2017 2= —+tF+-A=+—HIEFE

6. HMK¥IHR

Categories of financial instruments a. HMBIARZER
2017 PAONES)
—E—+F —E-REF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T AR For
Financial assets MEEE
Loans and receivables (including cash ERREKRZE(BERS R
and cash equivalents) BEEEY) 666,031 300,017
Financial assets at fair value through BAFEGFAEBREZ
profit or loss MBEE 52,413 201,422
718,444 501,439
Financial liabilities g 3=N
Financial liabilities at RBEKNATEY
amortised costs T BE 388,535 505,410
BHRMREEREREE

Financial risk management objectives and
policies

The Group’s financial instruments include trade and other
receivables, loan receivables, financial assets at FVTPL, other
assets, pledged bank deposits, bank balances and cash, trade
and other payables, bond payables, finance leases, short-term
bank loans, short-term loans from other financial institution
and other borrowing. Details of these financial instruments
are disclosed in respective notes. The risks associated with
these financial instruments include market risk, credit risk,
liquidity risk and equity price risk. The policies on how to
mitigate these risks are set out below. The management
manages and monitors these exposures to ensure appropriate
measures are implemented on a timely and effective manner.
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b.

Financial risk management objectives and

policies — continued

Market risk

Interest rate risk

(i) Interest rate profile
The Group is mainly exposed to cash flow interest
rate risk in relation to variable-rate trade receivables
from securities brokerage and margin finance
segment such as cash clients and margin clients and
variable-rate bank deposits which is mainly relating
to the fluctuation of Hong Kong Prime Rate. The
management of the Group monitors the related
interest rate risk exposure closely to minimise these
interest rate risks.

The interest rate risk on bank deposits is limited

because of the short maturity.

The directors of the Company consider that the
exposure to cash flow interest rate risk on bank

deposits are insignificant.

(i) Sensitivity analysis
As at 31 December 2017, if interest rate had been
100 basis points higher/lower with all variables held
constant, the Group'’s loss before taxation would have
decreased/increased by approximately RMB526,000
(2016: Nil).

The decreased/increased loss before taxation results
from higher/lower interest income from trade
receivables from securities brokerage and margin
finance segment such as cash clients and margin
clients. The sensitivity analysis above indicates the
instantaneous change in the Group’s loss before
taxation that would arise assuming that the change in
interest rates had occurred at the end of the reporting

period.
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6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS — CONTINUED

—tEFT-A=1+—HLFE

6. MBTARA-&

b.  Financial risk management objectives and b. HMBEABEEEEREXE
policies - continued -&
Market risk — continued 5% g — A&
B R R

Currency risk

The functional currency of the group entities are mainly
Hong Kong dollars (“HK$"”) and RMB in which most of
the transactions are denominated in. The directors of the
Company consider that the group entities are exposed to
currency risk related primarily to financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss, other receivables, bank balances and
cash and short-term loans from other financial institution
that are denominated in a currency other than the functional
currency of the group entities.

The Group currently does not have a foreign currency hedging
policy. However, the management monitors foreign exchange
exposure and will consider hedging significant foreign
currency exposure should the need arises.
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The carrying amounts of the Group’s foreign currency AEBUIINEFTEZEREERA
denominated monetary assets and liabilities at the end of the ERREREREOREENT :

reporting period are as follows:

Assets Liabilities
BE =0
2017 2016 2017 2016
—tF —E-RF —E—LF —E-RF
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT AR®Fir ARBFir ARBFr
HK$ BT 173,386 226,097 359,779 320,663
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Financial risk management objectives and
policies — continued

Market risk — continued

Currency risk — continued

Sensitivity analysis

For the year ended 31 December 2017, the following
details the Group's sensitivity to a 5% increase in RMB, the
functional currency of the group entities against HK$. The
sensitivity analysis includes only outstanding foreign currency
denominated monetary items and adjusts their translation at
the end of the reporting period for a 5% change in foreign
currency rate. A positive number below indicated a decrease
in loss and increase in profit where the functional currency
of the group entity strengthens 5% against the HK$. For 5%
weakening of the functional currency of the group entity
against HK$, this would be an equal and opposite impact on
the loss/profit.

As at 31 December 2017, if the functional currency of the
group entities had strengthened 5% against HK$ with
all other variables held constant, the Group’s loss after
taxation for the year would have decreased by approximately
RMB9,320,000 (2016: profit after taxation increased by
RMB4,728,000). There would be an opposite effect if the
functional currency had weakened 5% against HK$.
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Financial risk management objectives and
policies — continued

Credit risk

As at 31 December 2017, the Group’s maximum exposure to
credit risk which will cause a financial loss to the Group due
to failure to discharge an obligation by the counterparties is
arising from the carrying amount of the respective recognised
financial assets as stated in the consolidated statement of
financial position.

In order to minimise the credit risk, the Group has policies
in place for determining credit limits, credit approvals and
other monitoring procedures to ensure that follow-up action
is taken to recover overdue debts. In addition, the Group
reviews the recoverable amount of each individual trade
debt at end of the reporting period to ensure that adequate
impairment losses are made for irrecoverable amounts. In
this regard, the directors of the Company consider that the
Group's credit risk is significantly reduced.
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b.

Financial risk management objectives and
policies — continued

Credit risk — continued

In relation to the securities brokerage and margin finance
business, the credit risk arises on the margin portfolio and
clients’ trade settlement. When the market goes downside,
the possibility of bad and doubtful debts will arise. The margin
clients may be unable or unwilling to settle the sum owed.
As such, credit assessment and continuous management of
credit exposures are indispensable. The Group has established
the credit policies and procedures setting out in details the
structure of the credit risk management, the credit approval
and monitoring mechanism, and the issue for overdue debts.
Meanwhile, the management has overseen the Group's overall
credit risk exposure arisen from margin clients. Moreover,
the Group closely evaluates the margin clients’ credit rating,
financial background and repayment abilities. The assessment
is based on a closely monitoring and evaluation of the
collectability of individual account and on management'’s
judgement from different aspects including the current
credit worthiness of the margin clients, collateral value and
the past collection history of each individual margin client.
In this regard, the directors of the Company consider that
the Group’s credit risk on receivables from margin clients is
significantly reduced.
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Financial risk management objectives and
policies — continued

Credit risk — continued

The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because the
counterparties are banks with high credit ratings assigned by
international credit — rating agencies and PRC stated-owned
banks with good reputation.

In order to minimise the credit risk on the advances to third
parties, the management of the Group closely monitor the
follow-up action taken to recover any loans outstanding
over 180 days. In addition, the Group monitors subsequent
settlement of each of the loans and receivables to ensure
that adequate impairment losses are made for irrecoverable
amounts. In this regard, the directors of the Company
consider that the Group's credit risk on the loan receivables is

significantly reduced.

In addition, the Group is exposed to concentration of credit risk
on other receivable of approximately RMB90,006,000 (2016:
RMB61,037,000) (note 26(d)(iii)) as at 31 December 2017 for
the purpose of acquisition of Asia Television Limited (“ATV")
as discussed in note 12(a) to the consolidated financial
statements.
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b.

Financial risk management objectives and
policies — continued

Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group monitors
and maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents deemed
adequate by the management to finance the Group’s
operations and mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash
flows. Based on the good working relationship with its banks
and other financial institution and to optimise the use of
the Group's liquid funds, the Group will consider renewing
the bank and other financial institution loans upon their
maturities. The directors of the Company are of the opinion
that the existing facilities from banks and other financial
institution could be successfully renewed upon maturity based
on the past history and good relationships of the Group with
the banks and other financial institution. The management
monitors the utilisation of bank and other loans, finance
leases, bond payables and ensures compliance with loan
covenants. The directors of the Company closely monitor the
cash flow of the Group and, upon maturity, would arrange
the renewal and refinancing of the bank and other loans and
bond payables, where necessary, to enable the Group to carry
on its operations in the foreseeable future. In this regard, the
directors of the Company consider that the Group’s liquidity
risk is significantly reduced and are satisfied that the Group
will be able to meet in full its financial obligations as they
fall due the foreseeable future. Accordingly, the consolidated
financial statements have been prepared on a going-concern

basis.

In addition, the Group is exposed to liquidity risk in relation
to financial guarantees given to banks provided by the
Group. The Group’s maximum exposure in this respect is
the maximum amount the Group could have to pay if the

guarantee is called on (note 34).

The following table details the Group’s remaining contractual
maturity for its non-derivative financial liabilities based on
the agreed repayment terms. For non-derivative financial
liabilities, the table has been drawn up based on the
undiscounted cash flows of non-derivative financial liabilities
based on the earliest date on which the Group can be
required to pay. The table includes both interest and principal
cash flows. To the extent that interest flows are floating rate,
the undiscounted amount is derived from interest rate at the
end of the reporting period.

ASIA TELEVISION HOLDINGS LIMITED

HNEREZRERQF

BEEBREEERERERE
— &
BB T B R

EEERDESRRE  AEEE
RRBEFERERRABEARH A
SRBRCEEY UWREAKEZ %
BRHES  WRERSRERD
ZRE - mNAREEERRITR
Hit S BMEBREFRITNE (FH
B URABEBEAEERDHESH
B AEBEEEBRNRTREAM
CREBERINGNEEFHE
R ARRERERE ERNBEL
B e AN B HAR T N B & R
BZBERRE BARBRITRE
it & BB 2 BB K AT R B B A
RMERE - ERBERRITREM
EX mEHE EBNEFZHA
B UHRREEFERRSE - K
AAEFEYEEAREZRER
E UYRFEFHIHAZRITRHE
ERARENESETERERE
BE LB UEARK BN A R AR
REEBT -t E - ARAES
REAEEZRPESRBREAKN
A - (5 AR B R] R A SR A
MEEARTHIMZHMBEE - F
bt SRAMBEBMRBITELEERE
mE -

BEAN - REE A ERITRE Z 8
BREERMESARASHE SRR
AEBEEUDTEZZANRR B HE
WREXRBITERERBAKEAX
MZz&meE (HEE34) -

TRFFDIRIE W 7 B R E 3
TEMBRBEIRBREHEEA -
SRIEITAM BRGNS - TRIVR
BASKBERFAREREERTE
MHABEERMBREZRTHRR
ERBMAER  EeEMNEREE
REnE -BMERZE BRI
Re et RS AR ERE =
S o



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
REMBESRME(R)

For the year ended 31 December 2017 BE =T —+tF+-A=1+—HItFE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS — CONTINUED 6. MBIA-&

b.  Financial risk management objectives and b. HHEEABREEAFERBRE
policies - continued — &
Liquidity risk — continued HEE LA &

Weighted
average On demand Total Carrying

effective or less than 3 months QOver undiscounted amount at
interest rate 3 months to 1 year 1 year cash flows 31.12.2017

it
3

% =@
AT E-E —ElE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ANEETT AEETT AEETT T
2017 Z8-tf
Trade and other payables* B REM R - 170,525 - - 170,525 170,525
Bond payables EfifES 8.00 4,662 62,937 - 67,599 63,908
Obligation under finance leases BERERE 6.34 51 154 402 607 577
Short-term bank loans - fixed rate ~ BHRTEF-F& 537 - 119,621 - 119,621 113,550
Short-term loans from other financial RE 2t & BIER
institution - fixed rate LEEER-E8 8.25 8,340 - - 8,340 8,340
Other borrowing - fixed rate EHiEE-E8 8.00 - 34,159 - 34,159 31,635

183,578 216,871 402 400,851 388,535
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
REMEBBRRME(R)

For the year ended 31 December 2017 BE =T —+tF+ A =+—HItFE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS — CONTINUED 6. B IH-&

b.  Financial risk management objectives and b. BHBEABEEEEREXE
policies - continued — &
Liquidity risk — continued B EZE g — &

Weighted
average On demand Total Carrying
effective or less than 3 months Over undiscounted amount at

interest rate 3 months to 1 year 1 year cash flows 31.12.2016

=fEA
=AM £ —FHE j
RMB‘000 RMB‘000 RMB‘000 RMB‘000 RMB000

i ( BT~ i i ( i

2016 N 3
Trade and other payables* BAREHEAE = 266,843 = = 266,843 266,843
Bond payables EfifE5 8.00 - 64,108 - 64,108 63,710
Convertible bonds TARES 8.00 - 607 31,790 3,397 26,589
Obligation under finance leases BEMERE 4.69 179 536 1,684 2399 2,281
Short-term bank loans - fived rate ~ EEIRITEN-T 8 5.44 - 125,805 - 125,805 119,340
Short-term loans from other financial KEZf & BEE
institution - fixed rate LEHER-ER 8.00 26,647 = = 26,647 26,647
293,669 191,056 33,474 518,199 505,410
@ The amount includes trade payables, other payables, X RZAEREESEMNERR H
customers’ deposits, amounts due to a director/director of tENRIE  BEIRS REN
a subsidiary/a shareholder of the Company/non-controlling EE /WBARNESE, / AKAAF
owners of a subsidiary/related companies (2016: trade VA I PNGIE 22y e 3
payables, other payables, customers’ deposits and amounts BA/SBEATHE(ZE—X
due to directors of the subsidiaries). F:EFRAER  HMERN

RE FEFPERSREMNHEBA
BEEHE) -
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Financial risk management objectives and
policies — continued

Equity price risk

The Group is exposed to equity price risk through its
investments classified as financial assets at FVTPL. The
management manages this exposure by closely monitoring the
price movements and the changes in market conditions that
may affect the value of the investments.

A decrease of 5% on equity price would have an
negative impact of approximately RMB2,621,000 (2016:
RMB10,071,000) on profit or loss. An increase of 5% in the
value of the listed equity securities would impact the Group’s
performance in a similar amount.

Fair values of financial instruments
The fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities are
determined as follows:

The fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities with
standard terms and conditions and traded in active markets
are determined with reference to quoted market bid and ask
prices respectively.
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Financial risk management objectives and
policies — continued

Fair values of financial instruments — continued
The notional amounts of financial assets and financial
liabilities with a maturity of less than one year (including
trade and other receivables, other assets, loan receivables,
pledged bank deposits, bank balances and cash, trade and
other payables, bond payables, finance leases, short-term
bank loans, short-term loans from other financial institution
and other borrowing) are assumed to approximate their fair

values.

The following table presents the carrying value of the Group's
financial instruments measured at fair value across the
three levels of the fair value hierarchy defined in HKFRS 13
“Fair Value Measurement” with fair value of each financial
instrument categorised in its entirety based on the lowest level
of input that is significant to that fair value measurement. The
levels are defined as follows:

Level 1: fair values measured using quoted prices
(unadjusted) in active markets for identical

financial instruments.

Level 2: fair values measured using Level 2 inputs i.e.
observable inputs which fail to meet Level 1,
and not using significant unobservable inputs.
Unobservable inputs are inputs for which market
data are not available.

Level 3: fair values measured using significant

unobservable input.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
REMBESRME(R)

For the year ended 31 December 2017 &

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - CONTINUED
b. Financial risk management objectives and
policies — continued
Fair values of financial instruments — continued

b.

Level 1
81
RMB'000
ARETFT
Financial assets at fair value BATEFABRER
through profit or loss ZHBEE
- Equity securities listed in - BB LETRARES
Hong Kong, at fair value (R TER) 46,989
- Equity securities listed in - BN ETRARE H
overseas, at fair value (BRAFEE) 5,424

EZ-F

—+F+ZA=+—HILFE

=

MBETRE-&

MBAREEERERBE
— &
HHETRZNFE—#E

2017
—E—tF

Level 2

Level 3

[E &3
RMB’000
AREFT

B2
RMB’000

AREFT

Level 1
JE 41
RMB’000
AREFIT
Financial assets at fair value BATEFABRER
through profit or loss 2B EE
- Equity securities listed in - BB FRAEF
Hong Kong, at fair value (BAFE) 114,789
- Unlisted investment fund, -FEMEERES
at fair value (note 28) (A TEE)
(Fff 5£28) -

2016
—E-RF
Level 2
[& &2
RMB’000
AREFT

Level 3

[& %3
RMB'000
ARKEFor

86,633

The fair value of financial assets at FVTPL categorised in Level
2 was determined based on the market value as stated in net
asset value statement issued by the broker.

There were no transfers between the three Levels during the
year and prior period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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TURNOVER AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group derives its revenue from the transfer of goods and services
over time and at a point in time in the following major product lines.
This is consistent with the revenue information that is disclosed for
each reportable segment under HKFRS 8.

EXRBERIBEH

B BB — B R KRR
HEUTEIEERR2ZHSRBEMES
s o b SRARIRE B B TS 4R 65 AU 83t
BEREHARB 2 MEEN B -

2017 2016
—F—LF —F—REF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TFr ARBBTFr
(restated)
€C<=27))
Sales of goods from ATEmiEE

- sales of finished fabrics — & R 42,788 49,991
— trading of fabrics and garment products —MmEEREERES 3,731 3,548
46,519 53,539
Subcontracting services income BRIB WA 68,297 118,643
Entertainment and media services income IREE KRB AR IS A 552 713
Loan interest income BERFEHA 14,659 25,726

Brokerage and related services income 440 R AB B BR S UL A 6,369
Underwriting and placing services income B85 & B & AR S A 8,894 =
Margin financing interest income RESBEFEHA 5,001 =
Handling services income BRI AR IS A 457 =
150,748 198,621

Fair value gain on disposed financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss was included in turnover for the year ended 31
December 2016. The amount was reclassified as net gain on securities
investment to conform with current years’s presentation.

Segment reporting

The Group manages its businesses by divisions, which are organised
by a mixture of both business lines (products and services) and
geography. In a manner consistent with the way in which information
is reported internally to the Group’s most senior executive
management for the purposes of resource allocation and performance
assessment, the Group has presented the following six reportable
segments. No operating segments have been aggregated to form the
following reportable segments.
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 HZE —%

Segment reporting — continued
J Processing, printing and sales of finished fabrics and
subcontracting services in the PRC;

3 Trading of fabrics and clothing;

. Money lending;

. Securities investment;

. Media, cultural and entertainment; and

3 Securities brokerage services and margin finance.

Segment results, assets and liabilities
For the purposes of assessing segment performance and allocating

resources between segments, the Group’s senior executive
management monitors the results, assets and liabilities attributable to
each reportable segment on the following bases:

Segment assets include non-current assets and current assets
attributable to the activities of the individual segments. Segment
liabilities include trade and other payables attributable to the activities
of the individual segments and short-term loans managed directly by
the segments.

Revenue and expenses are allocated to the reportable segments with
reference to sales generated by those segments and the expenses
incurred by those segments or which otherwise arise from the
depreciation or amortisation of assets attributable to those segments.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
REMEBBRRME(R)

For the year ended 31 December 2017 BE =T —+tF+ A =+—HItFE

TURNOVER AND SEGMENT INFORMATION
— CONTINUED

Segment reporting - continued

Segment results, assets and liabilities — continued
Information regarding the Group's reportable segments as provided to

EXBRIBEN-E

TEEE-&

DHERE  RERRE-&
RERSERFEHNERRMAAEER
BERTERERECALBARESH
BRI

7.

the Group’s most senior executive management for the purposes of
resource allocation and assessment of segment performance is set out
below:

Processing, printing

Securiies brokerage

and sales of finished

fabrics - PRC

B

-nE

2016

Trading of fabrics and
clothing - Hong Kong
T

)
- Hong Kong

HE-&k

016

RMB000

Securiies investment
- Hong Kong
i #
017 2016

i
RMB000  RMB'000

Entertainment and
media - Hong Kong

017
tF

Undllocated

sevices and margin
finance - Hong Kong

corporate office

017 2016

Itf

RMB000 RMB000

Inter-segment
elmination

HEREE

017 2016

017

Revente from externl PEbE S

Customers b 11,085 168,634 331 3548 14659 25726 - - 552 nmooom - - - - 150748 198621
Revenue from inter-seqment hPsEkE - - - - - - - - 164 18U S8 26813 (69173 (21.139) - -

11,085 168,634 331 3548 14659 25726 - - 1319 1039 2545 54708 26813 (69173 (27,139 150748 198621

Reasonable segment revenveand ~ AHEHEHER

timing of revenue recognition ~ WERZLKE
Products and senices ransfered ata R E-BE%EH

point in time ERRBH 08 4991 3731 358 14659 2576 - - 1319 1039 0545 5708 26813 (69173 (7139) 8451 19978
Senices transerred over ime HE-SEEEBRE 6827 11868 - - - = - - - - - - o - - BB 11868
Reportable seqment revenue BRELEIE 11,085 168,634 3731 3548 14859 2576 - - 1318 1039 055 54708 26813 (69173 (27,139 150748 198621
Reportable segment BRENR

ossproit () /4

(adjusted EBITDA) (8 %ce0A) 2963 6,246 (653) (208 14585 3953 (15000) 60293 (46964 (4247 10306 (35.389) 8254 - - (023 M
Depreciaton and amortisation ERAETRE

for the year 1301 @7%3) ] (1] - - - - (326) - (118 (913 (826) - - (8725 (9,59)
Impairment of property, 0% BERIE

plant and equipment LHE - (37 - - - - - - - - - - - - - - (37
Reversal of impairment of FENEN T

property, plant and RERE

equipment L) - - - - - - - - - - - - - -1
Loss on acquision of HERERTL

ubsidiary BB - = - = - (140 - = - - - - - - = - (4o
Finance osts fi 6384 (677) - - s (sdy) (1209 (g6 B8 -8 (538) (67300 M5 1848 BIT) (151660
Impairment loss on loan receivable ~~ EME R HEKE - - - - sy = - = - = - - = - - s =
Share of profit an asociate AeBERTEH 4009 -
Others i - 819
(Loss)profit before taxation B (EE) /4 (118911) 31,08
Reportable segment assets FEEDE T 26912 252,664 880 2064 418481 394389 235667 249292 582015 518365 22695 75014 431359 (712845)  (648750) 1,693,080 1,199,383
Addiions to non-current EMFERRS

seqment asets ABRE

during the year 159 54 - ) - - - - 149 - 46 1118 449 - - 1057 5140
Reportable segment liabilities ARETERE 167383 180994 4360 516 381082 393157 8340 2665 7561 197503 104528 102206 99414 (381,082 (393157) 394378 500,687
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
REMEBHBRME(R)

For the year ended 31 December 2017 BE =T —+tF+-A=1+—HItFE

7. TURNOVER AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 7. ®# XK oEER-&

— CONTINUED

Geographical information i & & #

The following table sets out information about the geographical TRENEBORNEBREIIRET P 2
location of (i) the Group's revenue from external customers and o RONVAREZWME - BB REE - B
(i) the Group's property, plant and equipment, prepaid lease HERE EFEE BE HMKEZ
payments, intangible assets, goodwill, deposits for other investments, Re REBRARZERE HEBEWE-
investments in subsidiaries, deposits paid for acquisition of property, BEERZEEMNZ2EEUARRBE AR Z
plant and equipment and interest in an associate (“specified non- B ([EEFERBEE]) MIBLE 2 48
current assets”). The geographical location of customers is based AR BERPAMIELERENRMHRS
on the location at which the services were provided or the goods KRXNERNNEMET - BEIERBE
delivered. The geographical location of the specified non-current ENMBUERENEEERMECEM
assets is based on the physical location of the asset. EBE -

Turnover Non-current assets
= 2 FRBEE
2017 2016 2017 2016

Tt  ZF-RE ZFtfF  CEAA
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT  ARMTE  AREFT  ARETZ

PRC s 111,085 168,634 40,527 46,191

Malaysia BRAL - - 279,700 =

Hong Kong B 39,663 29,987 490,156 467,649
150,748 198,621 810,383 513,840

Information about major customers FRXEERFZEH

There are no customers who individually contribute over 10% of the WEEREPIEARE LR Z10% 50 F o

total revenue of the Group.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
REMEBBRRME(R)

For the year ended 31 December 2017 BE =T —+tF+ A =+—HItFE

7. TURNOVER AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 7. ®XHEEKoEER-&

— CONTINUED

Contract balances EREH
The following table provides information about receivables, contract TERENEEFPZ2ENRZEBWERER &
assets and contract liabilities from contracts with customers. HNEERAHBEER -

31 December 31 December 1 January
2017 2016

ZE-F

) +ZA=+-H -A-A
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

ANRHTFT ARETT ANEETT

Receivables, which are included in
“Trade and other receivables”

SFATESREBEKES
2R

- Sales of goods from finished fabrics “HaTEEREER
and garment products JHEMBE 6,854 16,425 12,666
- Subcontracting services income - D ERBRA 485 1,503 10,296
- Entertainment and media services income -REREERBUA 131 370 -
- Brokerage and related services income (Note) - B RABBRBUA (H772) 57,710 - =
65,180 18,298 22,962

Contract liabilities - customers' deposits (note 31) ~ A#1BE-EFE 24 (H#31)

- Sales of goods from finished fabrics “BahHRREER
and garment products ZBmEE 6,803 5,432 7393
- Subcontracting services income -AERBRA 10,968 21,806 13,195
17,771 27,238 20,588

The contract liabilities primarily relate to the deposit received from

customers as security deposit.

BHRBRZESRATPRBERERE
BB -

AEERBEBY B RS EREIRTE

The Group applies the practical expedient in paragraph 121 of HKFRS
15 and does not disclose information about remaining performance
obligations that have original expected durations of one year or less.

1I2VRA 2 FIATREE RIS - M |HES
MZERETENENFHR—FAUARZ
BRTENETZEN -

Note: B & -

ENERRBERAREEREEB 2 EBNEE - 7
NBREHE SRR AR R B R &L RAAR
REWAZER  RRAREFTEXAESEH
BRERAARBER BRERBERREDR
B SZIE -

Due to the business nature of brokerage services and margin finance business, it
is assumed that the entire trade receivables balances belong to the category of
brokerage and related services income as customers would not indicate whether
they are settling the brokerage and related services fee, handling services fee or

margin financing interest.
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OTHER EXPENSES, GAINS AND LOSSES

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
REMEBHBRME(R)

For the year ended 31 December 2017 BE =T —+tF+-A=1+—HItFE

8.

HttpfX - W REE

2017 2016
—T—tF —E—RF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT AR Fir
Allowances for bad and doubtful debts of B 5 REUWEFER Y FIEEEE
trade receivables (173) -
Reversals of impairment loss in respect of BOBEfNHER I IEE L
deposits paid to suppliers BB E 18 1,832 450
Impairment loss on deposits BREERzZE2
paid to suppliers BB EE (2,018) (10,941)
Impairment loss on deposits for other HthixEzike 2 BEKRE
investment (note 21(if)) (H7a£210i) (8,671) -
Net exchange gain/(loss) X W (B518) %58 10,692 (10,629)
Loss on disposals of property, HEME - BE&H&
plant and equipment Z BB (287) (1,320)
Loss on acquisition of WM B A A 2 B8
a subsidiary (note 12(a)) (Bi7z12(a) - (14,048)
Written-off of interest receivables 8 PR R - (5,014)
Income from amortisation of financial MBERE D2 EHBA
guarantee contracts - 8,349
1,375 (33,153)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
REMEBBRRME(R)

For the year ended 31 December 2017 BE =T —+tF+ A =+—HItFE

9. (IMPAIRMENT LOSSES RECOGNISED)/ 9. YE -BERRZREZ
REVERSAL OF IMPAIRMENT LOSSES (ERABEESSE)
RECOGNISED IN RESPECT OF PROPERTY, BECcRIARERE
PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
The (impairment losses recognised)/reversal of impairment losses by BeELBEMZ (ERIARMERDE) BE
CGUs are as follows: EEBENT

2017 2016
T+ —2-REF
Impairment losses Reversal of Impairment losses Reversal of

recognised impairment losses recognised impairment losses
2R B 2R Bm

RUE &5 8 RE B B &8 RE &5 8
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETF T ARETFT ARETFT ARETF T

CGU 1 BeEEBAM - - - 3,740
CGU 2 MEEEBM2 - - - 3,807
CGU 3 HEEEEN3 - - (819) =
ccu 4 ReEEEMN - - (2,957) =
- - (3,776) 7,547
CGU 1, CGU 2, CGU 3 and CGU 4 belong to the Group's reportable REeEXEMN ReEELBMN2 REE
segment of processing, printing and sales of finished fabrics. HABENIRBCELEBMIBRASE AR

EZRBMENT -~ ENERHE DI -
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 HZ —ZF—

CGU 1

As at 31 December 2017, the directors of the Company reassessed
the recoverable amount of the CGU 1 based on value-in-use
calculation. The value-in-use calculation used cash flow forecast
derived from the most recent financial budget approved by the
management based on their best estimates. The projected period was
5 years and the growth rated and pre-tax discount rate used in the
forecast was zero and 13.24% (2016: zero and 11.95%) respectively,
for CGU 1.

No impairment loss has been recognised on property, plant and
equipment of CGU 1 for the year ended 31 December 2017 as
a result of the impairment test. A reversal of impairment loss of
approximately RMB3,740,000 has been recognised on property, plant
and equipment of CGU 1 for the year ended 31 December 2016 as a
result of the impairment test.

CcGU 2

As at 31 December 2017, the directors of the Company reassessed
the recoverable amount of the CGU 2 based on value-in-use
calculation. The value-in-use calculation used cash flow forecast
derived from the most recent financial budget approved by the
management based on their best estimates. The projected period was
5 years and the growth rate and pre-tax discount rate used in the
forecast was zero and 11.65% (2016: zero and 11.95%) respectively,
for CGU 2.

No impairment loss has been recognised on property, plant and
equipment of CGU 2 for the year ended 31 December 2017 as
a result of the impairment test. A reversal of impairment loss of
approximately RMB3,807,000 has been recognised on property, plant
and equipment of CGU 2 for the year ended 31 December 2016 as a
result of the impairment test.

e+ A=+ —AIEER

REEEBEMN
RZZF—+tF+-A=+—8 ' ARAE
ERBEERABEAEENTARASEASRE
1z AEl &5 - EAEBEFERERT
FEEREREBRS 2 &EMGAAIED
AN BHEENReREER - HEE
EEBAMME - TERF B E5F M 78R T
AZERERMBESRAET RX13.24%
TE—RNE T R11.95%) °

KRENRE TERBE-_T—tF
TZA=+—BLEFERSELEMZ
ME BERZEERREESRE - CRE
ARk RBE-Z—AR"EF+=-A=1+—
BLEERSELSBMNIZDE  BERK
HE R EBERE LN ARES,740,000
=c

REELEN2
RZE—+tF+ZA=+—8 ' ARAE
ERBEREEAEENIHREELS
fr2z Al El &5 - £ AEEFERERT
EEEBEREBRES Z&EMTATILED
BN EEENREREEN -HERe
ELBA2ME - 18R F H Z5F m 18Rl B
RAZERERBBEES R AT R11.65%
ZE—RF:ETRI1.95%) °

CRENRE TERBEE_T—tF
T+ A=+ ALEERSELEM2Y
ME - BERSEERREES - CRE
AEE REBEE_TE—XRF+A=1+—
ALEERSELSBM2ZME  BERK
HERRREEERRLNARES,807,000

JC ©

Annual Report 201 7 143



For the year ended 31 December 2017 & ZE —

144

CGU 3

As at 31 December 2017, the directors of the Company reassessed
the recoverable amount of the CGU 3 based on value-in-use
calculation. The value-in-use calculation used cash flow forecast
derived from the most recent financial budget approved by the
management based on their best estimates. The projected period was
5 years and the growth rate and pre-tax discount rate used in the
forecast was zero and 15.58% (2016: zero and 16.97%) respectively,
for CGU 3.

No impairment loss has been recognised on property, plant and
equipment of CGU 3 for the year ended 31 December 2017 as a
result of the impairment test. A impairment loss of approximately
RMB819,000 has been recognised on property, plant and equipment
of CGU 3 for the year ended 31 December 2016 as a result of the
impairment test.

cGU 4

As at 31 December 2017, the directors of the Company reassessed
the recoverable amount of the CGU 4 based on value-in-use
calculation. The value-in-use calculation used cash flow forecast
derived from the most recent financial budget approved by the
management based on their best estimates. The projected period was
5 years and the growth rate and pre-tax discount rate used in the
forecast was zero and 12.04% (2016: zero and 11.95%) respectively,
for CGU 4.

No impairment loss has been recognised on property, plant and
equipment of CGU 4 for the year ended 31 December 2017 as a
result of the impairment test. A impairment loss of approximately
RMB2,957,000 has been recognised on property, plant and
equipment of CGU 4 for the year ended 31 December 2016 as a
result of the impairment test.

A&ATHEWSDNHOLMNGSUMWED
THNERERERLF

T—+F+-A=1+—HILFE

ReELXEN3
RZBE—tF+-A=+—RH KRAE
ERBECERBEMESHNIMREELE
I3z A REl &5 - EFABEAESERD
EEEBBRBRE 2K EMFPIIAED
BT HUVBEENRSTER - HES
EABM3ME - 8RIF B =55 i 18RI AT
RAZEERERMEEXSRAT R1558%
ZE—RNE T R16.97%) °

KREANRE YERBEZE_ZT—+F
TZA=tT-HBLEFERSEEBMIZY
¥ BERBEERRAEERE KRB
HAg REBEE_T—R"F+=ZA=+—H
IHFEREEEBMIZYE BERZXHE
B RERBEE 185 = 49 A R#819,0007T °

BeELXENS
R-ZE—+HF+-_A=+—8 ' KQAFE
ERBERBETEENIGEREELE

fiz4z Al EI €% - EREEFERFERLT
HSEEEEREBRSE 2 &IEMFATIED
B BEENReREEN - HH L
EE B4 E - TERF B E 54 m T8RP
FHZiﬁW&HSEET’\EIJET&Q 04%
T—RF:ETR11.95%) °

KRENRE TERBEE_-_ZT—tF
T A=+ RLEERSELENIZ
ME - BEERLERRRERSE - CRE
BHE REEZT—RF+ZA=+—
BLFEEREEAEMIZYE BELRR
HEERREE BRI ARK2,957,000

JT °©



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
REMBESRME(R)

For the year ended 31 December 2017 BE =T —+tF+-A=1+—HItFE

10. FINANCE COSTS 10. BE R A

2017 2016
—F—LF ZERF

RMB'000 RMB’000
ARETT AR TIT

Interest on bank and other borrowings wholly R AF N2 HEEZ

repayable within five years RITREMEEZF S
- bank loans —RITEE 6,185 6,775
— other secured loans —HiBEAER 1,209 1,661
— other unsecured loans —H MR ER 16,521 -
23,915 8,436

Effective interest expense on ERESH 2 EBRAMNERS
bond payables 4,856 3,919

Effective interest expense on convertible AR E S 2 B

bonds MERX 1,565 2,752
Interest expense on finance leases MEEEZFBERAX 60 59
Other finance costs Hth @ & XA 3,775 -
34,171 15,166
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
REMEBBRRME(R)

For the year ended 31 December 2017 HEZ=F—+F+-A=1+—HIEFE

11. (LOSS)/PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION 11. BFa (BE) HF
2017 2016
—E—tF —E-REF
RMB’000 RMB’'000
ARETFr AEEFT
(Loss)/profit before taxation has BREBLAT (B1R) 8 AE
been arrived at after charging/(crediting): e/ GEA) THISE
Directors’ remuneration (note 14) EEMe (Hat14) 6,823 6,480
Staff's retirement benefits scheme contributions, 8 T 7 iR tk& K5+ &) 7 -
excluding directors’ remuneration TBREEEHNe 2,331 5,054
Other staff costs, excluding directors’ HMBIXRA TREESMHE
remuneration 54,160 26,193
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment %1% - BiE R R E2ITE 8,660 9,576
Auditor’s remuneration ZEET &
- current year —REE 1,577 698
— under-provision for prior years - BAFERETE - 75
Cost of inventories recognised as expenses THEIZBEERA(RETFEMR
(including net write-down of inventories ¥ %8 A R#10,705,00070
amounting to RMB10,705,000 (2016: ZT—~F: AR¥1,612,000
RMB1,612,000)) (note 25) 7)) (Kfit25) 110,324 163,479
Net loss/(gain) on securities investment — BERECEBBR,/ (W) F8E -
financial assets at fair value RAFEFABREZ
through profit or loss MBEEZRNTE
decrease/(increase) in fair value, net W) FEE
— disposed of during the year -~ FALE 9,311 (4,710)
- held at the end of the —WEBRKREE
reporting period 7,386 (57,406)
16,697 (62,116)
Operating lease rentals in respect of BHENTHEHEZKEHERS
— prepaid lease payments —ENHERIEA 14 14
— rented premises —HEWE 8,734 4,691
Government rewards and subsidies BT 22 ) & B
(including in other income)* (GrAE AR AR) * (1,068) (27)
Interest income from bank deposits RITIFRFE WA (644) (2,361)
* The government rewards and subsidies which are included in * A B BT e AN SR B AR it i AT KLt A
other income provided by the PRC government to the Group were CTHINEERE  TERESUEA
paid mainly as an incentive for energy saving and organisational CESERABERE Y S5HE WS

development of the Group. There are no conditions and contingencies

RAIUS & Bh 3 SR P 75 (R ) R R KR A
& ARAKALTBEREELEE -

attached to the receipt of the government subsidies and they are non-
recurring in nature.
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(a)

For the year ended 31 December 2017 HEZ=T—+F+-A=+—HIEFE

Acquisition of Star Platinum

The Group had advanced a loan with a principal amount of
HK$280 million to Star Platinum during the year ended 31
December 2016, as detailed in the circular dated 22 February
2016 and announcements dated 8 April 2016 and 30 April
2016 of the Company. The loan was secured by 99% of the
issued share capital of Star Platinum (the “Share Pledge”).
Star Platinum was held as to 99% by Mr. Si Rongbin (“Mr.
Si”), an independent third party of the Group and 1% by
the Group’s wholly-owned subsidiary, One Alliance Limited
which was held indirectly by a nominee of the Company.
The nominee was also appointed as the sole director of Star
Platinum to safeguard the Group’s loan receivable. At the
same time, deeds of novation and variation were entered
into by Star Platinum and China Culture Media International
Holdings Limited (“CCMI"), which was wholly-owned by Mr.
Si, pursuant to which an aggregate amount of HK$20 million
advanced by the Group to CCMI should be assigned to Star
Platinum. The Group has further advanced HK$5 million to
Star Platinum in May 2016. Consequently, Star Platinum had
total principal loan amount of HK$305 million due to the
Group.

In July 2016, Star Platinum defaulted in repayment of loan
interest of approximately HK$9,105,000 (equivalent to
approximately RMB7,802,000) under the loan agreements.
The Group had exercised its rights under the relevant
security documents by, inter alia, enforcing the Share Pledge.
Accordingly, on 29 July 2016, the Group became the legal
and beneficial owner of the entire issued share capital of Star
Platinum, and Star Platinum became a subsidiary of the Group
thereafter.

The Group derecognised the loan and interest receivables
and recognised them as the consideration of acquiring Star
Platinum.

(a)

KEEHiLHE

WA RRERBBAAE-T—F
ZAZtZHZzBRERBERASA
ZTE-RNFNANBEZZE—R
FWHA=+HZAMETFER - RE
E_E-—XNE+_-_A=+—8I1
FE - AEERENCERET —
% K4 %8 £280,000,000 7t 2 &
HoREETUBRACEDBITR
RZI9%IEE IR ([RIDEH]) - 2
AEEBRAEE B IE=F AR
Wad ((R%4E]) HEI9% KA
£ &z 2 &K B A F0ne Alliance
Limited (AR A 2 RIEAME#H
B)EEBTI% ZRIBANER
TAENCEZW—EF EER
RAE BB ERE R - B -
ENEREA AL ERBZTH
LB ERBIZERER AT ([FEH
MALBEERDITVEEREER
BB AEEZ AR E L
HERRIRME 2 4 $£20,000,000%
TRREEETENCE - A5H
WHE—FR_T—A"EHAREN
b ¥ 2 #£5,000,00058 T B 5K » #
b BHENCERNAEEZERAN
4 #8%85305,000,000/8 7T °

RZT—R"FLA BEHDEE
EXBEETZERFELD
9,105,000/ 7T (MHER D AR
7,802,0007T) ° AEBBETHEER
HEERXHIET 2R (KF
BAE) RHI TR B - B UL
RZZE—R"ELtA=+NA A&
B AZHACEEHEHTRAZ
EEREBEZEAA  MEFDEA
BEoKAREB 2 HEAA -

FEBR IRBEBERRAE
WHERAEEUKIARKEZAD
KZRE-
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

GEMBERRME (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2017 HEZ=F—+F+-A=1+—HIEFE

12. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES -

CONTINUED

(a) Acquisition of Star Platinum - continued
On 29 July 2016, date of acquisition of Star Platinum the net
identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed, of the Star

Platinum are as follows:

Assets
— Deposit for other investment

12. WEBMIE AT —&

() WHBEMEGX-&
R-F—AFtA-+NA (kK
ERCEEE)  RACEHRE

Z PR B B B A S PR R 2 AT
MEEFEMAT

RMB’000
AR TIT

BE

—EREZRE (HZ0LI)

148

(Notes (i) and (ii)) 428,450

— Advances to ATV (note 26(d)(iii)) — 4R T IRARZ B (et 26(d) (i) 41,309
Liabilities 8E

— Other payables (Note (if)) — E fth & AT BR 3R (A 22 (i) (214,257)

— Loan principal and interest payables —ERNERETERFE (269,550)
Net liabilities BEFHE (14,048)
Loan principal and interest payables to EHEZENEAEEERES RFE

the Group disposed of 269,550
Net identifiable assets acquired and FFr 45 B A 3% 1| & B T (B R P HE

liabilities assumed Al B EFE 255,502
Loss on acquisition of a subsidiary (note 8) W BE B B A B 2 5 18 (M1 7E8) 14,048
Consideration RE 269,550
Note: B 5
(i) Star Platinum had entered into a sale and purchase (i) ERNGCER-_T—<"FOA

agreement with six independent vendors (the “Vendors”)
on 30 April 2016 relating to the acquisition of (i)
the aggregate of 689,934,950 issued shares of ATV,
representing approximately 52.42% of the entire issued
share capital of ATV (the “Sale Shares”) and (i) the debts
and its consequential interest provided to ATV by the
Vendors with aggregate amount of approximately HK$2
billion (“Major Debts”) (collectively the “Acquisition”), at
a total consideration of HK$500,000,000 (equivalent to
approximately RMB428,450,000 as at 29 July 2016) (the
“Consideration”). The Consideration represented the value,
as stated in the sale and purchase agreement, of Sale Shares
and Major Debts with amounts of HK$10,000,000 and
HK$490,000,000 respectively.

ASIA TELEVISION HOLDINGS LIMITED
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=tRRANEBYES ([ZE
BFNIVEEWRE  NBE
RA U B ()= 47 A $£689,934,950
BREZITRG  HEREZHE
B ITI AR #952.42% ([ 358 &
m1) R(i)ZEEH M EER
HEBEREEERNSA RN
2,000,000,0007% 7T ([ £ & &
B (MEABIKESED -
# (X {8 /500,000,000 7T (R
—E-—XFELtA=-F+NEBEMR
£ # A R #428,450,0007T)
(TRED - RERBRIZEEH
BRI ZHERDREZER
2 {Bf&% 5l410,000,0007% 7T
490,000,000 7T °



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
REMEBHBRME(R)

For the year ended 31 December 2017 2= —+tF+-A=+—HIEFE

12. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES -
CONTINUED

(@) Acquisition of Star Platinum - continued

Note: — continued

(i)

continued

ATV is a company incorporated in Hong Kong with limited
liability on 6 April 1973. A petition to wind up ATV was filed
at the High Court of Hong Kong (the “Court”) on 5 February
2016 and the joint and several provisional liquidators of ATV
were appointed by order of the Court on 24 February 2016
(the “Provisional Liquidators”). ATV was engaged in television
broadcasting and was the holder of the domestic free
television programme service licence (which expired on 1 April
2016) and the non-domestic television programme service
licence (which expired on 31 May 2016) in Hong Kong.

The Acquisition may drive Star Platinum to obtain the control
and operation of ATV, which is subject to completion of
a series of arrangements including the completion of the
Acquisition, the scheme of arrangements to be proposed
to the creditors of ATV by which all liabilities of ATV shall
be assumed by Star Platinum (“Scheme of Arrangements”),
the completion of all ancillary incidental matters including
the Court granting the order to sanction the withdrawal
of the winding-up petition against ATV, the release of the
Provisional Liquidators, the control over ATV returning from
the Provisional Liquidators to the board of directors of ATV,
Star Platinum having enough power and exposure or rights
to control ATV, and ATV being able to resume to normal
operation.

12. WIEMEBLQR-&

(a) WHEMNLX-&
LR

0]

-

DHRA—HR—ILEt=FMA
NBEEBFMRLZERR
Al R=ZTE—RE-RAAAB "
BEREEER (DA EES
BMERERZE2F  IR=F
—ANEZ_A-t+mMA®SASD
REDHRARESRIRRES®A
([ERRBERAD - GRERSE
BEEBELG UTERFEES
At e BEARE B RFER (R
—T-XFENA—ARH) K
K EEL B RSB (R
—ANFRA=+—AEFH) -

WiEEENE S HE NP ER
BERER REEHE MR
TR (BREZK KBS
H-MERZERARLER
HERCEEEATRZMAA
Bz EBEELHHE (TEB
BERYED  URTK—HE
MERM SRR FE (BEE
EBE BRGSO TR E G
BZEREF BEBFBARK
BB BRZEBI AR
REBARETHESS 2
XA RAENIZHTRR
EESRCRBRKFEET
AR IR EEEIEE R EE)) 5T
P& - IAER -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
REMEBEBRRME (.’f-*-)

For the year ended 31 December 2017 & ZE —

—tFT_A=1t—HLFE

12. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES -
CONTINUED

Acquisition of Star Platinum - continued

Note: — continued

150

(a)

()

continued

Pursuant to the Order of Court on 24 April 2017, the
Provisional Liquidators was discharged by the Court on 24
April 2017. The petitioner and the Provisional Liquidators
were released but the winding-up petition against ATV is still
valid and the Scheme of Arrangement is in the progress as at
31 December 2017.

To obtain the control and operation of ATV, which is subject
to completion of a series of arrangements (i) Scheme of
Arrangements to be approved by the creditors and the Court;
(i) the Court granting the order to sanction the withdrawal
of the winding-up petition against ATV; and (iii) ATV resumes
normal operation under the management of its new board
of directors. The Court has granted the order on 8 January
2018 to sanction the withdrawal of the winding-up petition
against ATV. As a result, the Group does not have sufficient
power and exposure or rights to control ATV during the
year, and thus ATV is not treated as subsidiary of the Group
and consolidated into the Group during the year ended 31
December 2017. Accordingly, the Group considered its equity
interests in ATV should be classified as deposit for other
investment (note 21(i)).

Details of the Acquisition are set out in the circular of the
Company dated 19 December 2016 and announcements of
the Company dated 23 September 2016, 17 October 2016, 11
November 2016, 14 November 2016, 25 April 2017, 16 May
2017, 12 December 2017 and 9 January 2018.
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(a)

(b)

For the year ended 31 December 2017 HEZ=T—+F+-A=+—HIEFE

Acquisition of Star Platinum - continued

Note: — continued

(i) As at 31 December 2016, Star Platinum had paid part of
the Consideration of approximately HK$280,000,000. The
completion of the Acquisition and the settlement of the
remaining balance of HK$220,000,000 were approved by the
shareholders of the Company in the extraordinary general
meeting of the Company held on 6 January 2017. The
balance of the Consideration was funded by debt financing of
borrowings and was paid during the year ended 31 December
2017. As at the date of acquisition of Star Platinum, all
conditions precedent under the sale and purchase agreement
of ATV were fulfilled so that the Group has the obligation to
pay the balance of the Consideration. Therefore, the deposits
recognised by the Group and the corresponding liabilities
assumed to the Group were HK$500,000,000 (equivalent to
approximately RMB416,250,000) (2016: HK$500,000,000,
equivalent to approximately RMB447,615,000) (note 21(i))
and HKS$Nil (note 31(iii)) (2016: HK$220,000,000, equivalent
to approximately RMB196,951,000), respectively as at 31
December 2017.

Acquisition of Million Federal International
Limited (“Million Federal”)

On 23 May 2016, the Group had entered into a sale and
purchase agreement with an independent third party,
Sincere Finance Holding Limited (“Sincere Finance"”),
pursuant to which the Group had conditionally agreed
to acquire and Sincere Finance had conditionally agreed
to sell the sale shares, representing 60% of the entired
issued share capital of Million Federal and its subsidiaries
(collectively refer to as “Million Federal Group”) at the
consideration of HK$90,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
RMB79,785,000). Million Federal Group is principally
engaged in underwriting, placing, brokerage and related
services. As at 31 December 2016, HK$8,000,000 (equivalent
to RMB7,162,000) were paid as deposit for the above
acquisition.

(a)

(b)

W2 X—&
R

(ii) RZE—RNFE+=ZA=+—
B 2EHCEEIABHINE
#7280,000,0007% 7T » FEAK M i
F I8 K 475 #2 §8220,000,000
BITZEEER-E—t&F—
ARNBRITZARARRESR
ARG FEADRRRIE - R
BzHHUEERRA 2 BB
ERNIERBE-FT—+tF
TZA=t+—BLFEXM-
REEEMRCEAS RIEE
BEEWHEE T ZFA SRIGMH
BRER  AEBBLART
IRHREHREZEL - At
RZE—tF+A=+—
B AEERERZEZSRA
SEMAEZHEEEED R
/500,000,000 7T (48 % R
# AR #416,250,0007T) (=
=T — X4 : 500,000,0007% 7T
(FBE R4 A R ¥447,615,000
) (M &E21(0)) REA T
(HF#E31(Gii) ) (=T — N4 ¢
220,000,000 7T (FHZE R4 A
R #196,951,0007T)) °

WEEBELEKRERLAR (B
B
R-ZZE—XRERA-_+=ZH" &K
EHEBYE=ZFNELRER
ERAR([FMESR])ITIZEER
% B ARBEAKERE K
BmaESREGKERE LS H
ERHEIEFRENERQR (5
BIBFEER])2HEBITRAZ
60%) * K{&490,000,0007% T (48
R AR®79,785,0007T) ° B
FREEXERECH BE - &L
REERBER R_2T—K~F
+—A=+—B gLk BEE
X 518,000,000 7t (HHE R AR
7,162,0007T) fEBIE S °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
REMEBBRRME(R)

For the year ended 31 December 2017 HEZ=F—+F+-A=1+—HIEFE

12. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES -
CONTINUED
(b) Acquisition of Million Federal — continued (b) WEBEL-E&
The acquisition has been completed during the year ended ZEREEREEZE T —tF+=
31 December 2017. The fair value of net identifiable assets A=+—RHIEFETK - FTliE 2
BhEE R #AEEFERAEE
ZEHEEAERNKERR AT

12. RWIEMBLR-&

acquired and liabilities assumed of Million Federal Group at
the acquisition date, are disclosed as below:

BEWENT

RMB’'000

ARBTFT

(unaudited)

(RigzE%)

Property, plant and equipment (note 18) ME - BE REREHE18) 416
Other deposits HEihiz & 699
Other intangible assets (note 23) HihmmEE (fit23) 9,580
Trade and other receivables B 5 K H e R R 38,222

BRAFEFABERRIMEEE

Financial assets at fair value through

profit or loss 122
Bank balances and cash RITHEBRERIRE
- segregated accounts —BIRF 53,626
- house accounts —RAEIRP 56,296
Tax recoverable Al ez BiIE 1,084
Trade and other payables B 5 K E M B BR K (47,914)
Amounts due to related parties R EREEALRIEA (12,868)
Tax payables FET IR (14)
Deferred tax liability (note 30) B IA B & (M at30) (64)
Net assets acquired FriiE 2 BEFE 99,185
Non-controlling interests (Note) e IR M= (M 7F) (39,674)
59,511
Goodwill (note 20) & (f7#20) 20,274
Total consideration BB 79,785

Note:

M &

AEEDERMFERESERRED
16 IS 2 877 SR B R] a8 Bl B E I P
BEZELTSBEARBRZAYE-

The Group has chosen to recognise non-controlling interest as their
share of fair value of identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed
of Million Federal Group.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

GeEMBERRME(E)

For the year ended 31 December 2017 2= —+tF+-A=+—HIEFE

12. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES - 12. WEKHBLAR-&
CONTINUED
(b) Acquisition of Million Federal - continued (b) WBEL-&
An analysis of the net inflow of cash and cash equivalents EHBEEREECRERRSE
in respect of the acquisition of Million Federal Group is as BYRANFEITOT
follows:

RMB’000

AR Fr

(unaudited)

(CREEZ)

Total consideration wRE (79,785)
Add: deposit paid in prior year m:-RBETFEENZES 7,092
Cash consideration paid during the year AEEENRESRE (72,693)
Cash and bank balances acquired of FUiE 2 3 & R $RAT 45 109,922

Net inflow of cash and cash equivalents in respect HBREKBHEARZIRS R

of the acquisition of subsidiaries ReEBMRAFE 37,229
13. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES 13. HEKBLQF

(a) Gain on disposal of Shifen Development (a) HEHFRERARIT ([
Limited (“Shifen”) %) 2 Wz
On 16 December 2015, the Group entered into an agreement RZFE—RF+=ZA+7"8  &&E
with an independent third party (the “Purchaser of Shifen”) EE-—EBIE=F ([HFZE
pursuant to which the Group conditionally agreed to sell, and AR - Bt ARE A K
the Purchaser of Shifen conditionally agreed to acquire the HRELHEMHZZ2EFBKHE
entire issued share capital of Shifen and its subsidiary, &3l [l & W 25 e H B 2 mUR Y
At RAMEREHFMR QA (collectively referred to as the AEt REmEHEER QA (B
“Shifen Group”) and a loan, being the entire amount of the [EHEE]) 22 HEBITRAN
shareholder’s loan owing by Shifen to the Company, at a total E—28R (Mt S @A FARF]
consideration of HK$2,100,000 (equivalent to approximately ZBRERERz2HeHE) BRE
RMB1,767,000). 732,100,000/ 7T (FHERHARYE

1,767,0007C) °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

GeaMBERRME (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2017 BE =T —+tF+ A =+—HItFE

13. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES — CONTINUED

(@) Gain on disposal of Shifen — continued
The disposal was completed on 15 January 2016. The assets

13.
(a)

and liabilities of the Shifen Group at disposal date are

HEMRB QR —&

HEHS 2 hmE—&
FZEHECR_T—R"E—HA+H
B - =S RERHERRZE

disclosed as below: ERBERBOT :
2016
—T—XF
RMB’000
AR Fir
Net assets disposed of: FIHEZ EEFE :
- Goodwill, which was classified as -HE(LBEZASEE
“assets classified as held for sale” [FEHEZEE]D 1,576
— Amount due to the Company —ENARRRIRIEA (3)
1,573
Amount due to the Company disposed of FT & 2 B AR RIFIA 3
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEHB AR Z W= 191
Satisfied by: AR
Cash Re 1,767
An analysis of the net inflow of cash and cash equivalents in MEARZRERREHE

respect of the disposal of subsidiaries is as follows:

ERLE
BYRAFEINMOT

PAONES)

RMB’000

AR Fr

Cash consideration HeRE 1,767

Cash and bank balances disposed of R ECHe RIRITER =
Net inflow of cash and cash equivalents in respect of HERELEEH B AT ZEE KR

the disposal of subsidiaries ReEBYRAFHE 1,767

ASIA TELEVISION HOLDINGS LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

GeEMBERRME(E)

For the year ended 31 December 2017 2= —+tF+-A=+—HIEFE

13. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES — CONTINUED 13. HEKBLAR-&

(b)

Gain on disposal of Competent Faith (b) HEEHZWEHE
On 25 January 2016, a direct wholly-owned subsidiary of the RZE—R"F—A=+HA ' &AQ
Company entered into a sale and purchase agreement with AZEREZEANBARE -8B
an independent third party to dispose of the entire issued E=-RIIVEERE  UHEREA
share capital of Competent Faith and shareholders’ loan due ZEEBEEITRAUNREWERZ
from Competent Faith at the consideration of HK$30,000,000 REER - K& 430,000,000 7T
(equivalent to approximately RMB25,248,000). Competent (FEER K AR25,248,0007T) °
Faith was principally engaged in property investment. The ERTEREMEREER - 28
transaction was completed on 21 March 2016. The assets and REBRZZE-—RE=A=+—H
liabilities of Competent Faith at disposal date are disclosed as T BIRREERBMCEERSE
below: ERELT
2016
—EB—RF
RMB’000
AREFT
Net assets disposed of: ez BEFE
— Property, plant and equipment - BB RE&E 6,994
— Deposits paid —Bfi&Re 6
— Other payables — H b R BR R (100)
- Amount due to the Group —ENAREERIE (5,819)
1,081
Reclassification of cumulative exchange difference HRFEZFREL#ESENOES
from translation reserve to profit or loss Bz (1,401)
(320)
Amount due to the Company disposed of & 2 B AEERIE 5,819
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary BB A A2 W 19,749
Satisfied by: AR
Cash Be 25,248
An analysis of the net inflow of cash and cash equivalents in EREEMBRARIZREe RS
respect of the disposal of a subsidiary is as follows: EBYRAFE@ONMOAT :
2016
—T—RF
RMB’000
AREFT
Cash consideration ReERE 25,248
Cash and bank balances disposed of R EZHE RIRITHER =

Net inflow of cash and cash equivalents in respect of BREHEHB AR ZEE &
the disposal of a subsidiary ReEEWRANFHE 25,248
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
REMEBBRRME(R)

For the year ended 31 December 2017 BE =T —+tF+ A =+—HItFE

14. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER'S 14. BEE - THERBRRESEHH
AND EMPLOYEES' EMOLUMENTS
Details of emoluments paid by the Group to the directors of the AEERARRESRITHEAE 2
Company and chief executive officer are as follows: SFHBEOT

017 2016
I 243 It S%3
Retirement Retirement
Salaries benefits Salaries benefits
and other scheme and other scheme

Fees benefits  contributions Total Fees benefits  contributions Total
§4R BHER §4R B

ne A EA e i fi¢ A EA B L Aif

RMB'000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB‘000 RMB'000 RMB‘000 RMB'000 RMB'000

AREFT  AREFL  AREFR  ARETL ARETL ABRFL ARETT AREFR

Executive directors HES
-, S2¢ Su Bun -HOnEE - 50 16 53% - 513 5 58
- . Chen Jiang (Note () -BLxE b)) - - - - = i 3 93
- Mr. L Lihan (Note i) -HuERE ) - - - - - 80 3 8
- Mr. Wn Hin Ho Tommy (Vote (i) ~Fiiut s (Hai) - - - - - 80 - 80
- M. Tang Hon Ko -BEREs - 1,041 16 1,057 s 1007 15 100
- M I Ka Po (Note i) -EXEREW) - 185 3 188 - 856 16 8n
- Mr. Ma Zh (ote () ~ERREHH) - w0 16 n - 7% 13 il
- M. Lam Chi Keung (Note () -WEREE W) 15 5 4 512 1,05 20 10 135
- Mr Law Kin Fat (Note (i) ~BRERE (W) - 1052 8 1,060 = = = =
Non-executive director F9iEz
= Mr i Wenfeng (Note v ~FRERE Wiy 1736 456 16 2008 1055 87 10 1352
Independen non-evecutive directors BUkifES
- M Tao Feng (Note (i) -BELt W) 14 - - 14 m = = m
- Ms. Wong Chi Yan (Note (x) -EEERL (W) - - - - 8 - - 8
- Ms. Han Xinguing -REELT 113 - - 113 m - - 111
- M. Li Yu (Vote (i) -STEE (W) % - - % s - - 5
- Mr. Cheung Nai Lam (Note ) -SRI (W) 13 - - 113 104 - - 104

2531 4213 & 6,823 144 391 8 6,430
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

14.

GaMBERME (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2017 2= —+tF+-A=+—HIEFE

DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER'S
AND EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS
— CONTINUED

Note:

(0)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

v)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

Mr. Chen lJiang resigned as an executive director with effect from 3
March 2016;

Mr. Liu Lihan resigned as executive director with effect from 16
February 2016;

Mr. Wan Hin Ho Tommy resigned as executive director with effect from
16 February 2016;

Mr. Ip Ka Po, an executive director and chief executive officer of the
Company. He was redesignated from the chief executive officer of the
Company to chief executive officer of Eastern Culture International
Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company with effect from
20 May 2016. He resigned as an executive director with effect from 7
February 2017;

Mr. Ma Zhi was appointed as an executive director with effect from 24
February 2016;

Mr. Lam Chi Keung was appointed as executive director and chief
executive officer with effect from 20 May 2016 and resigned as
executive director and chief executive officer with effect from 9 March
2017;

Mr. Law Kin Fat was appointed as executive director with effect from
29 June 2017,

Mr. Li Wenfeng was redesignated from co-chairman and an executive
director to deputy chairman and a non-executive director with effect
from 19 October 2016;

M.%%~ﬁﬂ%ﬁ&ﬁéﬁm

— 5
B 3 -

0) BIkAE-—E—~E=A=ARBIE
PTESE

(i) B EREB T R"F-ATRAR
BENTES

(iii) FOTMELEE _F—RF_A+RAR
BENTES

(iv) EREAELRAARNTERRITH
BEH -FER_FT—AFREA=-+THHXKX
ARITBERAETARERRARZENBEA
RIS EFBE IR EAR QB ZTELE
H-wE-T—tF-_AtBRETH
TEE:

(v) BEEEEB T A"F_A-FTHAR
BEEARNTES

(vi) MEREEN_ZE—RNFRA-_THE
RERATESRITRES YA -F
—tFZANAEBERATEERITR
M

(vii) BEREEE-T—LtFA=-TAIA
BEZTAHTES

(vii)  FEXEEEE-T-ARFTATNAR

BB FEEERATESAERBIERER
FBRITES
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
HREMEBRRME(R)

For the year ended 31 December 2017 HZ=F—+F+-A=+—HIEFE

14. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER’S 14. EE - THRHAB K IE S N

158

AND EMPLOYEES' EMOLUMENTS |
— CONTINUED
Note: — continued Mk : —#&

(ix) Ms. Tao Feng resigned as an independent non-executive director, the (ix) gz t+tBE T —tF A +MBEEH
chairman of the remuneration committee and a member of each of EBIERTES FHEES RN
the audit committee, the nomination committee and remuneration REVEZES REZESRFMWEER
committee with effect from 14 February 2017; EEBAZKE

(%) Ms. Wong Chi Yan resigned as an independent non-executive (%) BEEBZTBEZE-R"F—A=+AH
director, the chairman of the audit committee and a member of the EEHEBYIINTES EXEESE
remuneration committee and the nomination committee with effect FEARFHEEGRIREEEEEGNKE
from 25 January 2016;

(xi) Mr. Li Yu was appointed as an independent non-executive director, (xi) FEEEBT—tF-_AT+MUARE
the chairman of the remuneration committee and a member of each ZRERBUFATES FWEEGE
of the audit committee, the nomination committee and remuneration FEAREBZEZES REZEGRFMH
committee with effect from 14 February 2017; ZEgRBEZKE

(xii) Mr. Cheung Ngai Lam was appointed as an independent non-executive (xii) RRMEEB T —R"F-A=-TEHH
director, the chairman of the audit committee and a member of the BEZERBUIFNTESRE BREER
remuneration committee and the nomination committee with effect EIFARFHEREERIEREEEK
from 25 January 2016; and 8 &k

(xiii)  Salaries and other benefits paid to a director is generally an emolument (xiii) X TFEREzHeRAMEN —REM

paid or receivable in respect of that person’s other services in
connection with the management of the affairs of the Company or its

subsidiary undertakings.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
REMEBHBRME(R)

For the year ended 31 December 2017 BE =T —+tF+-A=1+—HItFE

14.

15.

DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER’S
AND EMPLOYEES' EMOLUMENTS

— CONTINUED

Of the five highest paid individuals in the Group, 1 was director
(2016: all were directors), details of whose emoluments are set out
above. The emoluments of the remaining 4 (2016: Nil) highest paid
employees for the year ended 31 December 2017 are as follows:

o

Employees BB
—EARH & RER
—RIREFE B R

— basic salaries and allowances
— retirement benefits scheme contributions

14.

ES THRIARESTHM

- IIE

AEBALTRGATE  —RAEE(Z
TE—ARE:2HAEF)  FzHEBER
REX -REBE-_T—+FE+-_A=+—
BIEFEZERER(ZTE—RF 8)&
RHEEZHMMAT -

2017
—T—tF

2016

RMB'000
AR TFIT

RMB’000
ARETFT

HK$1,000,001 to HK$3,000,000

1,000,001/ 7T £3,000,000/% 7T

There was no arrangement under which a director or the five highest
paid individuals waived or agreed to waive any remuneration during
the year ended 31 December 2017 (2016: Nil). In addition, no
emolument was paid by the Group to any of the directors or the five
highest paid individuals as an inducement to join, or upon joining the
Group, or as a compensation for loss of office (2016: Nil).

DIVIDENDS

No dividend has been paid or declared by the Company for the year
ended 31 December 2017 (2016: Nil). The Board resolved not to
declare the payment of any final dividend for the year (2016: Nil).

15.

RBE-_ZT—tF+-_A=+—BILFE
BEFHEEIIERSFATHELR
ERBEEAHFM LB (ZF—RF &) -
o AEET EAERNEERARRS
FALNABE  ERMAREERMA
AEERZ ZEABERAEE (T —REF
) -

Hﬁ/%\
RARREBEE-_Z—tFE+=-_A=+—81
IFFEEWEREKTREARE (ZE—X
FoE) BEEHRANANEETTREM
RKEABE(ZZT—RF: &) -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
REMEBBRRME(R)

For the year ended 31 December 2017 BEZE—+tF+ZA=+—HILLFE

16.

TAXATION

16. ®i1E

The PRC Enterprise Income Tax is calculated at the rate of 25%
prevailing in the PRC jurisdiction for the year ended 31 December
2017 (2016: 25%). Provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax has been
provided at the rate of 16.5% on the estimated assessable profits
(2016: no assessable profit) arising in Hong Kong during the year.

PECEMBHRABE-_"T—+F+=-A
:+—E|¢¢F¢IT/£$%EIZZ;§%@%E$
25%EF & —RNF:125%) - FRE
RREBEEZHAERBEFEB X
16.5% (ZZF —NF : \EFRREF) 7T

—7

ERNEHRE -
2017 2016
—tF AN qz
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBEFT ARWTFr
Current tax BN ER R 18
- Hong Kong Profits Tax —HENEH 1,858
— PRC Enterprise Income Tax (“EIT") —FERMEMRESRH ([DEMER] 1,413 1,889
Over-provision in prior years BEFEBERE (17) -
Deferred tax (note 30) RIERIE (H17730) 828 -
4,082 1,889
Tax charge for the years are reconciled to (loss)/profit before taxation AERZREL D ERBAT (EE) % F
as follows: HERANT
2017 2016
—tF T—RF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AE&For AE®Fr
(Loss)/profit before taxation B RLAT (&) % A (118,911) 31,086
Tax at the applicable rate RERBEHE 2HIE (20,795) 4,231
Tax effect of income not taxable for tax BARMBAZ BB L
purposes (2,042) (15,375)
Tax effect of expenses not deductible for PAIMB R 2 RGZE
tax purposes 17,213 6,899
Tax effect of deductible temporary *EEW—HD HERE=R Y
differences not recognised WM E 2,615 4,571
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised AR HER %RIEETEZEE%EV =l 7,929 401
Tax effect of share of profit of an associate D {EE & R ELEF 2 MG HE (662) -
Over-provision in respect of prior year BEFEBERE (17) =
Others Hith (159) 1,162
Income tax expense Frigfim s 4,082 1,889
ASIA TELEVISION HOLDINGS LIMITED
160

THERZRAER LA



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
REMBESRME(R)

For the year ended 31 December 2017 BE =T —+tF+-A=1+—HItFE

17.

(LOSS)/EARNINGS PER SHARE 17.

The calculation of the basic and diluted (loss)/earnings per share
attributable to owners of the Company is based on the following
data:

(Loss)/earnings attributable to the AATEEANES (BB BRI
owners of the Company

(Loss)/earnings for the purposes of basic AR ESRERAREE
and diluted (loss)/earnings per share (B8) Bz (58) / BF

R (BR) BF
ARAEG ARG SRERREE (518)
/ RFTYIRIEIA T BUR5 4 -

2017 2016
—T—tF ZE—REF

RMB'000 RMB’000
ARETT AR TIT

(126,747) 29,197

Number of shares RHEE

Weighted average number of ordinary RAREtEgRERNKEE
shares for the purposes of basic and (B8) /&BF 2z %@ hniE
diluted (loss)/earnings per share T8

Fhz
(restated)
(s sE75)

5,154,314 3,072,721

There was no dilutive effects on the assumed conversion of
convertible bonds for the year ended 31 December 2016, hence they
were anti-dilutive.

RRE-T—AF+-A=t+—ALFE
AT BR A 550 R 4 3 9 2
F - KA REHE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
REMEBBRRME(R)

For the year ended 31 December 2017 BE =T —+tF+ A =+—HItFE

18. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 18. M=% BMERRE
Fumiture,
Leasehold fixtures and
[and and Leasehold computer Production Motor E
buildings ~ improvements equipments equipment vehicles machinery
i fiff %2
5 HEUR % EERE HE FERER
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB'000
() S
At 1 January 2016 RZE-7E-A-1 1344771 = 3723 = 2531 205,181 345,912
Currency realignment BERE - 53 2 - U4 - 37
Additions RE = 1,150 492 = 2,936 562 5,140
Disposals if - - - - (134) (17,740) (17.874)
Disposal of subsidiaries (note 13) LEMBAR M) (9,247) - - s - - (9,247)
At 31 December 2016 RZE-7E+-A=1-H 125230 1,203 4,235 = 55171 188,003 324,248
Currency realignment MEA% - (99) (357) (58) (299) - (813)
Acquisition of subsidiaries (note 12(b) WEHBAR (W21t - - 416 - - = 41
Additions HE = 363 5,788 1,466 951 15713 10141
Disposals HE - - (18) - (2,005) = (2,163)
At 31 December 2017 RZE-tE+ZR=1-A 125,230 1,467 9,924 1,408 424 189,576 331,829
DEPRECIATION AND FERAE
IMPAIRMENT
At 1 January 2016 RZF-~E-A-A 107,560 = 2,920 = 2401 173,926 286,807
Currency realignment BEER - 15 76 - 126 - 17
Provided for the year ERRE 1,154 8 107 - 46 7571 9576
Eliminated on disposals HERHE = = - - (121) (15,906) (16,02)
Disposal of subsidiaries (note 13) HEWBRA W) (2253) - - - - - (2253)
Impairment losses recognised NEREETL
in profit or loss HEER - - - - - 3776 3776
Reversal of impairment losses REESE (4379 = = - - (3,168) (7,547)
At 31 December 2016 RZE-~E+ZA=1-A 102,082 343 3103 = 2822 166,199 274,549
Currency realignment MEA% - (42) (101) 2 (153) - (298)
Provided for the year (3531 1,140 460 480 41 457 6,082 8,660
Disposals if - - (67) - (34 - (501)
At 31 December 2017 RZE-tE+ZR=1-8 103,222 761 3415 39 2,692 172,281 282,410
CARRYING VALUES BEE
At 31 December 2017 R-E-tE+ZR=1-A 22,008 106 6,509 1,369 1,532 17,295 49,419
At 31 December 2016 RZT-7E+=A=1-H 23,148 860 1,132 = 2,755 21,804 49,69
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

GeEMBERRME(E)

For the year ended 31 December 2017 BEZE—+F+_A=+—HILFE

18. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
— CONTINUED
The carrying value of the Group’s properties which are situated on
land under medium-term leases is analysed as follows:

18. W% -BERRE-&

URFHAE L by REBYEZ REE
DT ¢

2017 2016
—E—tF —E—RF

RMB’000 RMB’000
AR TFIT ARETFIT

Leasehold buildings in the PRC FREZEERTF

22,008 23,148

As at 31 December 2017, the Group has pledged its leasehold land
and buildings with an aggregate carrying value of RMB22,008,000
(2016: RMB23,148,000) to certain banks to secure the credit facilities
granted to the Group (note 34).

The Group’s motor vehicles held under finance leases (note 33) were
secured with a net carrying amount of approximately RMB636,000
(2016: RMB2,679,000).

RZZE—tF+=-A=+—H F£EE
154 BREE A R#22,008,0005T (ZZ—7X
F: AR¥23,148,0000T) 2 AE 1 g
FERATETRT  UEALEEERE
ERE (M5E34) 248 -

AEEREREBRESF 2= (K733)

BRI HEREFELNAAREE636,000
T(ZZT—"F : AR#2,679,0007T) °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
REMEBBRRME(R)

For the year ended 31 December 2017 BE =T —+tF+ A =+—HItFE

19. PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS 19. ANHEERE
2017 2016
—E—F —E—RF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TFr ARBTFT
CARRYING VALUE REE
At 1 January m—H—H 426 440
Charged to profit or loss for the year RAREE Z BREMNR (14) (14)
At 31 December W+t-—A=+—H 412 426
Analysed as: DWW
Non-current assets EREBEE 398 412
Current assets MENE E 14 14
At 31 December W+-—A=+—H 412 426
The amount represents the prepayment of rentals for land use rights ZEe BB F B R EIS0F 2 L A
situated in the PRC for a period of 50 years. 2 FBNEERE -
The Group has pledged its land use rights with an aggregate carrying AEED BAKREEBEARE412,000T (=
value of RMB412,000 (2016: RMB426,000) to certain banks for credit T—NF : AR¥426,0007T) 2 i fFE A
facilities granted to the Group (note 34). BEBTETRIT UMEALAEEERE
EmE (f5E34) 2184 -
20. GOODWILL 20. BHE
2017 2016
—E—tF —E—RF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AT T ARBTFT
At 1 January wn—HA—H - =
Acquisition of subsidiaries s B8 B B A )

(note 12(b)) (Hiat12(b)) 20,274 =
At 31 December Rn+=—A=+—H 20,274 -
Goodwill is arising from the acquisition of Million Federal during the FRNERBESMELEZHEESRER
year and has been allocated to the securities brokerage services and FEERBRRICHERSEFLSN -
margin finance CGU. The goodwill recognised is not expected to be EHRAZEEBERAB AT NKRAEH o

deductible for income tax purpose.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

20.

21.

GOODWILL — CONTINUED

Impairment Testing on Goodwill and Intangible

Assets

The carrying amounts of goodwill and intangible assets as at 31
December 2017 allocated to securities brokerage services and margin

finance CGU are as follows:

GeEMBERRME(E)

For the year ended 31 December 2017 BE =T —+tF+-A=1+—HItFE

20. BHE-&
HEREFEEZRENSR

BERBRNEER-_ZT—tF+=A
T+ —AZEABENA TS EEES
KRB RRECHMERSEESBN ¢
Goodwill

Trademark Trading rights

[t X5 BE

RMB’000
ARBTT

RMB'000
ARETT

RMB'000
ARBTT

BLERERBERRESRE
REELEN

Securities brokerage services
and margin finance CGU

2,484 6,512 20,274

The recoverable amount of securities brokerage services and margin
finance CGU as at 31 December 2017 has been determined to be
approximately RMB41,534,000 based on a value-in-use calculation.
That calculation covered an indefinite period as estimated by the
Group as there is no foreseeable limitation on the period of time over
which the CGU is expected to generate economic benefits to the
Group. The calculation uses cash flow projections based on financial
budgets approved by the management covering a five-year period.
Cash flows beyond the projection period are extrapolated using an
estimated growth rate of 3%. The pre-tax rate used to discount the
forecast cash flows is 16.34%.

Based on the above, no impairment on goodwill and intangible assets
was made during the year ended 31 December 2017.

DEPOSITS FOR OTHER INVESTMENTS

Deposits paid for acquisition of

REBTIREENZEZE

EARRRBEERECHERSELEM
RZZE—tF+-A=+—RAzAKkEE
HERBERBEFEREROARE
41,534,0007C ° Z BT B EREAREE
Et AERHZHE L RARNBEEEE
B\ L2 HR  REEBH/AR
SEEREENG - st B ERBHEER
A NEBREHERERFHZUHG
BEREE BRBAFHZESRER
AT RE3I% HE - ARERBERRE
MEZ BRI £316.34% °

ERExpd RBE—F—tF+-A
St HEFEYENEERBVEEE
HRE -

HthREZZ<E
2017 2016
=Tt ZTRF

RMB'000
AR TT

RMB’000
ARETT

— ATV (Note (i) — 48 (K7aE0)) 416,250 447,615
— Star Raise (as defined below) (Note (i) —Star Raise (FE& & T ) (K715i) - 8,952
416,250 456,567
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 HZ=F—+F+-A=+—HIEFE

166

Note:

(if)

As at 31 December 2017, balance represents deposit of
HK$500,000,000 (equivalent to approximately RMB416,250,000)
(2016: HK$500,000,000, equivalent to approximately
RMB447,615,000) paid or payable by the Group for the Acquisition of
ATV including the Sale Shares and Major Debts. Details of this deposit
as stated in note 12(a).

On 4 November 2016, the Group had entered into a sale and purchase
agreement (the “Agreement”) with Star Raise Holdings Limited (”Star
Raise”) and a guarantor, pursuant to which Star Raise had conditionally
agreed to sell and transfer and the Group agreed to acquire and
accept, 10% of the issued share capital of Star Gaze Entertainment
Group Limited (“Star Gaze") at the consideration of HK$30,000,000,
which would be satisfied by cash, together with a call option granted
by Star Raise to acquire additional 20% of the issued share capital of
Star Gaze at the Group's discretion. On the same date, the deposit
in the amount of HK$10,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
RMB8,952,000) was paid to Star Raise upon the execution of and in
accordance with the terms of the Agreement, which should be entirely
refundable to the Group upon written request to Star Raise prior to the
completion. Details of the transaction were set out in the Company’s

announcement dated 7 November 2016.

However, the Group had decided not to proceed the acquisition after
considering the findings in the legal and financial due diligence. A
request to refund was made to Star Raise during the year ended 31
December 2017. Star Raise did not refund the deposit up to the date
when the consolidated financial statements are authorised for issue
and the Group had commenced legal proceedings against Star Raise
for the recovery of the said deposit in the sum of HK$10,000,000
(equivalent to approximately RMB8,671,000) together with interest
thereon for the period from 8 June 2017 up to date of full repayment.
The legal proceedings has not been settled as at the date when the
consolidated financial statements are authorised for issue and full
impairment had been provided during the year ended 31 December
2017 (note 8).

ASIA TELEVISION HOLDINGS LIMITED

G+

HNEREZRERQF

(ii)

R-B—+E+-A=+—H 5@
EHRARAEEARERKESE (8
EHERORETERH) MEFE
i+ Z $ 4500,000,0005% 7T (B E R4
AR #416,250,0007T) (Z T — X F :
500,000,000/ T (BEER O AR
447,615,0007T)) ° BRALLIES 2 FI1EH
R E12(a) ©

RZT—XRF+—AMA - REEHEStar
Raise Holdings Limited ([ Star Raisel) &
—BERATIEERZ ([ZHhE])
Bt - Star RaiseB KM RIE HE RE
& AR B R R R AR IR G
SEAERAA([EAR]) 210%B 31T
B& A+ X {8 /30,000,000 7T+ #§ A B
& X BiERStar Raisel® ) 2 R
HARE - AN B A BB R E W 2 R RSN
20% 2 B EITHRA - FAA » REBRE
3% R R R E R G M Star Raise
3 £410,000,000% 7T (FHER AR
8,952,00070) 2 R & * BHAKE N T
FX AT R AN 55 @ [A)Star Raisede i B E E K
TE2ERETAEKE - BARHZHE
HAARARBERARA T —RF+—
AEBZ2Rff-

A NEBEEE REERVERBHE
BEIZHRE  RETETRBEE -
HE-"Z—+t&+-_A=1+—HILFE
B [AlStar Raise# HREBHRIE 2 EK -
Star Raise R B E4R A M IS SRR ESL T
ERMILYERERS BUAEER
$#Star RaisefZ FB)E IR T - AUE Lt
124 £ %810,000,000/% 7t (FHE RO A
R%8,671,0007T) ERBE =T —tF X
ANBREEEZHEFEBHILHEZ
BEANE - ZEBRFREAVBERE
BERCE TIEE B BRI R AR R - RN EE =
T—tH+-A=+—BLLEEEEL
2B EREE (HEs) -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
REMBESRME(R)

For the year ended 31 December 2017 BE =T —+tF+-A=1+—HItFE

22.

23.

OTHER DEPOSITS

22. Hiiz&

2017 2016
—T—+t%F —E-REF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®For ARBTF T
Other assets (Note) Hih&E (f77) 657 -
Deposits paid for acquisition of RUWEYE  BERREEA
property, plant and equipment 2®& 8,612 -
9,269 —
Note: B 5T
Other assets mainly represent statutory and other deposits with the Stock HEMEEXZEARBRFIREEMZ AT REAM
Exchange and clearing houses, which are non-interest bearing. Be HATHE -

INTANGIBLE ASSETS

cosT
At 1 January 2016 and 31 December 2016

23. BEEE
Film rights and
licence fees Trademark
PRETIRKEE B
RMB'000 RMB'000

Trading

NEEFTL / T AR
(Note (iv))

RA
RZZE-~E-A-Ak

“E-XETZAZ1-H S =
WEBAR (H120) - 2,646

6,934

RMB'000
ARBTT

9,580

Acquisition of subsidiaries (note 12(b))
Additions NE 27,847 = = 27,847
Exchange realignment B3 B (1,112) (162) (422) (1,696)
31 December 2017 “E-t¥+t-A=t+-AH 26,735 2,484 6,512 35,731
ACCUMULATED AMORTISATION R BHERAE

AND IMPAIRMENT
At 1 January 2016, 31 December 2016 R=Z-x¥-B-A"

and 31 December 2017 “E-RE+ZA=t-HR

—E-tE+-ZfA=t-H - - - _

NET BOOK VALUE EEFE
31 December 2017 ZE-tEtZA=1-A 26,735 2,484 6,512 35,731
31 December 2016 ZE-RETZA=t-H - - - -
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 HZ=F—+F+-A=+—HIEFE
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Note:

)

(if)

(iii)

(iv)

Film rights and licence fees represent direct expenditure incurred by
the Group until the programmes are available to broadcast on the
Over-The-Top (“OTT") platform of the Group. Film rights is the fees
incurred to acquire the right for broadcasting transcripts of films on
the OTT platform of the Group during the terms ranging from 1 year
to 2 years. Licence fees are fees incurred to obtain rights to use film
rights or music copyrights owned by the independent third parties
for production of films by the Group. Film rights and licence fees are
amortised on estimated viewing patterns. The amortisation is on an
accelerated basis as the Group typically expects more upfront viewings.

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Group has not provided
any amortisation of film rights and licence fees as the OTT platform is
launched subsequent to the end of the reporting period on 29 January
2018.

The recoverable amount of film rights and licence fee as at
31 December 2017 has been determined to be approximately
RMB72,451,000 base on the vale-in-use calculation prepared under the
best estimation of the management of the Company. That calculations
use cash flow projections based on financial budgets approved by
management covering a three-year period. The pre-tax discount rate
used of 20% for media business (2016: Nil) Management determined
the budgeted revenue and costs based on past performance and its
expectations for the market development. The cash flows beyond three
years have been extrapolated using a steady 3% and 5% growth rate

for revenue and expenses respectively.

Based on the above, no impairment on film rights and licences fees
was made during the year ended 31 December 2017.

Trademark was acquired by the Group as part of the acquisition of
securities brokerage services and margin finance CGU (note 12(b)). The
trademark has no foreseeable limit to period that the Group can use
to generate net cash flows, accordingly, the trademark is considered as
having an indefinite useful lives (note 20).

Trading rights represents rights that confer eligibility of the Group to
trade on the Stock Exchange which was acquired by the Group as part
of the acquisition of securities brokerage services and margin finance
CGU (note 12(b)). The trading rights have no foreseeable limit to
period that the Group can use to generate net cash flows, accordingly,
the trading rights are considered as having an indefinite useful lives
(note 20).

ASIA TELEVISION HOLDINGS LIMITED

G+

HNEREZRERQF

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

FREMNEERERSBETEBAR
B BRI ([OTT]) FAERZA
ELzEEMAY - ¥R EMNAREE
TRBIARZER UM E2FZHRA
ERKBEOTTYRERMELEZER -
REBRMESHBUE=FHEZZH
MR E LR ERE  AEARE
HERRRELZER - AR RE
RERMGFIRERN FIARH - AN
SE-REPERZARRBLKRE -
BORINR S R TTH -

BE-_Z—+t&E+-_A=+—H8BL*=E
B AEENEELERER BRI RE
EEEY REAROTTEARKEHE
ZZE—NE—A=-THABRITHEL -

FHENRERER _F—tF+=A
=S+—RZAKESHEERBEEEZ
REGFMRRZERBEEAEEER
# AR ¥72,451,0007T - ZHEAE T
KRARSREREN  NEEEBHERE
=FEMeMBHEEREE - RERRXD
Fre Az BATRE IR R R20% (ZF— X
FE) BEERBBERBREHM
BERRZMEETHEERRERKAE - R
BRAXZBB=FHZRERED R
ERRE R E3%K5%HEE -

EREXfFM RBE_T—tF+=
RA=+—RLEFETENTHER R
HEELRE -

EREARNEERNKREESFELCRE LR
FBERERSEEEM (HF12(0) KT
Bz—#n BRAEAIBRRZERH
R UREASREEARELFRSR
Al ARERAEAEERTEA
FH (M13E20) o

ROBRBTITAEEERRBRME
BZEMN ERAAKRERKERSZEL
REERRECHERSEEEM (I
12(0)) &S 2 — 885 - X 5 I AT
BRZERHBR  URBIAEEERS
BELFHRERE Bt XSZEER
R ER A A (T EE20) -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
REMBESRME(R)

For the year ended 31 December 2017 BE =T —+tF+-A=1+—HItFE

24. INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE 24, REENTZ2ER
2017 2016
—E—tF —E-REF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR #For AR Fir
Cost of investment in an associate REE DR ZIERAK 276,085 =
Share of post-acquisition profits and other 5315 U B 18 5% #1| [z H b 2 E B X

comprehensive expense 3,615 -
279,700 -

Particulars of the associate are as follows: BERBZERET

Percentage of

Particulars of Place of ownership interest
issued shares incorporation/ attributable Principal
held operation to the Group activity

ESRE AEEMEES g
SECES 2ENA EREZADL EY/
2016

Yong Tai (Notes (i) and (ii)) Ordinary Malaysia 21.53% N/A Property development
shares (Note (iii)) and development and

operation of tourism

stage performance

KR (B )R (i) il HRAE 21.53% Zyili MEFERUK
(Hiz(in) BRRELIRE
FARE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
REMEBEBRRME (.’fé)

For the year ended 31 December 2017 HZ=-F—+F+=-A=+—HIFE

24. INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE — CONTINUED
Note: 5115?-

170

0]

(if)

(iii)

On 9 May 2017, Full Winning Developments Limited (“Full Winning”),
a direct wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into an
agreement with Impression Culture Asia Limited, a subsidiary of Sino
Haijing Holdings Limited (Stock code: 1106) to acquire 107 million
ordinary shares of Yong Tai, a company listed on the Main Market of
Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad, at the consideration of approximately
Malaysian Ringgit (“RM") 117,700,000 (equivalent to approximately
RMB189,016,000). Following this acquisition, the Group owned as to
16.42% equity interest in Yong Tai.

On 2 August 2017, Full Winning entered into the subscription
agreement with Yong Tai. Under the subscription agreement, Full
Winning has conditionally agreed to subscribe for 43,000,000
new Yong Tai shares at the issue price of RM1.26 (equivalent to
approximately HK$2.29) per share (the “Subscription Share”). The
total consideration of the subscription is amount to RM54,180,000
(equivalent to approximately RMB86,857,000). The Subscription Shares
to be subscribed by Full Winning represented approximately 6.17%
equity interest in Yong Tai as enlarged by the allotment and issue of
the Subscription Shares. Following this subscription, the Group owned
as to 21.53% equity interest in Yong Tai.

Yong Tai has outstanding ICPS as at the date it became an associate of
the Group and as at 31 December 2017. The Group has determined
that the ICPS represented present ownership interests in Yong Tai
as the ICPS are convertible to ordinary shares of the Company from
28 November 2019 without any further consideration. The effective
interest of the Group in Yong Tai after taking into account the ICPS
and all issued and outstanding ICPS held by other parties would be
21.53% as at 31 December 2017.

ASIA TELEVISION HOLDINGS LIMITED
THERERABERLLSA

@)

(ii)

(iii)

R-ZT—+tFEHANB KXRRZHE
BE2EWNBARLEZRARA A
(T2#E)RPRESERER DA (B
MR 1106) Z BB 2 Allmpression
Culture Asia Limited&] 3215 +% + LAUKER
KA (—HERERALEHFRRFER
+® 2 A7) 2107,000,0008% &AL -
RUSRZREHAERARLST (S
#1)117,700,0007T (HHERH AR
189,016,0007T) ° WHE T % - AEE
BB KK Z16.42%M 5 -

R-ZZE—tENAZH QEEKKT
VREHGE  BERBRE  EHBK
HRERETESREY1.26r (IBE
R #92.297 7T) 3R #43,000,0008% 5k X
FRAD ([REBRMD ) - ZERBSRZ
#HRAE RS ¥54,180,0007T (FHE R4
/\Eﬁ%ss 857,0007T) B TREEZ
RN B E RSB REITRERG
AR 2 K KIRAEXI6.17% © RBEETK
% REBEHEAKKLZ21.53%KRHE -

KRRRBAEEZBEARE A RD
“E—tE+-A=+— EIT%E?HE“
Z A AR E AR ST o R
BABRRELRITE -E-NF+—A
“HNHEREBRAAAREER
HASBEEZS T EE AT RRESL
AR NRE PR Z AR - &
R 7N B A [0 AT R AR B SR AR e P B B E
MALHBEZERTREETERA
BREER  FAEER-_ZT—tF+=
A=+—HHEZKREEEEZBAR
21.53% °

|a5”>



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

24,

For the year ended 31 December 2017 HZ—F

INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE - CONTINUED

Summarised financial information in respect of the Group’s material

associate, Yong Tai,

statements is as below:

At 31 December 2017

extracted from its consolidated financial

24.

GeEMBERRME(E)

—tEFT-A=1+—HLFE

RBE AR 2R &
KAATEE Y EABBRAL  HBBEL
(Fith B EARA B RE) BRI T |

2017
z— 5

RMB’000
ARKETT

R-Z2-—t&+=-A=+—-A8

Current assets mENEE 654,831
Non-current assets FEMBEE 514,912
Current liabilities MENB & (264,278)
Non-current liabilities FERBER (28,678)
Equity and net assets B REEFE 876,787
Year ended 31 December 2017 BE-_Z—tH5+=-A=+—HLEFE
Revenue Uy 2§ 160,051
Profit from continuing operations FELEEB 2 & 24,483
Post-tax loss from discontinued operations BIER SR 2 RBER (64)
Other comprehensive expense HE2mEAxL (2,398)
Total comprehensive income SHEWREE 22,021
Dividend received during the year FRNE WK E -
Fair value of the Group's investment SEETREENTEREFEZAFE

based on quoted market price 365,326
Ordinary shares of Yong Tai held by the Group RKEEMEF 2 KKRE B 150,000,000
Effective equity interest used for share of Yong D {hk K¥4E 2 B ALAE

Tai's result 21.53%
Provisional share of fair value of net identifiable ENMERKERBZ AT EER

assets and liabilities as at date of acquisition BEFEZAFE 169,027
Goodwill mE 107,058
Share of post-acquisition profit GBS 18 5 T 4,009
Share of other comprehensive expense AL EM 2 ERXZ (394)
Carrying amount of the REBPKRZ R 2 REE

Group's interest in Yong Tai 279,700
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
REMEBBRRME(R)

For the year ended 31 December 2017 BE =T —+tF+ A =+—HItFE

24,

25.

172

INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE — CONTINUED
As at the date of approval for issuance of these consolidated financial
statements, the fair value assessments of the identifiable assets and
liabilities of Yong Tai as at the date of acquisition have not yet been
completed. Accordingly, the Group’s share of the relevant fair values
of the net assets acquired has been determined on a provisional basis.
For the purpose of initial recognition of the investment in an associate
and application of the equity method of accounting, the directors of
the Company have determined the best estimates for the value of
these assets and liabilities as at the date of acquisition.

INVENTORIES

24,

25.

S NG R R |

RARE T BHREIETIZEBE - kAR
WIEHBRATERNEERABEBEZ A FERF
EEARTK - Bt - AEESEAKEE
EFEZEBATERYEEEETE -5
TIEERARBE AR RERKAERS
EmME  ARREZERZEEERA
BN BBz BEEREMET -

ZE

2017 2016

—ET—+tF T —NF

RMB’000 RMB’000

AE % For AR FiT

Raw materials R R 31,752 71,747
Finished goods RUAK h 77,703 34,977
109,455 106,724

As at 31 December 2017, certain inventories with original cost
amounting to RMB156,548,000 (2016: RMB178,859,000) were stated
at net realisable value of RMB68,069,000 (2016: RMB101,085,000).

Movement in the allowances for inventories

R-ZTE—tHF+_A=+—H " BHKRAK
A ARME156,548,000T (ZE—RF : AR
#178,859,0007T) 2 & TR EIZ 1] # 3 )% A
AR #68,069,000C (Z T —RF : AR¥
101,085,000t ) %11 i °

EREGED

2017 PAONES)

—F—LF —F—NRF

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR Fr AR Fr

At 1 January »—H—H 77,774 76,162

Write-down during the year F OB 28,845 18,018
Reversal of write-down 18] F OB

during the year (18,140) (16,406)

At 31 December R+-—A=+—H 88,479 77,774
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
REMEBHBRME(R)

For the year ended 31 December 2017 BE =T —+tF+-A=1+—HItFE

25. INVENTORIES - CONTINUED 25. FE-#&
As demand from emerging markets of fabrics and trading ARMERE S EBERET S 2 FRKNE
business remained weak during the year ended 31 December ET—tF T+ _A=Z+—BLEFEHEFRE
2017, the Group has made net write-down of inventories 55 - ANEBEMORTFEFEAKE 10,705,000
amounting to RMB10,705,000 (2016: RMB1,612,000). T(=E—~%F : ARM1,612,0007T) °
26. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES, 260 ESRHMEBWERR BER
DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS SR

2017 2016
—E—tF —E—REF

RMB’000 RMB’000
AR TFT AR TFIT

Trade receivables from securities brokerage AL RERFBLHE

services and margin finance segment DT B S REWEE SR (fata)
(Note (a))
— Cash clients —BeRP 1,730 =
- Margin clients —REEREF 50,885 =
— Clearing house —EE AT 5,094 -
57,709 =
Trade receivables from other segments BB P EBER
(Note (b)) (K1) 10,183 20,844
Less: Allowances for bad and doubtful debts & : REEIREE (2,712) (2,546)
7,471 18,298
65,180 18,298
Deposits paid to suppliers ERHER RS
(Note (c)) (Kt 7 (c)) 50,245 53,219
Less: Allowances for impairment BB ERE (16,727) (16,541)
33,518 36,678
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
REMEBBRRME(R)

For the year ended 31 December 2017 BE =T —+tF+ A =+—HItFE

26. TRADE AND OTHER 260 ESREMEWRERR &
RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS AND FAMNKRE-&

PREPAYMENTS—- CONTINUED

2017 2016
Tt ZT—REF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TFT AR¥TFT
Other deposits and receivables H ke K& EWAR K
— Refundable deposits paid for —RMWEFEE N2
acquisitions (Note (d)(i) RREBIEE (K77 (0)0) - 3,581
— Prepayment for acquisition of —WEBEAFEFABRRZ
financial assets at fair value WA E 2 BN HIE
through profit or loss (B a2 (d)ii)
(Note (d)(ii) - 40,688
— Other receivable due from ATV — TR AR 2 E b BR K
(Note (d)(iii)) (K 7 (i) 90,006 61,037
- Other receivables from a fund —ERESER A EMERR
administrator (Note (d)(iv)) (K1aEd)iv)) 98,383 -
- Value-added tax recoverable —m] Bl EER 1,365 B
— Amount due from a director — & W= =R (et (d)v)
(Note (d)(v)) - 45
— Other receivables and prepayments — il JE U5 BR SR K FB AN BOIAR 21,799 10,034
— Other deposits —Hfbiz& 3,223 1,962

313,474 172,326
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
REMEBHBRME(R)

For the year ended 31 December 2017 2= —+tF+-A=+—HIEFE

26.

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES,
DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS
— CONTINUED

(a)

Trade receivables from securities brokerage
services and margin financial segment

All receivables from cash clients, margin clients and clearing
house are not past due at the reporting dates for which
the management believes that no impairment allowance
is necessary as these balances have not been a significant
change in credit quality and the balances are considered fully
recoverable.

Trading limits are set for customers. The Group seeks to
maintain tight control over its outstanding accounts receivable
in order to minimise credit risk. Overdue balances are regularly
monitored by the management.

No aging analysis by invoice date is disclosed for trade
receivables from securities brokerage services and margin
finance segment as, in the opinion of the directors of the
Company, an aging analysis is not meaningful in view of the
business nature of securities dealings.

26.

5%
H

(a)

ZREMEWRERR - BE
REMNRIE-&

EERERBERETHE
TE2E S BWRAR

RURSEF RESTFPREE
Frz RIERHE BB Ra R - &
- EEEREEARLFEHE
HRERE  RAREEEARTE
EREHNERERBER/TEH
Yem o

AEEREEFRHMRE - NEHE

BN E B R E R B R A S
}??;T%%TI %*Hﬁ{ggﬂﬁ/\/ﬁxiX

K- -EREETHERARELRS -

ARAEERR  ENBHERZ
X¥BMUE  RROMZEEZTK
Bt - WEFEREFHELCRSE &R
BEMEN BB I RERBREFIRE
ﬁﬁﬁ%iﬂZ?@ﬁ%ﬁTﬁ
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
REMEBBRRME(R)

For the year ended 31 December 2017 HZ=—F—+F+=-A=1+—HILFE

26. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES, 26. EFRHMEBWRN - &2
DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS R 2K E - &
— CONTINUED
(b) Trade receivables from other segments (b) HttpEzEZEBWER
The following is an aged analysis of trade receivables RmEBRRBERE - BHRUERR
presented based on the invoice date at the end of the BIFEREM2S 2 R HITOT -

reporting period:

2017 2016
T+
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARWTFT ARWTFT
0 to 90 day(s) 0&90H 5,971 7,294
91 to 180 days 91&180H 144 4,507
181 to 270 days 181£270H 745 5,023
271 to 365 days 2712365H 239 156
Over 365 days HHBiAE365H 372 1,318
7,471 18,298
Management closely monitors the credit quality of trade ERERREREHGRIKERZE
receivables and considers trade receivables that are neither BEZE URRTRBHIREZ
past due nor impaired to be of a good credit quality. BIRWESBEEERRI -
Included in the Group's trade receivable balances were REE 2B HRKERRART
debtors with aggregate carrying amount of approximately ERWmER %E@ﬁﬂﬁﬁ%@ﬁ@@
RMB6,763,000 (2016: RMB17,145,000) which were past due BB ANR®6,763,000T (ZF— X
at the reporting date for which the Group has not provided F: AR¥17,145,0007T) 2 E U
allowance because those debtors have good credit records. B ARZERNRZEBALE
The Group does not hold any collateral over these balances. RFEERSE  AUAEETER

B EHE R o A EL AR
BEELAERS -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
REMEBHBRME(R)

For the year ended 31 December 2017 BEZE—+F+_A=+—HILFE

26.

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES,
DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS

— CONTINUED
(b) Trade receivables from other segments -
continued

The Company generally allows a credit period of 30 days to its
HK trade customers and no credit period is allowed to its PRC
trade customers. The following is an aged analysis of trade

receivables which are past due but not impaired:

26.

EZREAMBWBER 2
RN B E - &

(b) gfﬁ%ﬁZ%%El&ﬁﬁ%’x—

ARR—RGTEBEBEHEFPZ
EEMRIOARTEATENHE
SEFEEH -EBRHERREZ
BHRYEIER R AITMOT

2017 2016

—T—tF T—RF

RMB’000 RMB’000

ANE#®Fr AE&Fr

0 to 90 day(s) 0£90H 5,407 10,648
91 to 180 days 91£180H 745 5,023
181 to 270 days 181£270H 239 156
Over 270 days HBiB270H 372 1,318
6,763 17,145

The Group has provided allowances for certain trade
receivables, as the directors of the Company consider the
recoverability of these debts are low based on historical
experience.

REEEHRETESREESREL
BB REARARAEZRENE
RERARWEFEH 2 HERE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
REMEBBRRME(R)

For the year ended 31 December 2017 BE =T —+tF+ A =+—HItFE

26. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES, 26 ESREMEBEWRERNR RS
=+ —
DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS RENRE-&
— CONTINUED
(b) Trade receivables from other segments — (b) HittnEEZRWERNR-
continued i
Movement in the allowances for bad and doubtful debts: RIFRBEEE
Trade receivables
EOVAETA
2017 2016
—T—tF T—RF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFr AREFr
At 1 January n—A—H 2,546 2,397
Allowances made during the year FNEE 173 =
Exchange realignment BEE 5 38 2 7 149
At 31 December R+ZA=+—8H 2,712 2,546
At each reporting date, the management reviews trade REREEH TEERENRE
receivables for evidence of impairment on an individual and BEEER R B 5 B YR RE D
collective basis. Due to the significant financial difficulties Ro-BARBELEZFHFEHEARY
of several counterparties, the Group determined allowances HRE  MAEEETHE S EK
made for trade receivables of approximately RMB173,000 as BR AIE H 2 BB 4 A R #5173,000
individually impaired (2016: Nil) during the year. TERFRERNRE(ZT—RF:
) o
The Group does not hold any collateral over these balances. AEEW ER I FERT A EME
e
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
REMEBHBRME(R)

For the year ended 31 December 2017 BE =T —+tF+-A=1+—HItFE

26.

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES,
DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS
— CONTINUED

(c)

Deposits paid to suppliers

Deposits was paid to certain independent third parties as
deposits to purchase raw materials of the processing and
printing of fabrics in the subsequent period. Movement in
allowance for impairment of deposits paid to suppliers is as

follows:

26.

BEZREMEWERNR &S
RENRE &

() ENHERZES

AEBHBERETBLE=TXMHR
T ERN AR E I T A
NETIFRERMHZEZS - BN
HER 2R 2 BERBEFHNT :

2017 2016

—T—+%F —T—R%F

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR For AREFor

At 1 January R—A—H 16,541 6,050
Impairment loss during the year FARAEERE 2,018 10,941
Amount written-back O &5 (1,832) (450)
At 31 December R+=ZRAR=+—8H 16,727 16,541
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
HREMEBRRME(R)

For the year ended 31 December 2017 HZ=F—+F+-A=+—HIEFE

26. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES,
DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS
— CONTINUED

Other deposits and receivables

180

(d)

Note:

()

(if)

On 12 April 2016, the Group entered into a non-legally
binding memorandum of understanding (the “MOU") in
relation to the acquisition of 20% shareholding of Big Noble
Limited. Pursuant to the MOU, a refundable deposit of
HK$5,000,000 should be paid by the Group after the signing
of the MOU. The MOU was terminated during the year ended
31 December 2016 and the refundable deposit would be fully
refunded by instalments. An amount of HK$1,000,000 was
settled prior to 31 December 2016. Details of the transaction
were set out in the Company’s announcement dated 12 April
2016.

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Group further
agreed to reschedule the payment terms and entered into a
loan agreement with the vendor. As at 31 December 2017,
loan receivables under this termination arrangement was
amounted to HK$1,400,000. The balance due is unsecured,
interest bearing at 15% per annum and due in April 2018.

On 29 December 2016, the Group had prepaid
HK$45,450,000 (equivalent to RMB40,688,000) in relation to
the acquisition of financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss. The transaction was completed on 3 January 2017.

ASIA TELEVISION HOLDINGS LIMITED
THERZRAER LA

26.

By
=

SREMEWER B

REMNKRIE-&

(d)

H 12 & & FE AR K
B3
i) RZF-AFmMA+=AA

(ii)

A A5t Y #8Big Noble Limited
Z20% PR BT S SRR R S
ZHBERE ((ZRBES
8%]) c BIBZFRBETH - A
SENETZRBRERIERE
145,000,000 7T 2 ] iR & &
%  AMBESHEREBES
T—XNFE+-A=+—ALHF
FRIlE MEHARERSE
F o HIRE - —21,000,0005%
THRBEERZZ—A~F+=A
=+—BRIZBE -BEAXRZZ
HEHRAARERBEHE A=
T-A"EEA+=ZAZAMH-

REE-_ZT—+t&+=A
=+—BLFE FAEEE—
FREBEENHITZFHRIL
HBEFIIEZRBZE - N=F
—+tHE+=-A=+—80 " BE
FRIEREERRZERO R
1,400,000/ 7, © ZER 8RR
EER RETEF B E15%
BERR=ZT—NFWAEIH-

RZE—XE+ZA=tTh
B A&EERKBEZATFE
ATABREZMBEERN
45,450,000/ 7T (HER AR
40,688,0007T) ° ZERXHERN
—E—tF—-A=HEK -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
REMEBHBRME(R)

For the year ended 31 December 2017 2= —+tF+-A=+—HIEFE

26.

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES,
DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS
— CONTINUED

(d) Other deposits and receivables — continued

Note: — continued

(iii)

(iv)

As at 31 December 2017, other receivable due from ATV
represented (i) debts previously owed to the ex-employees
and ex-independent contractors of ATV in the aggregate
amount of approximately HK$54,249,000, equivalent to
approximately RMB45,162,000 (2016: HK$34,934,000,
equivalent to approximately RMB31,274,000) (including
mandatory provident fund contributions and surcharge
for ex-employees of ATV in Hong Kong and social security
insurance contributions and surcharge for ex-employees of
ATV in PRC) which have been assigned to Star Platinum during
the year; and (ii) amounts advanced to ATV for maintaining
its operation of approximately HK$53,868,000, equivalent
to approximately RMB44,844,000 (2016: HK$33,246,000,
equivalent to approximately RMB29,763,000).

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Group had
served a notice for redemption of an unlisted investment
fund which was classified as financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss (note 28). The redemption price was
approximately HK$118,177,000 and the amount remained
unsettled as at 31 December 2017, therefore recorded as
a receivable. The Group has received the partial settlement
from redemption of the unlisted fund of HK$60,000,000
(equivalent to approximately RMB49,950,000) subsequent to
31 December 2017.

The amount due from a director is unsecured, interest-free
and fully repaid during the year.

26.

ESRHMUBEWERNR &2

REMNKRIE-&

(d) HttREREWERR-&

M5

(iii)

(iv)

&

RZZE—tF+=ZA=+—
B - EUREER 2 H fh e AR K
REROEMBRERAMETR
B ARBZEHEHD
54,249,000/ 7T (AHFER K A
R #45,162,0007%) (Z & — X
£ 1 34,934,000/ 7T (FERL
AR#31,274,0007T)) (BIE A
DRZEAMBIEL 2585
HAESERRWMER A
BMrmEAE TEX 21t &)]
BESHRRMME) AEXK
BHERFRERZZ2HGE R
(VBEHDREEMRMT T
52 FIBHI53,868,0007%8 7T (18
LR #H AR ¥44,844,0007T)
(ZZ— /N4 : 33,246,000/ T
(FHERH AR H29,763,000
JT)) °

RBEE-_T—+t&+=A
=+—BLtFE AEEEH
—S9BARAFEFABRE
Rz A E (MiaF28) 2k
TREESBLEBERBAE -
fEEE#)/2118,177,00058 7T
MRZF—+tF+=A=+—
BEBSBEHALS B
ARSIERKRR - REEE
RZZ—+&+=-A=+—H~
BB ZIELTESENTS
f& 51 5660,000,00075 7T (A8
W # AR #49,950,0007T) °

RWEEFRREER RS
RERFRBHEE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
REMEBBRRME(R)

For the year ended 31 December 2017 BE =T —+tF+ A =+—HItFE

27. LOAN RECEIVABLES 27. BWER
The credit quality analysis of the loan receivables is as follows: ERERNEEEEZDTOT
2017 2016
=R =R
RMB’000 RMB’000
AE®TFr AE®TFr
Unsecured loans EmIEMER
- principal NG 138,861 129,515
— interest —F B 8,879 9,302
Less: Impairment loss recognised B ERERBEEE (9,781) =
Exchange realignment PE W T 390 -
138,349 138,817
The Group’s loan receivables, which arise from the money lending REEZ BBER(AREENREEBT
business in Hong Kong, were denominated in HK$. The net carrying EE)TDAETEE - RZE—+F+ A
values of the loan principal and interest receivables in original =St HZERREREASRAE BRRZ
currency as at 31 December 2017 amounted to approximately E) 2 BREFE D B4 /156,800,000
HK$156,800,000 (2016: HK$144,672,000) and approximately T (ZZ—7%F 1 144,672,000 7T) R # A
HK$9,385,000 (2016: HK$10,390,000), respectively. 9,385,000 7T (=& — /<4 : 10,390,000

BT -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

27.

GeEMBERRME(E)

For the year ended 31 December 2017 BE =T —+tF+-A=1+—HItFE

LOAN RECEIVABLES - CONTINUED

The movement in impairment loss on loan receivables is as follows:

27. EWER—E&

R ER O REBEZEHMT

2017 2016

—T—tF —T—RF

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TFT ARBTFT

At 1 January ®—H—H - =

Impairment loss recognised FRERZBEEIE

during the year 9,781 -

At 31 December ®n+=—A=+—8 9,781 -
Impairment provisions are recognised for financial reporting purposes BRI R E B A 68 2 R B 5 8T

only for losses that have incurred at the end of the reporting period
based on objective evidence of impairment.

All the loan receivables are entered with contractual maturity within
3 months to 1 year (2016: 3 months to 1 year). The Group seeks to
maintain tight control over its loan receivables in order to minimise
credit risk by reviewing the borrowers’ or guarantors’ financial
positions.

Loan receivables as at 31 December 2017 are unsecured and interest-
bearing at fixed rates ranging from 10.0% to 24.0% (2016: 8.0% to
24.0%) per annum.

HRBRETEHIEEAERNREREE
REELZER-

FERBEEFRzERNIPER=EAZE—
FR(CE-—RF: Z@RAE—%) - K&
B2 EREMHERAN BN - A1
HERE RN BREES - BREEERR
RERE

R-TE—+tEF+_A=+—"8 BUER
REERRAEEFE%10.0%%£24.0%
(ZZT—7RF :8.0%%E24.0%):t 8 -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
REMEBBRRME(R)

For the year ended 31 December 2017 HEZ=F—+F+-A=1+—HIEFE

27. LOAN RECEIVABLES — CONTINUED 27. BRWER-&
Aging analysis of loan receivables (after impairment allowances) HESAFMEERERAK AR EER
prepared based on loan commencement or renewal date, which were MR R BERERCRERER) 2
not past due, set out in the relevant contracts is as follows: AT :

2017 PAONES)

—E—+tF —E—REF

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBEFT ARWTFr

Less than 1 month D —1E A 24,893 =

1 to 3 month(s) —ERE=EH - 62,761

4 to 6 months mEAZ=RMEA 80,767 66,061

7 to 12 months +tEAZE+ @A 32,689 9,995

138,349 138,817
The management of the Company reviews and assesses for ARABEBERBEPENCHERER D
impairment individually based on customers’ repayment history and (I F) 2~ FE 6 5 & K& O E S
the fair value of the collaterals, if any. As at 31 December 2017, the M-R_T—EF+_A=+—H X%
Group has provided impairment loss of approximately RMB9,781,000 ERZERTHEEEHEDAESEOA
(2016: Nil) on loan with the aggregate gross carrying amount of R 9,781,000t (ZE—RF: E)ZE
approximately RMB9,781,000 (2016: Nil) on an individual assessment FRAE R B B 18 B 49 AR 159,781,000
basis. No impairment loss was provided on a collective assessment (ZE—RE &) - RZE—+tF+=A
basis as at 31 December 2017 (2016: Nil). =+—H UEREETAEEEELRE

BREEE(CE-REF 8 -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
REMEBHBRME(R)

For the year ended 31 December 2017 BEZE—+F+_A=+—HILFE

28.

FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE 28.
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

BAFEFAERERZ
MBEE

2017 PAONES)
—T—tF —T—RF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TFT ARBTFT
Equity securities listed in BB RGN ETHRATE F
Hong Kong and overseas, (B AFER)
at fair value 52,413 114,789
Unlisted investment fund, FETREES
at fair value (note 26(d)(iv)) (RRRAFEE) (i iF26(d)(iv) - 86,633
52,413 201,422

The fair value of the unlisted investment fund was determined from
broker’s quotes, which reflected the Group’s share of fair value of the
net asset value of the fund with segregated portfolio solely consists of
Hong Kong listed equity investments. The fund was redeemed during
the year ended 31 December 2017.

The above equity investments as at 31 December 2017 and 2016
were classified as held for trading.

As at 31 December 2017, the Group did not pledge any financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss (2016: RMB1,317,000) to
other financial institution to secure the credit facilities granted to the
Group (note 34).

FLETREESZAFERENE LSBT
EMEE TRRAKBENERFTE LT
BAKREEK 2 BIRERGZESTRE
HZEEFERATE RBE-Z—tF
TZA=ZT—HILHFE - ZESERED -

R-BE—tHFR_F-RF+_A=+—
B LR ARERSBRFHIELEZE
B

o

RZZF—+tF+_A=+—80 ' AEEIL
TR AT EFABERECHBEE
BRTEMBSBMERE (T —RF: AR
1,317,00070) " MMEAAREEEFEEZERM
B (HiiE34) 2 K18 -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
REMEBBRRME(R)

For the year ended 31 December 2017 HEZ=F—+F+-A=1+—HIEFE

29. PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS AND BANK 29. EHEHFRTERUARRT
BALANCES AND CASH HHRRRE
Pledged bank deposits represent deposits pledged to banks to secure EEMBITHERITERRITEMR 2R
banking facilities (note 34) granted to the Group and carry fixed WERRSEERRITES (HE34) 2
interest rate ranging from 1.5% to 2.1% (2016: 1.5% to 2.1%) per Bfm AR-F-—tF+-A=+—H

HETFEFEEIS%E2.1% (T —XF
1.5%%E2.1%) 55 o

annum at 31 December 2017.

Bank balances carry interest at market rates ranging from 0.0% to RZTE—+tF+ZA=+—8 " RIT&H
0.35% (2016: 0.0% to 0.35%) per annum as at 31 December 2017. BB FEER00%E0.35% (ZF—RF:
0.0%%0.35%) 5T B °

2017 2016
—F—LF —F—REF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFor AREFor
Bank balances and cash IRITHEBRRER S
— segregated accounts (Note) —BNERF (K7aE) 108,227 -
- general accounts and cash ——RERPREES 121,687 27,820
Total bank balances and cash BIRTTHBERS 229,914 27,820
Less: clients’ monies in segregated B BRERBYEFZ
accounts (Note) TR (M aE) (108,227) =
Cash and cash equivalents HekREEEY 121,687 27,820
Note: B 5
From the Group’s ordinary business in provision of brokerage and related AEBRETREL L RBBERE 2 —REBB
services, the Group receives and holds money deposited by clients in the course BALEZRETDE  FUREREEPAMF
of the conduct of the regulated activities. These clients’ monies are maintained MZRIE - ZERPRIBFRNG THHHNEL
in segregated bank accounts at market interest rates. The Group has recognised BYUIRITHRPA » AE B HREE 2 EEHE
the corresponding accounts payables to respective clients. BRI -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

30.

GeEMBERRME(E)

For the year ended 31 December 2017 2= —+tF+-A=+—HIEFE

DEFERRED TAXATION

The components of deferred tax recognised in the consolidated
statement of financial position and the movement during the year are
as follows:

I E B IR
RiEAFBRRRERZBLERADH R
HERNEHMT :

Accelerated
tax

depreciation

MR IE &
RMB’000
ARETFT
Deferred tax liabilities RIEFIIE A&

At 1 January 2016 and 31 December 2016 RZE-—RE-A-BEZZ—RX
F+=—HA=+—8H =
Charged to consolidated profit or loss RiFE B R RN (828)
Acquisition of subsidiaries (note 12(b)) W B B 8 2 R) (A7 12(b)) (64)
Exchange realignment ME X 58 2 37
At 31 December 2017 R=-Z—t&+=A=+—H (855)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has deductible
temporary differences of RMB256,343,000 (2016: RMB266,669,000).
No deferred tax asset has been recognised in relation to deductible
temporary difference because it is not probable that taxable profit will
be available against which the deductible temporary difference can be
utilised.

Under the EIT Law of PRC, withholding tax is imposed on dividends
declared in respect of profits earned by PRC subsidiaries from 1
January 2008 onwards. Deferred taxation has not been provided
for in the financial statements in respect of temporary differences
attributable to retained profits of the PRC subsidiaries amounting to
RMB156,516,000 (2016: RMB130,553,000) as the Group is able to
control the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences and
it is probable that the temporary differences will not reverse in the
foreseeable future.

RERE M A R - ANEE G A IR E
=% A R#256,343,0007C (Z B — /K -
AR #266,669,00070) ° BT AR B
JRE R B 0% I 7T Bh A B A 0B B A AR IR
AL ERTNATRNEERERELT
RIBEE -

RIEFRCEMBRE AT NEF—
A—BE phEHEBARMRIENE
ERE R SRBZTEINR - MBEHRERAKRE
HPEMNBARRBEFMHEREREA
R ¥156,516,000T (ZZE—RF : AR
130,553,0007T) fEH R E R B HEE - REA
RAEEAEHZSEREENEDE
o ARZEEGRZEEARAGRTKRA
REBEM o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
REMEBBRRME(R)

For the year ended 31 December 2017 HEZ=F—+F+-A=1+—HIEFE

31. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 31. EZREMEMSERR

2017 2016
—F—tF —F—REF

RMB'000 RMB’000
ARKETT ARKETT

Trade payables from securities brokerage BHEELERBRREFEMES A

services and margin finance segment 2 B S MR (AT 5E0))

(Note (i) 62,530 -
Trade payables from other segments B2 B 5 ENRR (A 20)

(Note (ii)) 26,021 24,916
Customers’ deposits BEZES 17,771 27,238
Other payables and accruals (Note (iii)) Hfth FE T AR AR R I =T B A (7 77(iii)) 28,778 213,424
Amount due to a director (Note (iv)) BB BB (A A (iv) 214 -
Amounts due to directors of the subsidiaries &1 Bff B A 512 £ A (M 7£(v))

(Note (iv)) 100 1,265
Amount due to a shareholder FET AR X RIAR R FRIE (B 7 (iv))

of the Company (Note (iv)) 366 -
Amounts due to non-controlling owners of &K B A & JE IR AR HE B A FIAB

subsidiaries (Note (v)) (B aw)) 26,841 -
Amounts due to related companies FE S B3 A B 3R E (AT A (vi)

(Note (vi) 7,904 -

170,525 266,843

Note: Ft3T -

(i) The trade payable balances arising from the ordinary course of business (i) BKREREFRBIBRITRFPRARARZEZ
of securities brokerage services and margin finance are normally settled BHEBAREREEREIN  R—REHLL
in two trading days after the trade date except for the money held on R RRECRMEEB CEBHBERE
behalf of clients at the segregated bank accounts which are repayable EZBSRNEREHREFTNRSBEH
on demand. No aging analysis is disclosed for as in the opinion of the BREAXSAEE - ARREERA -
directors of the Company, an aging analysis is not meaningful in view ENELFEBERRECHEEBZED
of the business nature of securities dealings and margin financing. HE RESMZEERIN Bt I

BRBRERON
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

31.

GeEMBERRME(E)

For the year ended 31 December 2017 HZEZ=—F—+F+=-A=+—HILFE

TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 31. EFRHMENERERR—&

— CONTINUED

Note: — continued Mgk : —#&

(ii) The following is an aged analysis of trade payables presented based on (ii) RIEHABERE - B S EMNRIRE
the invoice date at the end of the reporting period: BEAHEIZRBRATOT -

2017 2016
—ZET—+tF —E—RF

RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT AREFT

0 to 90 day(s) 0%90H 7,361 7,864
91 to 180 days 91&E180H 2,193 4,953
181 to 270 days 181%270H 3,348 3,162
271 to 365 days 271&365H 4,981 5,455
Over 365 days 38365 H 8,138 3,482
26,021 24,916
(iii) As at 31 December 2016, included in other payables, there was (iii) RZE-—RE+ZA=+—H K&
an amount of HK$220,000,000 (equivalent to approximately fE AT BE 2R - B — 220,000,000/ 7T
RMB196,951,000) representing the outstanding consideration payable (FBER A AR %196,951,0007T) Z ik
for the Acquisition. Details of the Acquisition, please refer to note FRRRBERARN I REERE-F
12(a)(ii). During the year ended 31 December 2017, the outstanding BWBEREF1E F2HME120a)
consideration payable was fully settled. ") CHE_ZE—+FF+_A=+—HIE

CRERNCAEERERES -

(iv) The amounts due to a director/directors of the subsidiaries/a (iv) ENEEHBARES,/ ANARRE
shareholder of the Company are unsecured, interest-free and repayable ZHAREER  RRRAERERER -
on demand.

(v) The amounts due to non-controlling owners of subsidiaries are (v) FEH B B A R FEIE AR HE B A RE R IR
unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand. B RERAREREE-

(vi) The amounts are due to related companies which directors of certain (vi) FZEFERNTHEEERLE NS EE
subsidiaries have significant influence or direct equity interest. The RiEZETHBARNEEZBENT -
amounts due are unsecured, interest-free, except for an amount ZEFEAEERR 28 (BREF—ZA
of RMB7,766,000 which is interest bearing at 5% per annum, and R #7,766,0007C I B R F B E5%5F
repayable on demand. BN RBEEREER -
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 HZ=F—+F+-A=+—HIEFE

32.

190

BOND PAYABLES

On 15 October 2015, the Company as issuer (assignor) and the
assignee as subscriber entered into a subscription agreement in
respect of the subscription of the one-year 15% coupon secured
bond to be issued by the Company in the principal amount of
HK$70,000,000 which would be secured by the share charge to be
executed by Widerlink Group Limited (a wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Company) (the “Chargor”) in favour of the assignee over the
entire issued share capital of a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Group.

A supplementary subscription agreement was signed on 14 October
2016, the maturity date was extended to 14 October 2017 and the
interest rate was adjusted from 15% to 8% per annum for the period
from 15 October 2015 to 14 October 2017.

A second supplementary subscription agreement was signed on 14
October 2017 and interest rate was remained at 8% per annum for
the period from 15 October 2016 to 14 October 2018.

ASIA TELEVISION HOLDINGS LIMITED
THERERABERLLSA

32.

FE 1+ & %

RZZE—RAF+ATHB  KARRMEAE
TAERA)BZEAMEARBA)TL
REGZ NABERBEREHARAET
7N % ¥870,000,000/ T E B E15% 2 —F
HMBERHES  mMAERESFBURQF
2 & B W B A "Widerlink Group Limited
RRA)UAREE—HE2EMBRARZE
BEITRAERFUTEABTEARY
2 BE 0 RS (R A o

—MRZE—R"F+ATHBEBZHRT
REHZBINPAERE=_T—+tF 1+ A
T+ Y —_ET—RAFE+A+RBEZ
Tt F T AT HBEHMZFRNEHIS%
AEE8Y °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
REMEBHBRME(R)

For the year ended 31 December 2017 BE =T —+tF+-A=1+—HItFE

33. OBLIGATION UNDER FINANCE LEASES

The Group leases certain of its motor vehicles (note 18) under finance

34.

leases.

Minimum lease payments

33.

RMEHERAE
AEEREREAERAEETAS
(fFzE18)

Present value of
minimum lease payments

SEBEFR SEAENHZEE
2017 2016 2017 2016
—E—tF —E-RF —E—tF —E—RF
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’'000 RMB’000
AR For REFTL AR%TFor ARE T
Amounts payable: JE T RRIR -
Within one year —FR 205 715 188 658
In the second to fifth years, E_FEELF
inclusive (BEEERME) 402 1,684 389 1,623
Total minimum finance lease HEHEE
payments S E 607 2,399 577 2,281
Future finance charges RRBMEER (30) (118)
Total net finance lease payables BRI AR E
FIEFREE 577 2,281
Portion classified as current PBEARBEE
liabilities (188) (658)
Non-current portion FEMEE D 389 1,623
SHORT-TERM BANK LOANS, SHORT- 34.

TERM LOANS FROM OTHER FINANCIAL
INSTITUTION AND OTHER BORROWING

The Group’s short-term bank loans are denominated in RMB (2016:

RMB) while the short-term loans from other financial institution and
other borrowing are denominated in HK$ (2016: HK$).

Short-term loans from banks and other financial institution are

secured by certain property, plant and equipment (note 18), prepaid

lease payments (note 19) and pledged bank deposits (note 29) as at

31 December 2017.

FERMRTER REHME
b f&

BB ERERRE
g
AEEEHRITERAARE (ST -
F:AR¥)HE - RERMEBMBE2E
R R ERIET (B — < -
L) EHE -

RZE—tF+ZA=+T—BXERTR
HemMEB I EHERUNETHE K
P Rk (Hfaz18) - MNHEE A (&
19) R B IRITF K (M 5E29) 1EIER -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
REMEBBRRME(R)

For the year ended 31 December 2017 BEZE—+tF+ZA=+—HILLFE

34. SHORT-TERM BANK LOANS, SHORT- 3. EHRITENR - REHMSE
TERM LOANS FROM OTHER FINANCIAL MEECRPERRAEME
INSTITUTION AND OTHER BORROWING - E-&

CONTINUED
The short-term loans from banks and other financial institution are RZZE—tF+-A=+—BXARTR
interest bearing at rates ranging from 4.35% to 8.25% (2016: 5.44% Hih BB RHERRFEENT
to 8.00%) per annum as at 31 December 2017. 4.35%%825% (ZZF —/NF :5.44%%
8.00%)&T & °
Unsecured other borrowing represents a loan from an independent RZFE—tF+ZA=+—H S&EHz
third party which carries interest at 8% per annum (2016: Nil) as at HMEERE —BBILE=ZF2EX
31 December 2017. BERBEEN B (ZF—RF: &) -
Certain short-term bank loans are guaranteed by certain related ETEHRTERAETEREA LR
parties and the maximum amount guaranteed is set out below: BR mMERERz&ZSSBEHINOT
2017 2016
—T—tF —E—RF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTFT ARBTFr
Joint and several guarantee (Note (i) TR X BRI IE R (A7) 131,000 -
Joint and several guarantee (Note (ii) H R K AE BIAER (B 72i) - 22,500
Joint and several guarantee (Note (iii)) R R AE BB AR (A7 a2 i) - 45,000
Joint and several guarantee (Note (iv)) H R K B B R R (B 2 (iv) 74,500 -
205,500 67,500

192 ASIA TELEVISION HOLDINGS LIMITED
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34.

GeEMBERRME(E)

For the year ended 31 December 2017 2= —+tF+-A=+—HIEFE

SHORT-TERM BANK LOANS, SHORT-
TERM LOANS FROM OTHER FINANCIAL
INSTITUTION AND OTHER BORROWING -

CONTINUED
Note:
(i) The credit facilities were jointly guaranteed by Mr. Cai Chaodun, Mr.

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

Qiu Fengshou, Ms. Wang Yuee, Mr. Cai Chaodun’s wife and Ms.
Ding Honggan, Mr. Qiu Fengshou’s wife. Mr. Cai Chaodun is the
deputy general manager of the Group, who is considered as a key

management personnel.

The credit facility was jointly guaranteed by Mr. Cai Chaodun, Mr. Qiu
Fengshou and Mr. Fu Jianhua. Mr. Fu Jianhua is the deputy general
manager of the Group, who is considered as a key management

personnel.

The credit facility was jointly guaranteed by Mr. Cai Chaodun and his
wife, Ms. Wang Yuee.

The credit facilities were jointly guaranteed by Mr. Cai Chaodun and
Mr. Qiu Fengshou.

3. BHIRITER - KBEHME

B EHERREME
E_IIE

fia

(i) EREERAERSEIHELE  BEKE
- BRRELEZEFEABRK L RED
SREEZEFTAHRLHBER -
BB ERARE 2B BKE - WK
BREBEEAR -

(i) FHRFEEREHSETABLLE  BYRE
EREZELRERRER BRELE
RAKBEZRBRE BREAZEE
BAE-

(iii) FREERERBEATEEREEZEFE
RBZ T KRER -

(iv) EREERERSEATEE R EKE
EHRER -
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On 23 October 2015, the Company entered into a conditional placing
agreement (“CB Placing”) (as supplemented by the supplemental
CB Placing agreements dated 13 December 2015 and the second
supplemental CB placing agreement dated 1 February 2016)
(collectively, the “CB Placing Agreements”) with China Everbright
Securities (“China Everbright”) in relation to the placing of the
bonds in accordance with the terms of the CB Placing Agreements
(the “Placing Bond”). On 15 April 2016, the Placing Bond with
an aggregate principal amount of HK$120,450,000 (equivalent to
RMB100,611,000) had been successfully placed by China Everbright
to not less than six CB investors. Details of the Placing Bond were set
out in the Company’s announcements dated 14 December 2015, 1
February 2016, 8 April 2016 and 15 April 2016 and the circular dated
22 February 2016.

The convertible bonds mature in three years from the date of issue
at 8% interest of its principal amount, unless previously converted or
purchased. Neither the Company nor the bondholder may demand
early redemption of the convertible bond in any event.

The conversion option of the convertible bonds is accounted for as
equity instrument and is determined after deducting the fair value
of the liability component from the total fair value amount of the
convertible bonds at the date of issuance. The residual amount
represents the value of the conversion option, which is credited
directly to equity as convertible bond equity reserve of the Group.
The valuation of the fair value of the liability component at the date
of issuance was carried out by an external independent valuer, Hong
Kong Appraisal Advisory Limited, by using discounted cash flow
method. The effective interest rate of the liability component on initial
recognition and the subsequent measure of effective interest expense
on convertible bonds is calculated at 9.78%.

ASIA TELEVISION HOLDINGS LIMITED
THNERERERLF

R-_TE—HAE+A-+=H AQFH
FPRXKRESF(FB)ABRAA ([HEK
AEHFDITCAKHERE R (KBHA
A+ AtZBZ@AEATER
EHEEEWERAHA-_T—X<F_A
—HAZEZMHERATRRESLEE HE
Fifize) (B A ZERRE SR EH
#F) O RNAEHABBZETHRRES
EmBEREES ([REEFH]) -R=2Z
—NEMA+HB  FEXAEBELEDKI
MADRAZATRREFREERER
% 4858 /120,450,000 7T (FBZE N AR
100,611,00070) 2 BcEEH - LEEH 2
HBEERARARBERBHA-T—AF
+—A+mA - —T—XR"F-_A—H8 =
E-XNENANBR-ZZE—XRENA+H
Azt RERBHA-T—X~FE=_A
“+ZHZBK -

BOFEREAEBRIBE  JHRRESRHE
77 B E A = F B M iR AR 2 88 IA8% AT
B ARAREFFHHAREMER T
AR ESRIRATIE B AR E S o

MEBETBEE  AJHRREFZBRERERETD
ARIMEBRATR - RA B RES R FE
BETHBRABERO ZATFERKRTUE
Eeo AHBEARBEERZEME  HE
EREa ARAREEZ TR ES#ER
EH - AERONBETRHZAFEHI
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35.

GeEMBERRME(E)

For the year ended 31 December 2017 2= —+tF+-A=+—HIEFE

CONVERTIBLE BONDS — CONTINUED

During the year ended 31 December 2017, an aggregate
principal amount of HK$30,800,000, equivalent to approximately
RMB25,558,000 (2016: HK$89,650,000, equivalent to
RMB72,504,000) of the convertible bonds was converted into
140,000,000 (2016: 407,500,000) ordinary shares at the conversion

price of HK$0.22 per conversion share.

The convertible bonds are bifurcated into a liability component and
an equity component for accounting purpose. The following tables
summarise the movements in the liability and equity components of
the Company’s convertible bonds during the both years:

BEBD
NGECISE Ve SERER-

Liability component
At the beginning date/date

35. Ejﬁﬂi%%_ng

HE-_Z—tHF+-_A=+—81tHF
& ' A% 4% 530,800,000/ T (FHE R
# AR #25,558,0007T) (Z T — /N &
89,650,000 7T (HHE M AR ¥ 72,504,000
T ZAMRESFBERRRESRKRIER
A% 15 0.227% 7T 8 32 /4140,000,0000% (=
— 754 : 407,500,0000%) & i@ % o

BERENME  TRRESFHIRERE
Mo REzED c TREBEARNFREALRR
AABMREFcBERERT D 2B

2017 2016
=T f£F

—T—REF
RMB'000
ARETFTT

RMB’000
AR TIT

of issue 26,589 96,033
Effective interest expense BERFEMX 1,565 2,752
Interest payable J& = FILB, (1,323) (2,461)
Conversion during the year RAFEeEin

(notes 36(viii) and 36(iv)) (Kt 5F36(vii)) & 36(iv)) (25,558) (72,504)
Currency realignment BB AR (1,273) 2,769

At the end of the year REL&R - 26,589
Equity component Eads
At the beginning date/date RER A EITHE

of issue 1,171 4,578

Conversion during the year RARFEER (1,171) (3,407)
At the end of the year REH&R - 1,171

The liability component of the convertible bonds is classified as a
non-current liability on the amortised cost basis until extinguished on

conversion or redemption.

AR EF B ENR D IR BERAEED
BARRDEME EEXNERIMOET
AL -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
REMEBBRRME(R)

For the year ended 31 December 2017 BEZE—+tF+ZA=+—HILLFE

36. SHARE CAPITAL 36. KRA

Authorised
ETE
Number of

shares Amount
AR 8B HE
‘000 HK$'000
TR FET

Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each FREE0. 10 T2 @M

At 1 January 2016 R_E—RE—H—H 7,000,000 700,000
Increase in authorised share AR (B 20))
capital (Note (i) 13,000,000 1,300,000
At 31 December 2016 and R-ZB-X"E+=-A=+—H
31 December 2017 E—Z—t&+=-A=+—H 20,000,000 2,000,000

Issued and fully paid

EEITRER
Number of

shares Amount Amount

SRR -4z R R

‘000 RMB'000 HK$°000

FiR ARKFT FET

At 1 January 2016 RNZZE—R"F—H—H 2,036,040 186,229 203,604

Placement of new shares (Note (i) B E S (K722 0i) 600,000 50,076 60,000

Subscription of new shares (Note (i) BB (B 2L07) 300,000 25,038 30,000

Conversion of convertible bonds (Note (iv)) #E R R E 5 (B i) 407,500 34,461 40,750

Placement of new shares (Note (v)) BeE D (B at(v)) 642,380 55,804 64,238
At 31 December 2016 RIE—RF

+ZRA=+— 3,985,920 351,608 398,592

Placement of new shares (Note (vi)) B EF D (B 2t vi)) 797,184 70,949 79,718

Placement of new shares (Note (vii)) Be & 5D (B 2 (vii) 956,620 82,757 95,662

Conversion of convertible bonds (Note (viii) ~ E# A3 &5 (4 2 (viii) 140,000 11,935 14,000

Placement of new shares (Note (ix)) BeEF D (B2t (ix)) 1,175,944 99,368 117,594

At 31 December 2017 R-ZEB—tH&+=-A=+-H 7,055,668 616,617 705,566

ASIA TELEVISION HOLDINGS LIMITED
THNERERERARDSA



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
REMEBHBRME(R)

For the year ended 31 December 2017 2= —+tF+-A=+—HIEFE

36. SHARE CAPITAL — CONTINUED

Note:

(i)

(i)

(iii)

On 9 March 2016, an ordinary resolution was passed at an
extraordinary general meeting by which the authorised number of
ordinary share of the Company was increased from 7 billion to 20
billion by the creation of additional 13 billion ordinary shares of
HK$0.1 each.

On 23 October 2015, the Company entered into a share placing
agreement (as subsequently supplemented by the supplemental
share placing agreement dated 13 December 2015 and the
second supplemental share placing agreement dated 1 February
2016) (collectively, the “Share Placing Agreements”) with Haitong
International Securities Company Limited (“Haitong Securities”).
Pursuant to the Share Placing Agreements, Haitong Securities
conditionally agreed to place, on a best effort basis, up to an
aggregate of 600,000,000 new ordinary shares of the Company to not
less than six placees at a price of not less than HK$0.20 per placing
share. On 1 April 2016, the share placing has been successfully placed
at HK$0.20 per placing share.

On 23 October 2015, the Company entered into a share subscription
agreement (as subsequently supplemented by the supplemental
share subscription agreement and the second supplemental share
subscription agreement) (collectively the “Share Subscription
Agreements”) with Honghu Capital Co. Limited (“Honghu Capital”).
Pursuant to the Share Subscription Agreements, the Company
conditionally agreed to allot and issue and Honghu Capital
conditionally agreed to subscribe for 300,000,000 subscription shares
at the subscription price of HK$0.20 per share. The share subscription
was completed on 5 April 2016.

36.

N

(i) RZT—AE=ZANB XARARK
FREIAG BB -—BEBRAER
LA i 38 3% 3% 13,000,000,000% & f% @
BONE T2 EBRMEARAEE
T3 A% BB f7,000,000,0000% # hn &=
20,000,000,0008% °

(i) N-ZE—A&+A=-+=A AQFHE
BREREFARAR (FEBER] T
URHRERE (HEEBHA-S—A
FHZAT=B2HAROEEHHER
AfA—ZT—A"F-_A—BAZ%E=_H#
TR EE R T ) (518 [ 2 ERG
feEHm#l) - REZSEROEEHE
HRBHFERGERBRENEERT D
RANBREARE &% 4 $£600,000,000
BRAARFLEBR BEEEATERST
AR AL & AR 190.208 7T - R=ZZF—/REFW
A—H BROBESEETEEXNIZERE
ERH0.20B THE -

(iif) R-_F-—hAFE+A=-+=R ARARH
BHEEABRAR ([BBEA] /T
P A0 3% B 1 o (L1248 48 78 B 10 R B 163
mRE—MHE T REHEMBEIRT)
(RBIZERNRBEBED) - REZ
EROABEBR > ARAEGRERER
BRBETMBBEANE GERERE
300,000,000 RN - REBE LT
Bx170.208 T - R RBBERER —F
—RFEOARATK -
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HREMEBRRME(R)

For the year ended 31 December 2017 HZ=F—+F+-A=+—HIEFE

36. SHARE CAPITAL - CONTINUED 36. lRA&-&
Note: — continued MicE - — 48
(iv) During the year ended 31 December 2016, an aggregate (iv) RBE_Z—R"F+_A=+—BLHF

198

principal amount of HK$89,650,000 (equivalent to approximately
RMB72,504,000) of convertible bonds (note 35) was converted at the
conversion price of HK$0.22. These shares ranked pari passu with
other shares in issue in all aspect.

& A& 48 %8 /89,650,00058 1T (H%E
R # AR #72,504,0007T) 2 7] #2 % (&
% (MI7E35) B1R0.22B T 2 R EE
o WERMESHHEHME BFHITR
NERRSHAL -

(v) On 28 September 2016, the Company entered into a placing (v) RZB-—RFAAZTNB  KAAHE
agreement with a placing agent pursuant to which the placing agent —HRERIBIIVEEHE - Bt - B
agreed to place 642,380,000 new shares under general mandate at EREBRERBREERH0.22EBTZ
the price of HK$0.22 per placing share (the “2016 Placing Price”). On BE(ZT-AFREE]) RIE—KEK
20 October 2016, a total of 642,380,000 new shares were successfully HE Bt 55642,380,000/ #T 9 o R =&
placed at the 2016 Placing Price. Accordingly, 642,380,000 shares of —R"F+A=+8" & #642,380,000
HK$0.1 each were issued at a premium of HK$0.12 each. These shares BEFRNHEZE T — <FEEEKINE
rank pari passu in all respects with the existing shares. & o B 1t + 642,380,000% & A% 1 {E0.1

BLZBROBIRGR0.12BITZ & EHE
T WEROHESTHERBRHD =
EE:3:vs

(vi) On 16 February 2017, the Company entered into a share placing (vi) RZZE—tF=A+"8  ARAHEE

agreement with the placing agent. Pursuant to the 2017 share placing
agreement, the placing agent has conditionally agreed to place, on
a best effort basis, up to an aggregate of 797,184,000 new ordinary
shares of the Company to not less than six placees at a price of not
less than HK$0.20 per placing share. On 9 March 2017, 797,184,000
ordinary shares has been successfully placed at HK$0.20 per placing
share. These shares rank pari passu in all respects with the existing
shares.

ASIA TELEVISION HOLDINGS LIMITED

HERERABERLLSA

ERBILRNEESHE RE-T
—tFRMEESHHE  BEREEERK
HRBEENEERNT DR SBER
ABRE &% 4 $£797,184,0000 & A 7]
MEBR BEEERTMEREBREER
70208 T - R—_E—+HE=ANA8 "
797,184,000 L @R B A IR B RRECE
& 170.205 7T 2 BARERE - L ERMIE
EHEHERERNZEERSHA -
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 2= —+tF+-A=+—HIEFE

36. SHARE CAPITAL — CONTINUED

Note: — continued

(vii)

(viii)

(ix)

On 30 June 2017, the Company entered into the placing agreement
with the placing agent and Sincere Securities Limited (“Sincere
Securities”) (an indirectly non wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company). Pursuant to the share placing agreement, the placing agent
and Sincere Securities has conditionally agreed to place, on a best
effort basis, up to an aggregate of 956,620,000 new ordinary shares
of the Company to not less than six placees at a price of not less than
HK$0.25 per placing share. On 24 July 2017, a total of 956,620,000
shares were successfully placed at HK$0.25 per placing share. These

shares ranked pari passu with other shares in issue in all respect.

During the year ended 31 December 2017, an aggregate principal
of HK$30,800,000 (equivalent to approximately RMB25,558,000) of
convertible bonds (note 35) was converted at the conversion price of
HK$0.22. These shares ranked pari passu with other shares in issue in

all aspect.

On 24 November 2017, the Company entered into a placing
agreement with the placing agent. Pursuant to which the placing agent
agreed to place 1,175,944,000 new shares under general mandate
at the price of HK$0.40 per placing share to not less than six placees
On 19 December 2017, a total of
1,175,944,000 shares were successfully placed at HK$0.4 per placing

based on a best effort basis .

share. These shares ranked pari passu with other shares in issue in all

respect.

36.

R — &

s — &

(vii)

(viii)

(ix)
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REBATERERESRKRMH.258
TeRZTE—+tFLA=-+WA  &H#
956,620,000% A& 17 B Ak Th 12 = A% Bl & A%
70.258 L 2 BRI E o WWERMES
FEEAEMEBEITRNZE RS -

REE-FT—+tF+-_A=+—HL*F
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W& A R #25,558,0007T) 2 AT £ 8% &
% (M 5¥35) Bik0. 228 T 2 R EHE
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A share option scheme was adopted on 15 March 2006 (the “Share
Option Scheme”) and will remain in force for 10 years from that date.
The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to enable the Company to
grant options to the directors of the Company, eligible employees and
other outside third parties under the Share Option Scheme, in the sole
discretion of the directors of the Company, who have contributed or

will contribute to the growth and development of the Group.

Upon approval by shareholders by ordinary resolution at the
extraordinary general meeting (the “EGM") on 23 February 2010, the
total number of shares in respect of which options may be granted
under the Share Option Scheme was refreshed and increased to
106,150,000 shares which were equivalent to 10% of the shares of
the Company in issue as at the date of the EGM.

The total number of shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of
options granted and to be granted to each grantee under the Share
Option Scheme in any 12-month period shall not exceed 1% of the

issued share capital of the Company from time to time.

There is no general requirement that an option must be held for any
minimum period before it can be exercised but the directors of the
Company is empowered to impose its discretion any such minimum
period at the time of grant of any particular option. The period during
which the options may be exercised will be notified by the Directors
to each grantee upon grant of each option, provided that it shall
commence on a date not earlier than the date of the grant of an
option and not be more than ten years from the date of grant of the
option. An offer of grant of an option must be accepted within 21
days after the date of grant. The amount payable on acceptance of
the grant is HK$1, which must be received by the Company within
21 days from the date of grant or within such other period of time as
may be determined by the board of directors pursuant to the Listing
Rules.

The subscription price for the shares under the Share Option Scheme
shall be a price determined by the Directors at its absolute discretion
and shall not be less than the highest of: (i) the closing price of the
shares as stated in the Stock Exchange's daily quotations sheet on the
date of grant; (i) the average closing price of the shares as stated in
the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheets for the five business days
immediately preceding the date of grant; and (iii) the nominal value of

the shares.

The Share Option Scheme expired on 14 March 2016.
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 HEZ=T—+F+-A=+—HIEFE

On 15 June 2016, the Company adopted a new share option scheme
(the “New Share Option Scheme”) to replace the share option scheme
previously adopted on 15 March 2006 to enable the Company to
provide the people and the parties working for the interests of
the Group with an opportunity to obtain an equity interest in the
Company, thus linking their interest with the interests of the Group
and thereby providing them with an incentive to work better for the
interests of the Group.

Upon approval by shareholders by ordinary resolution at the annual
general meeting (the "AGM") on 15 June 2016, the total number
of shares in respect of which options may be granted under the
New Share Option Scheme will be 293,604,000 shares which were
equivalent to 10% of the shares of the Company in issue as at the
date of the AGM.

The total number of shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of
options granted and to be granted to each grantee under the New
Share Option Scheme in any 12-month period shall not exceed 1%
of the issued share capital of the Company from time to time unless
(i) a circular is despatched to the shareholders; (ii) the shareholders
approve the grant of the options in excess of the 1% limit referred
to in this paragraph; and (iii) the relevant grantee and its associates
abstain from voting on such resolution.

An option may be exercised at any time during the period to be
determined and identified by the Directors to each grantee at the
time of making an offer for the grant of an option, but in any event
no later than ten years from the date of grant but subject to the early
termination of the New Share Option Scheme. An offer of grant of
an option must be accepted within 21 days after the date of grant.
The amount payable on acceptance of the grant is HK$1, which must
be received by the Company within 21 days from the date of grant
or within such other period of time as may be determined by the
Directors pursuant to the Listing Rules.

The subscription price for the shares under the Share Option Scheme
shall be a price determined by the Directors at its absolute discretion
and shall not be less than the higher of: (i) the closing price of the
shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the
date of grant; (i) the average closing price of the shares as stated in
the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheets for the five business days
immediately preceding the date of grant; and (iii) the nominal value of
the shares.

No share options were granted under the New Share Option Scheme
during the year ended 31 December 2017 and 2016.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
REMEBBRRME(R)

For the year ended 31 December 2017 BE =T —+tF+ A =+—HItFE

38. OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS 38. KEHERIE
At 31 December 2017, the Group had total future minimum lease RZZE—tF+_A=+—0 FAEER
payment under non-cancellable operating leases falling due as BRI RS EREN U TFRR N
follows: ZARREEEENKBENOT :
2017 2016
=R =R
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT AREFT
Operating lease commitments AT E R
— Within one year ——&R 5,527 5,987
— In the second to fifth years, inclusive —E_EEREFER
(BEERMF) 362 4,049
5,889 10,036
The Group’s operating leases are for terms from 1 to 3 years (2016: 1 AEEzEERERR—2=F(ZT—~
to 3 years). E:—F=F)o
39. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 39. AHEALTRS
The details of remuneration of key management personnel which TZERBER2HFN (ARREERAE
represents emoluments of the directors of the Company and executive EeRTHRAEZME) FEHNMEE14 -

officers of the Group are set out in note 14.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
REMEBHBRME(R)

For the year ended 31 December 2017 BE =T —+tF+-A=1+—HItFE

39.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS -
CONTINUED

Save as disclosed in notes 28, 31 and 34 to these consolidated
financial statements, other material related party transactions for the
year are disclosed as below:

Name of related party Nature of transactions

BRABBALEMH RHEE

Sincere Finance (Note (i) Interest expenses
AE SR (A 20) FER
Sincere Link Asset Management Limited Rental expenses
(Note (ii))
EEBEETEARRD A (M770)) HERX
Sincere Bullion Limited (Note (iii)) Interest expenses
& 2 H R A a (et ai) FMERXZ
Rental expenses
HEMX
Incharm Limited (Note (ii)) Rental expenses
BEEARAR (K 201)) HERX
Joy East Holdings Limited (Note (i) Rental expenses
RIGEBEERRAR (M 2a1) HERM X

Sino Wings Technologies Limited (Note (iv)) ~ Consultancy fee

EAEAR AR AR (A 72(v) BERZE
Mr. Hui Chi Yuet (Note (v)) Commission paid
BT A (F7 () BEfAE

39.

FRAEAEIRZ-&

FrAER & TG R M 7528 ~ 31 R34FTI TR
B RAFEZEMBEREEEALR
SWENT :

2017
—E—tF

RMB’000 RMB’000
AR #TFor AR Fir

613 -
445 -
202 -
718 -
650 -
780 -
234 -

806 =
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
REMEBEBRRME (.’f-*-)

For the year ended 31 December 2017 & ZE —

39.

40.

204

—tFT_A=1t—HLFE

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS -

CONTINUED
Note:
(i) Other interest expenses were paid to a non-controlling owner of a

subsidiary based on the terms as disclosed in note 31(vi).

(i) Companies in which directors of certain subsidiaries have significant
influence. Rental expenses were charged based on terms mutually

agreed.

(iii) A company in which director of a subsidiary has significant influence.

The expenses were charged based on terms mutually agreed.

(iv) Company in which a close family member of a subsidiary’s director has
direct equity interest. Consultancy fee was charged based on terms

mutually agreed.

(v) Commissions were paid to directors of certain subsidiaries at terms

mutually agreed.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

At 31 December 2016, the Group had provided corporate guarantee
to a bank in respect of certain credit facilities granted to Shasing-
Shapheng Quanzhou of which RMB55,000,000 was drawn down.
The total amounts to be guaranteed by the Group should not exceed
RMB80,000,000. The effective period of the guarantee should be
from 31 August 2016 to 30 August 2021.
Group’s obligation under the guarantee contract had been made as

No provision for the

the directors of the Company considered the possibility that Shasing-
Shapheng Quanzhou would not meet their obligations to the bank
is remote, and it was not probable that a claim will be made against
the Group under the guarantee contract. During the year ended 31
December 2017, the corporate guarantee was terminated.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
REMEBHBRME(R)

For the year ended 31 December 2017 2= —+tF+-A=+—HIEFE

41.

42,

CONTINGENT ASSETS

Sincere Securities, an indirect non-wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Company, had reserved a right to make potential claim from
an insurance agent with an estimated amount of approximately
RMB434,000 in prior years. As the potential claim is subject to further
investigation by the relevant authority and therefore the potential
claim has not been recognised in the profit or loss but is disclosed as
contingent asset.

MOVEMENT OF THE GROUP’S LIABILITIES
ARISING FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities arising
from financing activities, including both cash and non-cash changes.
Liabilities arising from financing activities are those for which cash
flows were, or future cash flows will be, classified in the Group’s
consolidated statements of cash flows as cash flows from financing
activities.

41.

42.

HREE
ARTZEERLENBATRERS Y
OB R 1 — BRI IR MR H
SO B ARNEL34,0007T 2 BERR L
Rl o R EEE R RS W B —
HRE - MBI PRIL MR AR
R EEREANAEE -

BERETHELEZAREES
E2 5

TRHFIAMEEDEL I AREE EY
B RERSRFARLED  AREED
Err AEREAXSABZASRECE
(HAKRERERE) NAREGARS
RERDRAEMEEDELIRERE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
REMEBBRRME(R)

For the year ended 31 December 2017 BE =T —+tF+ A =+—HItFE

42. MOVEMENT OF THE GROUP'S LIABILITIES 42. BREEHELEZAKEER
ARISING FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES - BRE &
CONTINUED

Short-term
loans from
other
Amounts due  Amount due Obligation ~ Short-term ~ financial Other
to related toa Other Bond under  bank loans, institution, borrowing, ~ Convertible
companies  shareholder payable  payables finance leases secured unsecured bonds

BENE  BHER  BAEE  ERE (4 )RR
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

At 1 January 2017 RZB-tf
-A-H = = 2,461 63,710 2,281 119,340 26,647 - 26,589 241,028
Changes from financing cash ~ HERLHERE
flows:
Borrowing costs paid ERBERE (815) - (5929) - (60) (6,384  (15949) - - (913)

Proceeds from bank loans, loans  REHTER £t
from other financial institution £ BEEZERR
and other borrowing EiEE RS
EQ) - - = - - 114,150 182,107 48,557 - 344,814
Repayment of bank loans, loans ~ EEHTES - g
from other financial institution ~ Eft4BEBE S

and other borrowing RREMEE - - - - - (119940)  (199.229)  (15,608) - (33
Repayment of finance leases EEREHE - - - - (374) - - - - (374)
Repayment of amount dueto ~ EEEFNBEEL

a related company 0B (93,760) - - - - - - - - (53,760)
Repayment to a shareholder ~ EERRFE - (10405) - - - - - - - (104052)
Total changes from RERENE

financing cash flows gyt (54,575)  (104,052) (5,929) - (434) (12,174) (33,071) 32,949 - (177,286)
Exchange adjustments EiHE (1,706) (15) (107) (465 (95) - (1188 (1314 (1213 (10352
Other changes: B85
Finance costs BERA 815 381 - 485 60 638 17,158 2952 1565 34171
Net cash inflow from WENBRARAI RS

acquisition of a subsidiary HAAFE 63,232 - - - - - - - - 63232
Settlement of finance lease i~ E&EABLENE -

relation to disposal of REREEBE

property, plant and equipment M E3A - - - - (1,235 - - - - (1,35)
Conversion of convertible bonds ~ E# T #KER - - - - - - - - (25558 (25558)
Settlement of other payables ~ EEEHERNER - 104,05 - - - - - - - 104,052
Credited to interest payables AT S - - 4,275 - - - - (2,952) (1323) -
Operating activities on REEEBLEAT

financial assets at fair Eit AR K

value through profit or loss BBEE - - - - - - (1,210 - - (1,210
Total other changes A Ee; 64,047 104,433 4275 4,856 (1175) 6,384 15,948 - (25316) 173452
At 31 December 2017 RZB-tf

tZA=1-H 7,766 366 700 63,908 5717 113,550 8,340 31,635 - 26842
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
REMEBHBRME(R)

For the year ended 31 December 2017 BEZE—+F+_A=+—HILFE

43. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

Details of the Company’s principal subsidiaries, at the end of the

43. T EWE A T
RARPRREPBERE 2 T EH B AR
ZEBWOT

reporting period are as follows:

Place of incorporation/

Particulars of issued and
fully paid up share/

Percentage of
ownership interest/
voting power/

Name of subsidiary establishment/operations reg|stered capnal profit share Principal activity
HERAAAR ,
Direct Indirect
BE )
Co-Prosperity (Hong Kong) Hong Kong 2 ordinary shares - 100% Trading of fabrics
Limited - HK$2 (2016:100%)
e (B8) BRAT Bk ek = 100% EEmH
- 28T (ZB-R%:
100%)
(Xiefeng (Fujian) Printing & PRC Registered capital - 100% Processing, printing and
Dyeing Co., Ltd.) For a term of 50 years - 1S§10,000,000 (2016: 100%) sales of finished fabrics
commencing 26 May 1999
as a WFOE
2 (BR) DFARAR hE HF-EN - 100% Raf T -
“AANERAZTRRR ~10,000,000%7 (CF-RE: HERHE
RHES0F - ERIVEBELS 100%)
(Xuesheng (Shishi) Printing & PRC Registered capital = 100% Processing, printing and
Knitting Industry Co., Ltd.) For a term of 50 years - US$5,000,000 (2016: 100%) sales of finished fabrics
commencing 16 September
1993 as a WFOE
ek (RHm) 2BEX Il AR - 100% KmhHmT
BRAA “hAZENATRER —5,000,000% ¢ (ZB-7E: MERHE
RHES0F - ERIMEBELE 100%)
(Xiefeng (Fujian) Printing & PRC Registered capital - 100% Processing, printing and
Dyeing Industrial Co., Ltd.) For a term of 30 years - HK$30,000,000 (2016: 100%) sales of finished fabrics
commencing 24 May 2006
as a WFOE
nhe(ER)H4E% L iMEx - 100% RahHnI -
BRAF ZREFRAZTHAR 30,000,000 7 (ZR-7E: HERHE
RHE30F  ERIVEBELE 100%)

Annual Report 2 01 7

207



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

GeaMBERRME (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2017 BE =T —+tF+ A =+—HItFE

43. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES - CONTINUED

Name of subsidiary

WEARLR

(Xuesheng (Shishi) Printing &
Knitting Industrial Co., Ltd.)

Rende Finance Limited

CREBERAR

Co-Prosperity Investment
(International Limited

BEGERE (AR ERAT

Eastern Culture Communication
Consultant Limited (Note (j)
SEENBEMARAA M)

Star Platinum (Note (i)

BBER Watli))

Co-Prosperity Management Limited

HEFEERARLT

|

Place of incorporation/
establishment/operations

PRC

For a term of 30 years
commencing 15 December
2006 as a WFOE

fh

“EEAE+ZBTRRRARNE

(ERIEBELS
Hong Kong

Bk

British Virgin Islands (“BVI")

ZRRAES ((RBRLEE))

Hong Kong

B

BVI

ARRLES

Hong Kong

B

208 ASIA TELEVISION HOLDINGS LIMITED
THNERERERAXSF

Particulars of issued and

fully paid up share/
registered capital
' ehA/

ARt

Registered capital
- HK$25,000,000

AU
=25,000,000%7C

10,000 ordinary shares
- HK$10,000
10,000%% E &R
-10,000 T

1 ordinary share
- US$1
IREBR-1%7

1 ordinary share
- HK$1
IREBR-1ET

100 ordinary shares
- Us$100

1008 B
-100%7

1 ordinary share
- HK$1
IREBR- 13T

43. T EMBE AT &

Percentage of
ownership interest/
voting power/
Principal activity

el Y, IZEH
Direct Indirect

BE G

= 100%
(2016: 100%)

Processing, printing and
sales of finished Fabrics

- 100% REAHMT

(Z3-—nF: MeRHE
100%)

- 100% Money lending
(2016: 100%)

- 100% it
(Z2-1%:
100%)

- 100% Securities investment
(2016: 100%)

- 100% EARE
(22—
100%)

- 100% Entertainment and media

(2016: 100%) services

= 100% REREERYS
(221
100%)

- 100% Entertainment and media

(2016: 100%) Services

= 100% RERERRK
(ZB-—n%:
100%)

- 100% Provision of management

(2016: 100%) services

= 100% REEERE
(ZB-RE:
100%)



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
REMEBHBRME(R)

For the year ended 31 December 2017 BE =T —+tF+-A=1+—HItFE

43. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES - CONTINUED 43. TEMEBLAT-&
Percentage of
Particulars of issued and ownership interest/
Place of incorporation/ fully paid up share/ voting power/
Name of subsidiary establishment/operations registered capital profit share Principal activity
BE : %A £/
HERRLHE AHER L, VY BNAZZAEDML IE2H
Direct Indirect
B i}

Asia Television Digital Media Limited Hong Kong 100,000 ordinary shares = 100% Entertainment and
({formerly known as Asia Television - HK$100,000 (2016: 100%) Media Services
New Media Group Limited) (2016:Investment
(Note (iii) holding)

ENERABRRERAT Bk 100,000% & B - 100% RERKRERS
(TN ER N EREEERAR) ~100,000%7 (ZB-1E: (Z2-RE:
(Witii) 100%) RERR)

Eastern Culture International Limited Hong Kong 1 ordinary share - 100% Investment holding

- HK§1 (2016: 100%)
SEARREERAT 2 IRERR 15T - 100% RERR
(2B
100%)
Full Winning BVI 1 ordinary share 100% - Investment holding
-US§T (2016: 100%)
g ERRAES IRERR- 12T 100% - REBR
(CE-RE:
100%)
Million Federal Hong Kong 25,000,000 ordinary - 60% Investment holding
share - HK$25,000,000 (2016: N/A)
Eh Bk 25,000,000 £ @R - 60% RERRK
~25,000,000% (ZB-RE:
AR
Sincere Securities Hong Kong 60,000,000 ordinary - 60% Underwriting, placing and
shares - HK$60,000,000 (2016: N/A) brokerage and related
Services
AEES &% 60,000,000% & @R - 60% 8% EEUR
60,000,000 ¢ (ZE-R%: BELRERE
@A)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

GeaMBBRME (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2017 HZ=F—+F+-A=+—HIEFE

43. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES - CONTINUED 43.
Note:
(i) The subsidiary was incorporated in Hong Kong on 13 June 2016.
(i) The subsidiary was incorporated in the BVI on 30 March 2016.
(iii) The subsidiary was incorporated in Hong Kong on 8 November 2016.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, in the
opinion of the directors of the Company, principally affected the
results or assets of the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries
would, in the opinion of the directors of the Company, result in
particulars of excessive length.

None of the subsidiaries had any debt securities outstanding at the
end of the year, or at any time during the year.

The amounts due from/(to) subsidiaries are unsecured, interest-free
and repayable on demand.

210 ASIA TELEVISION HOLDINGS LIMITED
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 HZE —%

On 9 January 2018, Full Winning, a direct wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, entered into an agreement
with Jade Stones Group Limited (“Jade Stone”), which
the sole director and the sole shareholder of Jade Stones
and its associates, are also the directors and ultimate
beneficial owners of a substantial shareholder of a partial
owned subsidiary of the Group, Million Federal, holding
approximately 36.88% of the total issued share capital of
Million Federal, to acquire 60,000,000 ICPS of Yong Tai,
representing approximately 27.77% of the entire issued
ICPS of Yong Tai at the consideration of RM66,000,000. The

acquisition was completed on 17 January 2018.

At the extraordinary general meeting (“EGM") of the
Company on 16 March 2018, the proposed change of existing
English name of the Company from “Co-Prosperity Holdings
Limited” to “Asia Television Holdings Limited” and the
adoption of the Chinese name of “EE BRI FR/AF" as
the dual foreign name in Chinese of the Company in place of
its existing Chinese name 17 B 173 B B FR A" which has
been used for identification purposes only, has been approved
in the EGM. Subsequent to the issue of the certificate of
incorporation on change of name of the Company by the
Registrar of Companies in the Cayman Islands on 16 March
2018, the change of the official registered English name of
the Company from “Co-Prosperity Holdings Limited” to “Asia
Television Holdings Limited” and the adoption of the Chinese
name of "MNERZEREBR A
in Chinese of the Company in place of its existing Chinese
name "B EIERBMR A A", The Company is under the
progress of approval procedures for changing its name under

as the dual foreign name

the requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance
and the Listing Rules.

— 4+ AS+—HILFE

RZE-—NFE—ANALAB AR
AvER2EMBARZER
Jade Stones Group Limited ([Jade
Stonel] @ AR EHEEBE A+ 2
—EERME-RERFANEEIFE
2EMBRARABAIZEEREZ
EIRBREZHEAN BBEA
2 EBE B ITARAN4936.88% ) BT 1
# LA EE60,000,0000% 5k A A
BRI R @R - HERKKE
BT A R AT R E TR A
27.77% LR 2RERFE
66,000,0007T ° ZIEWHEER T
—NFE—A+TEHZEK -

RZE—NF=ZA+XB8172
RATRRERRIANE ([IRE 5
Agl) b ZZBHEARRZHRERE
X % %8 [ Co-Prosperity Holdings
Limited ] # % & [ Asia Television
Holdings Limited ] & £ 49 & 3 % 78
[EMNERIERERAFIERAR
NAlZEEINHET  UERRIRE
E R 2 A& A TE &
CERERAA] —HERRERE
RIRE FEIE - RERS AR
MEEER-_T—-—N\F=A+X
HELERARZEAMBASE
% - AN A IE R 2 S0 T A
[ Co-Prosperity Holdings Limited ]
Bk A [ Asia Television Holdings
Limited | -~ SWERA R X EH[DME
RERBERABIIERRRAIZE
BN ABBEARRBGERBI 2
FABY R 3O T 1 Bk AR IR A R
DA - RRATIRBEE R AHEGI
REmRAZRETRERE  H
WIEENEREFT °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
REMEBBRRME(R)

For the year ended 31 December 2017 BE =T —+tF+ A =+—HItFE

45. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF 45, XD T Z B BEARRE
THE COMPANY

2017 2016
—ZE—tF —E-REF
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
B 5 AR Fr AREFT
Non-current assets ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - BENRE 474 980
Interests in subsidiaries RB AR Z R 43 - 200,674
474 201,654
Current assets REEE
Other receivables A FE W BR 50 3,106 2,090
Amounts due from subsidiaries i NG S 43 1,290,767 786,648
Amount due from a director JEURE = FRIB 26 - 45
Bank balances SRITH & 46,859 16,471
1,340,732 805,254
Current liabilities REAE
Other payables and accruals EMENERR
st & 2,779 5,438
Amounts due to subsidiaries FEAHHY B 2 3R 43 2,749 573
Bond payables FE &% 32 63,908 63,710
Other borrowing, unsecured HiEE (EEKF) 31,635 -
101,071 69,721
Net current assets REBEEFE 1,239,661 735,533
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

45.

GeEMBERRME(E)

For the year ended 31 December 2017 BE =T —+tF+-A=1+—HItFE

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF
THE COMPANY - CONTINUED

45. AP F 2B RREK &

2017 2016
—EF—tF  CEAE

RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETT

Total assets less current HEERABAEE

liabilities 1,240,135 937,187
Non-current liability kRBEE
Convertible bonds ] R (& & 35 - 26,589
Net assets EEFE 1,240,135 910,598
Capital and reserves EXR#E
Share capital B& A 36 616,617 351,608
Reserves fEE 623,518 558,990
Total equity ERER 1,240,135 910,598

The financial statements of the Company were approved and
authorised for issue by the board of directors on 27 March 2018 and
are signed on its behalf by:

Tang Hon Kwo
HEX
Chairman

E

ARAMBREER_-_F—-NF=ZA
“TEREEESMERBIHATAL
RERFEZ

Law Kin Fat
mER

Executive Director

HITEF
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
REMEBBRRME(R)

For the year ended 31 December 2017 BE =T —+tF+ A =+—HItFE

45. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF 45. KA TZHBERRAEK B
THE COMPANY - CONTINUED

Details of the changes in the Company’s individual components of RAARMERIEESHSNFNEFEBERZ
equity between the beginning and the end of the year are set as BEFEHINAT ¢
below:

Special - Convertible bond Translation Accumulated
Share premium reserve  equity reserve reserve losses
ARES

RiN&E KRG kR i1 ZHEH

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB000 RMB000
NEETT '

At 1 January 2016 RZE-~"E-A-8 442,929 146,472 - - (160,440) 428,961
Loss for the year AEEER - - - - (95,176) (95,176)

Other comprehensive income AEEEMEERS

for the year
- Exchange differences -BEEAVERER
arising on translation - - - 43,575 - 43,575
Total comprehensive TEERENERE
income for the year - - - 43,575 (95,176) (51,601)
Issue of shares under share placing  1RZR & £ %17 A 117,040 = = = = 117,040

Transaction costs attributable to ~ ETRERB 2 X BHA

issue of placing shares (3,069) - - - - (3,069)
Issue of shares under share BRERHREETRG

subscription 25,038 - - - - 25,038
Issue of convertible bonds BTaRES - - 4,578 - - 4,578

Issue of shares upon conversion RERTEREFMETRA

of convertible bonds 41,450 - (3,407) - - 38,043
Transactions with owners BEFEAIRS 180,459 = 117 = = 181,630
At 31 December 2016 RZZ-R"E+-A=1-H 623,388 146,472 1,17 43,575 (255,616) 558,990
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

45.

GeEMBERRME(E)

For the year ended 31 December 2017 BE =T —+tF+-A=1+—HItFE

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF 45. KA B 2B RAEK—E&
THE COMPANY - CONTINUED

Special -~ Convertible bond Translation Accumulated
Share premium reserve  equity reserve reserve losses
ARG
Kl L ER ZHER ‘
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
T ANEEFT ANERTTL
Loss for the year AEEER - - - - (363,863) (363,863)
Other comprehensive expense REEEMEERR
for the year
- Exchange differences -REEEVERER
arising on translation - - - (59,328) - (59,328)

Total comprehensive expense FEE2ERRLE

for the year - - - (59,328) (363,863) (423,191)
Issue of share under share placing ~ RERHEEBTRA 493,187 - - - - 493,187
Transaction costs attributable to ~ ETRERBZRFKA

issue of placing shares (19,091) - - - - (19,091)
Issue shares upon conversion REHR R ES

of convertible bonds mETRGL 14,794 - (1,17) - - 13,623
Transactions with owners HRAEANZRS 488,890 - (1171) - - 487,719
At 31 December 2017 RZF-+%+-A=+-H 1,112,278 146,472 N (15,753) (619,479) 623,518
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY
MEEE

Year ended 31 December

BETZA=t-BIEE

2014 2015 2016 2017
“E-mF “T-1fF —Z-RF “E—+F
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AEET; ARETFT AEET; T AEETFT

RESULTS £%
Turnover E 515,090 345,762 273,301 198,621 150,748
(Loss)/profit before taxation BRI (BR) /%5 (161,728) 23,256 (5,008) 31,086 (118,911)
Taxation B (2,895) (2,494) (1,892) (1,889) (4,082)
(Loss)/profit for the year ~EE(EB) /&F (164,623) 20,762 (6,900) 29,197 (122,993)

As at 31 December
Rt-A=1+—H
2014 2015 2017

I S A

RMB000 RMB'000 RMB000
ARBTFT ARBTT

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EEREE

Total assets EEBE 550,521 560,461 525,547 1,199,383 1,693,080
Total liabilities BERE (439,707) (343,055) (255,567) (509,687) (394,378)
Net assets BEFE 110,814 217,406 269,980 689,696 1,298,702
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